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[Case Called at 00:00:07 Runtime - Disc 1, Track 3]

THE CLERK: The recording has been sealed in this matter.

THE COURT: Okay. So, first thing, I'm going to ask everyone
in the room to identify themselves for the record.

MS. LYNCH: Good morning, Your Honor. Adrienne Lynch,
Assistant District Attorney, for the Commonwealth. With me, with
the Court's permission, is the paralegal Ashley [phonetic]
Cunningham --

THE COURT: Yes.

MS. LYNCH: -- who would be assisting if the Court allows
that motion.

THE COURT: That's allowed. Good morning, Ms. Cunningham.

Welcome.
A.D.A. Lynch, I think you sent a motion requesting -- and I
allowed it., I don'‘t know -- eariier. I don't -- And I know --

THE CLERK: I have it, Judge, vyes.

THE COURT: Okay. Perfect.

THE CLERK: Mm-hmm.

THE COURT: All right. But that is allowed, yes.

MR. DRAUSCHKE: Good morning.

THE COURT: Good morning.

MR. DRAUSCHKE: Officer Erik Drauschke, Reading PD.

THE COURT: Good morning.

MR. PASCIUCCO: And good morning. Attorney Peter Pasciucco

on behalf of Officer Brik Drauschke.
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THE COURT: Good morning.

MR. KOUFMAN: Good morning. Victor Koufman on behalf of
Anthony Perrxotti and also Catherine, who's -- Catherine Rawson,
who's outside, the family.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. KOUFMAN: And Melissa Garand is with me. She's also an
attorney.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. GARAND: Good morning.

THE COURT: Good morning.

Okay. So, everyone knows this is Attorney Kristen Stone.

MS. STONE: Good morning.

THE COURT: She's from --

MR. PASCIUCCO: Good morning.

THE COURT: -- Chief Justice Dawley's Office. And the few
inquests that the judges have been asked to do, there's an
attorney from Chief Justice Dawley's Office who's assigned to work
with the judge. 8So she'll be working on this with me.

Okay. So, now, hopefully -- I know that I had promised you
all that I would give you something in writing with regard to the
ground rules. And hopefully everybody received that. I'm sorry I
sent it out later than I anticipated.

So, there are family members who are outside, family members
of Mr. Greenough's. 2And are they going to be joining us in the

courtroom? Or what were you planning on doing? I did allow them
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to be here.

MR. KOUFMAN: Yes. But we --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. KOUFMAN: -- were told just for the attorneys to come in
right now.

THE COURT: Okay, okay. I also, A.D.A. Lynch, indicated that
the Court, based on my review of the documentation, would like to
have a view.

MS5. LYNCH: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. And I don't know at what point you would
think that would be appropriate, given the testimony. Because
this is not an adversarial proceeding, we don't have a jury, -- I
didn't set up things the way that we would if there was -- if this
was a jury trial. I did in advance speak to both the Clerk's
Office and the Court Officers to make sure that we had proper
recording equipment to take with us. But I anticipated that
perhaps the Reading Police could direct us as to where we should
go for the view, the location. And we would have Court Officers
with us but everybody could essentially go in their own vehicles,
if that makes sense to everyone. Okay?

What other preliminary issues do we have before we get
started?

MS. LYNCH: Your Honor, with respect to preliminary matters,
as the Court is aware, at your request the Commonwealth's filed a

series of discovery materials in connection with the case. We
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2-8
have supplemental wmaterials; I advised Attorney Pasciucco about
that.

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. LYNCH: But I have to file them as part of the impounded
documentation, the second notice of discovery, both on a Zip drive
as well as in hard copy form, --

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

MS. LYNCH: -- consisting of an updated timeline.

Originally, the Commonwealth had sent a letter to the Court
indicating that the surveillance video was 33 minutes and 15
seconds fast. After sgpeaking to the trooper who downloaded the
video, it was determined that it was 32 minutes and 50 seconds.
So it's a difference of 25 seconds. And the Commonwealth has
updated that timeline and would ask that the timeline with --
dated in the corner March 24th, 2019, be substituted for that.

And then I would f£ile with the Clexk the remaining binders,
including an updated Cellebrite download. The Cellebrite download
that was previously filed was UTC-0, which is Greenwich Mean Time,
which doesn’'t help when you're trying to figure out what time it
was in Reading.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

MS. LYNCH: So the trooper did do a conversion so that it is
real-time in that binder, substituted, of both phones -- is
included in the discovery materials, as it is expected to be an

exhibit in the matter.




THE COURT:
MS. LYNCH:
Clerk.
THE COURT: Okay.
Additionally, Your Honor, one of the witnesses,
is a member of the United States Coast Guard.
He -- His unit

10

1]

shipped out last night.
like to take him out of order --

12

13

MS. LYNCH:

14
15

16

17

Officer Sean Wilson,
He was -- 1s deployed to Guantanamc Bay, Cuba.
He is here until he can testify.

18

Thank you.
And I would just at this time provide this to the

So I'd

Absol
-- and make sure that he is on today.

THE COURT:
MS. LYNCH:
THE COURT: Okay.
MS. LYNCH: And I believe those are the preliminary matters.
THE COURT: Preliminary matters, okay. All right.
Any other preliminary issues that anyone else hag?
MR. KOUFMAN: Yes, Judge, if I may.
THE COURT: Yes.
I understand from your order that you didn't

MR. XOUFMAN:
provide counsel for the family with an opportunity to ask

i%
20 | gquestions.
21 THE COURT: Right. Mm-hmm.
22 MR. KOUFMAN: I would just ask that -- We've done our own
23 | sort of investigation. And I haven't seen the Commonwealth's
24 | investigation, per the Court order.
THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

25
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MR. KOUFMAN: But should something come up during the course
of the hearing that I think would add to your role to investigate
the matter, I would just agk i1f I could have an opportunity on
behalf of the family to make an offer of proof and then at that
point to ask the Court to allow me to either ask questions or
introduce a document.

THE COURT: You definitely have the opportunity to make and
offer of proof. And if I think it would be appropriate pursuant
to the standards in terms of the Court's role as investigatory,
then I would entertain it at that time.

MR. KOUFMAN: I truly understand that this is non-
adversarial.

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. KOUFMAN: Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank vyou.

MR. PASCIUCCO: Good morning, Your Honor. I do havé a motion
I can provide to the Court. We would like after the Commonwealth
presents its case to put a use of force expert or an individual
who 1s a certified use of force/defense tactics instructor on the
stand to testify to three or four different areas and maybe be
posed hypotheticals. He is not involved in this incident at all,
but we do feel it would assist the Cougt in its investigatory
function.

THE COURT: And again, counsel, what I would say is once the

Commonwealth has presented all the information to the Court, if
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the Court thinks that that would be helpful to the investigatory
process then I will hear you at that time.

MR. PASCIUCCO: Okay. Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay?

Any other preliminary issues? No.

A.D.A. Lynch, at what point do you think -- Is it today that
you think it would be appropriate to take a view? Or at what
point? Just so that we can give some notice to court staff and
the like.

MS. LYNCH: I think that folks are prepared for it to be
today.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

MS. LYNCH: I think to -- just to the extent that we could do
it before Officer Wilson's testimony. But I just want to make
sure we get Officer Wilson on.

THE COURT: Okay. All right, all right. Well, do you want
to start with Officer Wilson then? Or do you want to start with
the view? I leave it to you. We're going to get to Officer
Wilson today.

MS. LYNCH: Okay. Then I --

THE COURT: Okay?

MS. LYNCH: -- think that the view would be helpful.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Okay. And are the Reading
Police prepared to direct us to --

MS. LYNCH: I do have a state trooper and I can ask the
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lieutenant from Bedford -- Reading, rather, to coordinate.

THE COURT: Okay. So, why don't we plan to recess now --

MS. LYNCH: Okay.

THE COURT: -- to do that. You can get the recording
equipment. Go ahead.

MS. LYNCH: And just to be clear, who will be on the view?

THE COURT: Okay. Well, in terms of people who are here or
in terms of your witnesses? In terms of -- Everyone in the room
now would be on the view and then, again because I'm looking at it
as investigatory, anyone who would be able to assist kind of the
Court in understanding where things transpired. So --

MS. LYNCH: And so, I would just ask permission to have
Lieutenant Bulman, who is on the list potentially as a witness --
He was going to drive me to --

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. LYNCH: -- the location. And I will speak to Lieutenant
Abate from Reading about having a Reading cruiser meet us at
Reading.

THE COURT: Okay. And will Lieutenant Bulman then be able to
point out --

MS. LYNCH: I would do that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you. All right. So, if
we recess now, and with the -- How far away from the Court is the
location?

MS. LYNCH: If you -- If we get off at the Main Street exit,
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which T believe is Route 28, it's probably 15 minutes from here.

THE COURT: Okay. &all right. So, why don't we plan to all
be there by ten o'clock. Okay?

MR. KOUFMAN: Judge, if I may just -- I haven't checked with
the family. But if they wanted to come to the view, can they?

MS. LYNCH: Your Honor, in a regular trial, members of the
public don't come on -~-

THE COURT: Right. I --

MR. KOUFMAN: They're not members of the public.

THE COURT: No, I know.

MR. KOUFMAN: They're interested parties.

MS. LYNCH: Well, the --

MR. KOUFMAN: I would --

MS. LYNCH: -- victim's families don't --

MR. KOUFMAN: I would --

MS. LYNCH: -- come on views.

MR. KOUFMAN: I would control them. I would make sure they
stay out of the way unless you oxr somebody had -- Adrienne had --
Lynch had a question.

THE COURT: Sure. Let me think about it for a minute. I
want to review the standards and I'll let you know. Okay?

MR. KOUFMAN: Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Thank you.

[Court in Recess at 00:10:28 Runtime - Disc 1, Track 3]

[Back on Record at 00:00:10 Runtime - Disc 1, Track 4]
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THE COURT: Okay. I just wanted fo review the standards
again. The standards do indicate that all persons allowed to
attend the inquest are allowed to attend the view. So I'll let
the family attend the view. But if there's any disruptions or
anything, then I'm going to have to change my ruling.

MR. KOUFMAN: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay? All right. Okay.

THE CLERK: Judge, do you want me to have them sign in prior
to -~

THE COURT: Yes.

THE CLERK: -- them going?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE CLERK: Okay. So, if you could just have those family
members come in and sign in.

MR. KOUFMAN: One other thing: could we sit here as opposed
to over there?

MS. LYNCH: ©No. It'll be -- The video will be obstruéted.

MR, KOUFMAN: I'm trying to get out of the way from it.
Okay.

MS. LYNCH: All right. Yeah.

THE CLERK: Thank you.

MS. LYNCH: This is going to be -- I just wanted to mention
that to ~-

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. LYNCH: -- the Court. Instead of the TV, which -- This
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is apparently the --

THE CLERK: Video --

MS. LYNCH: ~- remote.

THE CLERK: Yeah.

THE CQURT: Yeah.

MS. LYNCH: The recordings and all the pictures will be on
that wall.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Thank you.

MR, PASCIUCCO: Thank you.

[Court in Recess at 00:00:56 Runtime - Disc 1, Track 4]
[Viewing Held]
[Back on Record at 01:01:38 Runtime -~ Disc 2, Track 1]

THE CLERK: Sorry, Judge; I just received this summons. I
believe that this is one of -- Mr. James Burke, is that a witness
of yours?

MS. LYNCH: Yes.

THE CLERK: Okay. So, that's all.

Judge, I just need a moment. There are two other individuals
who are in the courtroom who were not at the viewing, so I just

needed them to sign in.
THE COURT: Okay.
MS. LYNCH: Can I ask for the record who they are?

THE COURT: Yes, I was just going to -- about to do that

myself.

And who are these folks that are in the courtroom now?
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MR. KOUFMAN: Michael Sweeney [phonetic] is the stepbrother.
And --

MR. SWEENEY: My girlfriend, as well.

THE COURT: All right. Well, --

THE CLERK: Judge, this is the list from the last court date.
T don't know if it's the same name.

THE COURT: Okay. So, at the -- This is the list from the
preliminary hearing.

THE CLERK: Correct, Judge.

THE COURT: Okay. So, at the preliminary hearing it was the
~-- Mr. Sweeney was on the list as the stepbrother. And is it
Victoria McLean [phonetic]?

MR. KOUFMAN: Yes.

THE COURT: Okay. She was on the original list, as well. So
I1'11 allow her to be in the courtroom as well.

MR. KOUFMAN: Thank you.

THE COURT: Okay?

THE CLERK: 2And, Judge, I'm just going to note their relation
to the parties on the list.

THE COURT: Okay. So, Ms. Lynch, whenever you're ready to
call witnesses.

MS. LYNCH: Thank you. Your Honor, as a preliminary matter I
would call Ashley Cunningham to -- just for authentication.

THE COURT: Sure.

[ASHLEY CUNNINGHAM, Sworm.]
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DIRECT EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, ASHLEY CUNNINGHAM
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Good morning. If you would, would you state your name and
gspell your last name for the record.
A Sure. It's Ashley Cunningham, C-U-N-N-TI-N-G-H-A-M.
Q And what is your occupation?
A I am a paralegal at the Middlesex District Attorney's Office,
currently assigned to the homicide unit.
0 How long have you been a paralegal -- or employed by the
Middlesex District Attorney's Office?
A Just about seven years.
Q And how long have you been assigned as the paralegal to the
homicide unit?
A Two years, nine months or so.
Q Now, directing your attention to February of 2018, were you
agsigned as a paralegal to work on this case?
A Yes, I was.
Q And as part of your responsibilities, were you assigned this
case on Monday, February 5th of 20187
A Yes, I was.
Q As part of your involvement did you transcribe certain
recorded interviews?
A Yes, I did.
Q Did you arrange for a transcriptionist to transcribe other

interviews?
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A Yes, I did.

Q Did you review certain recorded police radio transmissions
and phone calls for February 2nd of 2018 and February 3rd of 2018
related to the calls to 1462 Main Street --

A Yeg, I did.

Q -- in Reading?

Did you review downloads of two phones, one identified to be
the phone of Alan Greenough and the other identified to be the
cell phone of Devin McDonald?

A Yes, 1 did.

Q Concerning those phone downloads, were they originally
provided iﬁ Coordinated Universal Time, also referred to as UTC?
A Yes, they were.

0 Now, in order to review them for Eastern Standard Time as was
in effect in February of 2018, is there a conversion that is
required?

A There is. You have to subtract five hours from the recorded
time provided in Coordinated Universal Time to get the Eastern

Standard Time conversion.

Q And so, 1s the original UTC provided in discovery?

A It was.

Q And subsequently was the conversion done?

A It was.

9] And have you caused to be printed up the updated downloads

with the times to be used as an exhibit in this case?
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A I did.
MS. LYNCH: I would offer this as the next -- as the first
exhibit.

THE COURT: Exhibit No. 1.
[Converted Phone Extractions Marked as Exhibit No. 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, as part of your involvement in this case did you review
surveillance footage downloaded by Trooper John Conron of the
State Police cyber crime unit taken from the East Coast Gas &
Service Station.
A Yeg, I did.
Q And with regard to this video, were you informed by the
trooper, Trooper Conron, that the surveillance video was faster
than real time?
A Yes. I was adviged it was 33 minutes, 15 seconds faster than

real-time.

o] And that was the original information?
A That was the original information.
0 Did you subsequently learn from Trooper Conron how much

faster the video was in regard to real time?

A Yes. I was then advised it was 32 minutes, 15 -- sorry --
50, 5-0, seconds instead of the 33:50 [sic].

Q Now, in -- as part of your duties as a paralegal, did you
assist in the preparation of a timeline in which you coordinated

or -- in chronological order the times of radio transmissions and
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calls to the police, calls and texts according to the phone
downloads, as well as the surveillance video converted to actual
real-time using that 32 minutes, 50 seconds time differential?
A Yes, I 4did.
Q And showing you this document consisting of 28 pages,
captioned March 24th of 2019, do you recognize this document?
A I do.
Q And ig this to the best of your abilities a fair and accurate
recitation of the timeline in real-time from those various
sourées?
A It is.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be marked as the next
exhibit.

THE COURT: Exhibit No. 2.

[Timeline Marked as Exhibit No. 2]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Just for purposges of the hearing, is this a disc prepared by
you of the 9-1-1 and radio transmissions for February 2nd and 3rd
related to this case as provided by the Essex Emergency
Communications Center as well as the Reading Police Department?
A It is.

MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.

THE COURT: Exhibit No. 3.

[Disc of 911 and Radio Transmissions Marked as Exhibit No. 3]
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BY MS. LYNCH:

Q Now, when video was provided by East Coast Service & Gas or
the download was done at their -- with their consent, did it
consist of four separate camera angles?

A It did.

Q And is this a disk prepared by you, downloading all of those,
Channels 1 through 4, for February 2nd and February 3rd in the
requested time-period?

A It is.

MS. LYNCH: Okay. A&t this time I would offer this as the
next exhibit. And maybe in order to mark it I can give you the
sleeve.

THE CLERK: That would be great. Thank you.

THE COURT: It's 37

THE CLERK: 4, Judge.

THE COURT: 4.

[Disc of Surveillance Footage Marked as Exhibit No. 4]
BY MS. LYNCH:
0 Now, in terms of the involvement in this investigation, did
you focus on the two cameras designated Channels 1 and Channel 2,
specifically one showing the interior office area of the gas
station and one showing the external area of the gas station?
A Yes.
0 And is this a video of those montages in terms of Continuous

Channel 1/Continuous Channel 2 without going to a separate folder?
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A Yes, they are.
MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.
[Disc of Surveillance Footage Marked as Exhibit No. 5]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Did you also cause to be duplicated the -- a copy of the
video taken at the scene, 1462 Main Street, Reading, by Trooper

Perry of the Massachusetts State Police --

A I did.

Q -- crime scene services? BAnd does this appear to be that
disc?

A It does.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.

THE COURT: Exhibit 6.

[Disc of Crime Scene Services Footage Marked as Exhibit No. 6]

BY MS. LYNCH:
0 And does this -- Do you recognize this to be a digital copy
of the Cellebrite downloads of both the McDonald and Greenough
phones?
A I do.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.

THE COURT: 7.

[Cellebrite Reports Marked as Exhibit No. 7]
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BY MS. LYNCH:

0 Now, just as part of the original discovery provided, how was
the surveillance video formatted?

A It was originally formatted -- You opened up the USB and
there were two main folders: one for February 2nd, 2018; and one
for February 3rd, 2018. Then, within each of those folders, the
camera angles were delineated by Channel 1 through 4. So each
folder had four camera angles.

Q And then were each camera angles broken down into segments?

A They were. Each camera angle was then provided to us with
the video clips, segments of about 20 minutes or so.

Q And did you request and have someone provide to you a
continuous video of each clip for ease of viewing?

A I did.

Q Now, in reviewing the camera angles identified as the outside
of the front of the gas station and the interior office, did vyou --
were you able to notice whether or not there was a correlation or a
synchronization, if you will, between the radio transmissions and
those video clips?

A I was able to identify that, yes.

0 And, again, this was an effort in which you loocked at the
video, did the arithmetic, if you will, and then compared it to
the records provided as to the time and duration of the recorded
police calls?

A Yes, that's correct.
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0 Thank vyou.

A Thank you.

THE COURT: Thank you.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
[Witness steps down]

MS. LYNCH: The first witness would be Officer Kaylyn Gooley.

THE COURT: Okay. Before the first witness is called into
the courtroom, I just want to make sure that I remind the folks in
the room who have been allowed to sit in on the ingquest -- and I
know I said this at the preliminary hearing -- that I want to make
sure I remind everyone that this is a closed hearing. It's not
open to the public for a reason. Everything that is heard during
the course of the inquest is not to be shared with anyone or
discussed with anyone outside of this room. This information is
not available to the public until the inguest has concluded and
the Court has authored a report as to it. Everyone understands
that? Yeah, okay.

You can call your first witness.

MS. LYNCH: Thank you. Officer Kaylyn Gooley, please.

[OFFICER KAYLYN GOOLEY, Swormn.]
THE WITNESS: Good morning, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Good morning.
DIRECT EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER KAYLYN GOOLEY

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q Good morning.
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A Good morning.
Q If you would, would you please speak up in a loud voice. B2and
if you would state your name and spell your last name for the

record.

A Yes. My name is Kaylyn Gooley, last name G-0-0-L-E-Y.

o) And what is your occupation?
A I work for the Reading Police Department as a patrolman.
0 How long have you been a patrol officer with the Reading

Police Department?

a It*ll be five years in July.

0 Prior to coming to the Reading Police Department did you have
any other law enforcement experience?

A I did. I woxked in Orleans, Mass., down the Cape. I worked
there for three months.

0 And did you also have professional experience at the
university level?

A I did. I worked at two colleges: North Shore Community
College and Salem State University.

Q And how long a pericd of time between those two did you serve
as a police officer?

A I worked at North Shore for seven months and Salem for a -- a
little over a year.

Q Now, directing your attention to Saturday, February the 3rd
of 2018, were you on duty with the Reading Police?

A I was.
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Q

A

And what was your assignment that day?

I was working an overtime shift. I was working the morning

shift, the B shift, from eight to four.

Q

A

A

Q

And when had you first reported for duty?

At 8:00 a.m. in the morning.

Was your assignment uniform or plain clothes?

Uniform.

Were you assigned to foot patrol or in a vehicle?

I was assigned to C}uiser 5.

And is that a marked police unit?

Yes, 1t is.

And were you in that unit alone or with a partner that day?
I was in it alone.

And do you have as a Reading police officer a radio call

number oxr identifier?

A

Q

use?

A

Q

I do. My badge number is 88.

And is that the number that when you are broadcasting you

Yes, it is.

Now, directing your attention to the time 3:46:23 p.m., did

you receive a radio transmission or transmission?

A

Q

We did.

Now, at the time that you received these initial radio

transmissions, where were you physically situated?

A

I was at the police station at that time.
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MS. LYNCH: 2And for the record, with the Court's permission I
would ask that Track 2 for 3:46:24 p.m., Reading Police disc for
February 3xd be played.
THE COURT: Yes.
[Audio Playing at 00:16:24 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, as a result of that radio transmission did you leave the
police station?
A I did.
0 And while you were travelling to that call, directing your
attention to Track 3 at 3:47:22 p.m., did you receive thisg radio
transmission?
MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission, if --
THE COURT: Yeah.
A Yes, I did.
(Audio Playing at 00:17:29 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
0 As a result of that, were you the only unit that was

dispatched to that call?

A No, I was not.

o} What other units were dispatched, if you recall?

A Officer Lee and Officer Wilson were dispatched.

] And were they in separate vehicles or were they together?

A They were in separate vehicles.

Q Now, with regard to that I would draw your attention to Track
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No. 5 of February 3rd of 2018, transmitted at 3:48:19.

MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission, if that may be
played.

THE COURT: It may be played.

{Audio Playing at 00:18:38 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q On that radio transmigsion, who was the officer that

requestéd that the reporting party report to the scene?

A That was Officer Wilson.

0 Now, how long did it take you to arrive at that location?

A Approximately maybe two/three minutes.

0 Now I'm going to direct your attention to a video, real-time

3:51 p.m., from Video C2, timestamp 1623:50. And I'm going to ask
you to ~- 1f you recognize on the monitor -- Do you recognize what
this depicts?

{(Video Playing at 00:19:59 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

A I do.
Q And what do you recognize this to be?
A That's East Coast Gas, the gas station that we responded to.

[Video Playing at 00:20:25 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, on the video at this time do you -- if you could
indicate what that reveals.

A That is Officer Lee. He's arriving on scene first.
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THE COURT: Mr. Court Officer, could you turn off the lights?
Okay. Okay, thank you.
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And the second vehicle?
A That would be me arriving on scene.

Q And then?

A That ig Officer Wilson arriving on scene.
Q Now, can you tell us, once you arrived at that location did
vou broadcast a radio transmission at approximately 30 -- 3:50:41

p.m. that you and the other officers had arrived?

A Yes.

Q Now, directing your attention to your arrival at that
location, at that location can you tell us what you and your other
officers did when you got there?

A When I first arrived on scene, I was approached by the gas
station owner. I learned that he was the owner later. And I
explained to him that we were looking for the party, the suspect

that was living in the apartment.

o] Did you --

A He --

Q -- identify him by name?

A By “Alan Greenough,” yes. We -- The store owner, Joe, then

left. Anthony, who I later found out was Alan's brother,
approached me. I was explaining to him that we were here due to a

domestic and that I was looking for Alan Greenough. We -- I then
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asked -- I -- We attempted to get into the main apartment. So,
there's a gas station and attached to the gas station is an
apartment building. It's divided into two apartments. There is a
main entry door and then once you get into the main entry door
there are two apartment doors: one on the left, one on the right.
When we first attempted to get into the main door, it was
locked. We were unable to get in. Anthony said that he might
have a key, so he left to go get a key. During that time, we were
still waiting for the victim, Devin, and his girlfriend, Kim, to

show up on-scene to see if they had keys to get in.

Q Now, as you were outside that door, the door was locked?

A The door was locked, yes, and all the lights in the apartment
were Off.

Q Now, did one of you three officers go around to the back of

the building to see if any lights were on or if windows --

A I did. I walked around the building and looked out back. I
noticed that there was one door that was out back. At that time,
I wasn't aware what that door was for. Later, Anthony came back
to me with a key. I tried to open the -- the main front door. We
were unable to. And he and I went over the building of the layout
[sic]. I asked him where everything was and in what room. And
then I asked him about the door out back. 2And he said that that
only went to the far apartment on the righthand side if you're
facing the building.

9] Did you have any conversation with Anthony regarding whether
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1 | there were any other doors other than the main door off that front
i:j 2 | hallway into the apartment?
3 A We did. I asked him to go room by room to try to explain the
4 | layout of the apartment. BAnd I asked him about any other doors

5 | because the only door that I knew about wag the wmain door that we

6 | were trying to get into.

7 He said that there were no other doors.

8 I said, "There'’s no back door?"

9 He said no.

10 I asked him if there was any door from the gas station.
11 He said no, there was not.

12 I said, "Are you sure there's no door? 'Cause it's an

13 | apartment. It has to have some kind of door."

14 and he said that there were nc other doors.

15 10 Now, where did this conversation take place?

16 | A It was outside, right in front of the apartment building.

17 {0 Now, with regard to your presence at that location, did you

18 | receive a radio transmission from Sergeant Pat Silva at

19 | approximately 3:51:01 p.m., which would be Track 10 on the

20 | Pebruary 3rd video [sic]l?

21 A I did.

22 MS. LYNCH: And if -- With the Court’'s permission, if we
23 | could play that.

— 24 THE COURT: Yes.

25 [Audio Playing at 00:25:00 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
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BY MS. LYNCH:
0 Now, directing your attention to the radio transmission which
would be Track 13 at 5 -- 3:55:20 p.m., I would like to play that
and ask you if you recognize that transmission.

[Audio Playing at 00:26:02 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, at the time that you were at the gas station in the
early stages of the call between 10 to 4:00 and, say, 4:10 did you
see or were you aware of the door from the waiting room of the gas
station into the apartment where Mr. Greenough resided?
A No, I was not.
0 Now, at some point did you learn that there was an Officer
Fontes that had been dispatched to the Lobster Claw to meet with
the civilians?
A Yes, I do. Officer Fontes was dispatched by the sergeant to
go meet the civilians at Lobster Claw.
Q And at some point did that plan change?
A It did. The victims were later requested to show up on scene
so we could meet with them and we could meet with them and we
could also ask them to see if they had any keys to the apartment.
0 And directing your attention to Track 14 at 3:56:20 p.m.

MS. LYNCH: TIf you would play that, please.

{Audio Playing at 00:27:28 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q Now, at some point after that did you learn that there was
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another officer that was being dispatched to join you at that

location, specifically Officer Vatcher?

A Yes. We were told by the sergeant that Cfficer Vatcher was

going to arrive on scene, that he had gone there the night

previous for the same incident and he was going to assist us.

Q And that call was at 4:01:23, the radio transmission?
A Yes.
0 Now, at some point after that radio transmission -- and I'm

going to direct your attention to the video with the real-time of
4:02:17 p.m., which the Video C2 timestamped 1635:07, ask you if
you recognize what is depicted in that.

[Video Playing at 00:28:54 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
A Right now is when Devin and his girlfriend Kim were arriving.
They parked on the far side of the gas station. If you're facing
the gas station, it's to the right.
Q And they responded there at the request of --

A They res --

Q ~-- the sergeant?
A Yes.
0 Now, with regard to the radio transmissions, I'm just going

to go back. And at 4:0 -- Did you approach them in their vehicle

and ask for a key?
I did.

A Yes, I approached them and asked for a key to the

apartment which they provided, but it did not work.
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2-34
0 As a result of that, did you issue a broadcast, Track 16, on
February 3rd at 4:02:28 p.m.?
A Yes.
MS. LYNCH: I'm going to ask with the Court's permission to
play that.
THE COURT: You have my permission.
{Audio Playing at 00:29:47 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And at 4:03:04 p.m. was there a follow-up radio transmission
between you and the officer in charge?
A Yeg, there was.
MS. LYNCH: And I'd ask you to play Track 17, please, with
the Court's permission.
{Audio Playing at 00:30:26 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And directing your attention to Track 18 at 4:04:21, did you
make a radio broadcast to your officer in charge at that time?
A Yes.
MS. LYNCH: And if you would play that, please.
[Audio Playing at 00:31:50 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
0 Now, was that the point in time when you asked Mr.
Greenough's brother for a layout of the premises?
A Yes, it was. He brought over a set of keys. I attempted to

use them on the front door. They did not work. And then at that
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2-35
point ig when we stepped in front of the building and we started
to do the walkthrough of where -- what was in each room and how
the building was laid out.
¢} Now, did he indicate to you what room was in the front of the

building where there were four windows, separated two and two?

A Yes, he did.
0 And what room was that?
A It was the kitchen and what I appeared -- thought was a

dining room at the time. It was explained that it was part of the
kitchen, was one main room in the front.

Q Now, as a result of that, at some point were you able to gain
entry into the interior hallway?

A We were. I ended up -- I was speaking with Devin and his
girlfriend, Kim. I walked around the side of the building again.
I noticed that there was a gentleman upstairs in the second
apartment. I waved to him, I called him down, he ended up coming
down to the main front door. I asked him if he could open the
door for us. He then opened the main door to the apartment
building. I asked him if he had a key to the other apartment; he
said he did not, he only lived in his apartment and was completely
separate from the apartment that we were trying gain access into.
Q And directing your attention to radio transmission Track 22
at 4:06:50 p.m., 1s this a broadcast that you made?

A Yes.

MS. LYNCH: Please play it.
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{Audio Playing at 00:33:57 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, after you made that radio transmission, the neighbor
opened the door. What happened next?
A He opened the main docr. I then went back and asked Gavin
for his keys again.
0 Is that Devin?
A I'm soxry; Devin. I -- I apologize. -- Devin for his keys
again. And then Anthony, I still had his keys. We tried to open
the main door but there was a deadbolt on top. We weren't able to
gain accesg to the apartment building.
Q And when you say the main door, are you talking about the
door into that apartment?
A Yes, I apologize. I'm talking about the -- We made entry
into the main door. Once you get in the hallway, we tried to gain
access into the apartment building door but we weren't able to.
0 aAnd the door to that apartment as one walks in the front dooxr
would be to the left or the right?
A It would be to the left-hand side.
0 Now, at this point who was trying to knock at the door and
gain entry?
A It would be myself and Officer Lee.
o] And at some point did you hear anything coming from insgide
the apartment as you were knocking?

A We did not hear anything at that time. It wasn't until later
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that we found that Alan was still in the apartment.

Q So, about how long a period of time were efforts made,
knocking on the door to determine if anyone was inside?

A Approximately a minute or more. We -- We kept banging real
hard, trying -- Officer Lee kept trying to make contact by talking,
asking Alan to please come to the door. We want to talk to him, we
want to find out his side of the story. You know, if -- He kept
trying to talk through the door, yell, in case he was further in
the apartment and we weren't sure. But we didn't hear anything
right away.

Q Now, at some point did you go over and speak to Mr. McDonald
and his girlfriend, Kimberly Bellino?

A I did. I -- While Officer Lee was still at the door, I then
went back and I spoke with Mr. McDonald and Ms. Bellino.

0 And where were they when this -- when these activities were
taking place?

A Through the entire time, they stayed in their vehicle. They
never exited. I asked them to stay there because they were
nervous to get close or be seen that they were there. They didn't
want to have any -- any further problems.

Q And can you describe for us what each of them told you
concerning what led them to call the police that afternoon?

A So, they told me that there was an incident the night prior.
And then they said that today Alan was extremely emotional. He --

They started arguing with Devin and tried to punch him a couple




";l'

I‘l
i
§

|

i

| ]
i
I

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

times. They then started to wrestle. B&aAnd then Alan threw a
speaker at Devin's girlfriend, Kim.

And then at that time Anthony, Alan's brother, came in and
broke it up. And they were able to exit the apartment at that
time, due to the fact that his brother came in and separated them.
0 Now, as you were talking to Mr. McDonald and Ms. Bellino,
what were other officers doing?

A Officer Lee was still standing by the door. Officer Fontes
was there, as well. And Officer Wilson was standing more in the
front of the gas station, where the kitchen windows were.

o] Now, was Officer Fontes on your shift or was he part of the
reporting 4:00 p.m. shift, to your knowledge?

A Officer Fontes was part of the reporting 4:00 p.m. shift.

0 Now, in terms of your presence at that location, did a fifth
officer, specifically Officer Vatcher, respond to that location?

A He did.

0 And was Officer Vatcher, to your knowledge, -- did he provide
you and other officers with information concerning the incident
from the prior evening?

A He did. He explained the incident from the prior evening and
that they were charging Alan with two counts of assault.

0 And with regard to his presence at that location, at some
point did you become aware that Mr. Greenough was in the apartment
and communicating with people outside?

A We did.
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0 And what -- Can you describe those circumstances?

A So, Officer Wilson was standing outside by the windows. I
was near the main entrance. The window that was closest to the
main entrance to the apartments is where I was near.

We found out -- We noticed that Alan was standing in the
window. Officer Wilson then was trying to communicate with Alan
through that window.

Alan was irate. He was extremely angry. He was yelling and

screaming and saying that he wasn't going to come out of the

apartment.
Officer Wilson kept trying to talk to him, to -- kept trying
to calm him down, try -- kept trying to ask him to just speak with

us and come out.
You could see Alan through the window. He was holding

something in his hand, waving it around. He made threats, saying

that if we were to come in there he was ~- he was going to attack
us with a pole. 2nd we continued to k -- keep trying to talk t --
talk to him and talk him through it, to -- to come out and talk
with us.

Q Now, could you from your vantage point outside of the

building see Mr. Greenough in the kitchen area?

A Yes. I ended up moving closer to Officer Wilson at the time
when I noticed that Officer Wilson was speak -- was trying to
communicate with Alan through the -- through the window.

Q Now, up until this time was it just you and Officer Wilson
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outgide, or was there anyone else in the vicinity of that window?
A At that time, Officer Vatcher was in the area. 0Officer Lee
was still inside by the doorway, trying to make communication.

And Officer Fontes was in the area, as well.
Q Could you see where the person you later found out was Mr.
Greenough's brother, Anthony, -- did you see him at all during

this time?

A I did. He approached me. We were talking and he said that
Alan -- This is when I found out that Alan was his brother -- I'm
sorry; I apologize -- Mx. Greenough was his brother. He said that

he was going to give him a call on his cell phone to try to talk
to him to have him come out to speak with us.

And I told him we would greatly appreciate that because
obviousgly, knowing from past history and now, Alan was very angry
and there was no calming him down at this point.

Q And when you say he was very angry, what observations did you
make that led you to form that opinion?

A His body language. He was waving around the item in his
hand. He wasg screaming. He was yelling so much that you could
see it in his face, the -- the anger. He was swearing. He was

making threats. So, that led me to believe that he was extremely

irate.
Q How close were you able -- Was the window open?
A The window was open.

o) Was there any screen in the window?
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A To my 1 -- knowledge there was a screen in the window.
Q Were you able to make any observations concerning his

physical appearance and condition as related to sobriety?

A At that time I did not make any determination. But I do know
that he had past -- a history with drug use and alcoholism.

Q Now, prior to this call had you yourself ever been to that
location?

A Yes, I have.

Q And was Mr. Greenough someone that you had previously had

dealings with?

A Yes, he was,.

o] Now, during this exchange between Mr. Greenough and Officer
Wilson, did you hear whether there was any reference to the fact

that Officer Wilson may have had a prior case involving Mr.

Greenough?

A During that time?

Q Yes,

A I don't recall.

0 Now, how long a period of time was Mr. Greenough engaged with

Officer Wilson through that window?

A Felt like a couple minutes that we were standing there trying
to communicate back and forth.

0 And how did that encounter end?

A Anthony tried to make a couple phone calls back and forth.

He as actually able to get in contact with Alan. Over the phone,
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you could hear Alan yelling. At ome point Anthony stepped away
from us. But while he was standing next to me on the phone, I was
able to hear him say, "Alan, come down. They just want to talk to
you. You -- You know, come out, they're not going to hurt you.*

Anthony, when he got off the phone with Alan, came over to us
and he warned us that 1f we tried to get into the apartment --
that Alan was going to fight us, that we should be prepared, that
he doesn't like police, and that he was extremely angry and, you
know, he was -- 1t was probably going to be a fight when -- if we
entered the apartment.

Q And was this conversation before or after Mr. Greenough had
actually come to the window?

A It was after Mr. Greenough came to the window.

Q So, was the window still open or did something happen to
change that?

A The window was still open.

Qo Now, can you tell us how long you remained at that window
area yourself?

A I was near that window area for the majority of the time that
we were there. If anything, I -- I may have walked over to check
on Officer Lee. But that was a only couple-feet difference.

Q And Officer Lee remained where?

A He remained in the main hallway once you entered the main
apartment door. He was standing outside of Alan's apartment door.

Q And could you determine where Officer Fontes or Officer
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Vatcher were at that time?
A Officer Fontes and Officer Vatcher were in the same vicinity.
We all were pretty much out front of the apartment building.
0 Now, at some point you mentioned that Mr. Greenough indicated
that he had a stick of some gort in his hand?
A Yes. He said it was a -- if -~ if we came in there he wasg
going to hit us with a pole.
Q And directing your attention to the radio transmission --
MS. LYNCH: If I might just have one moment.
THE COURT: Mm-hmm.
MS. LYNCH: Just find my --
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Were you present when Officer Wilson broadcast a radio
transmission reporting that conversation about the having a stick
or a pole?
A Yes, I was.
MS. LYNCH: And with the Court's permission if we could
please play on -- the recorded call.
THE COURT: Sure.
MS. LYNCH: That would be Track 30 from February 3rd of '18.
[Audio Playing at 00:45:37 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
0 And that was at 4:21:52 p.m.; is that right?
A Yes.

Q Now, as a result of that broadcast, was there a follow-up
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broadcast, Track 31, at 4:22:39?
A Yes.
MS. LYNCH: And if we could play that, please.
(Audio Playing at 00:46:52 Runtime -~ Disc 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

0 And so, at that point, who was that on -~- the speakexr on that
call?
A That was Officer Wilson speaking with Sergeant Silva. And he

was asking permission for the fire department to open the door.
0] Now, was there a follow-up broadcast at 4:22:58, Track 327
A Yes.
MS. LYNCH: If we could please play that.

[Audio Playing at 00:47:48 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, directing your attention next to a transmission, Track
33, at 4:24:57, did you receive this broadcagt?
A Yes.

(Audio Playing at 00:48:20 Runtime -~ Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, do you know who "80" is?

A Yes, that's Sergeant Silva.

0 And was Sergeant Silva working with your shift that day?
a Sergeant Silva was working --
Q Working eight to four?

A -- the eight-to-four. No, he was working the C shift that




day.

2 1 Q

A

Q
A

I'm -~ I apologize.

And what about
He was working the C-shift,

And who was that?
-~ got on shift.

Q
A

10
11
12

13

And what about 747
He was working the C-ghift.

Q
A

14

15

T

BY MS. LYNCH:
And that was broadcast at 4:24:57;

Q

16

1151"?
as well. He just --

That is Officer Savio.

And that is Officer Drauschke.

And the C-shift is?
I'm sorry; the C-shift is four to midnight.

HE COURT:
is that correct?

THE WITNESS:

Yes.
directing your attention to the timeframe of 4:29:21 p.m., did

Now, at some point after receiving that radio transmission,
Sergeant Silva, Officer Savio, and Officer Drauschke arrive at

showing you the Video C2,

that location?
17 | A Yes, they did.
And with the Court's permission,

18 1 O

19 | timestamp 1702:11, real-time 4:29:21 p.m.
[Video Playing at 00:49:58 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]

21
That 1is Sergeant Silva.

20

BY MS. LYNCH:
A

that's a black sports utility wvehicle pulling in?

2
So,

23 Q
A Yes.
And this white wvehicle, do you recognize that?

24
Q

25
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A I do. That's our ACO van, our animal control van. Getting
out of it is Officer Drauschke and Officer Savio.
o} Now, who is Officer Drauschke and who is Officer Savio?
A Officer Drauschke was the one driving the van, and Officer

Savio was in the passenger seat.

0 And does he appear to be the third officer joining the group?
A Officer Drauschke is the third person joining the group.
Q Now, at that point when those officers joined your group,

what happened when they approached where you were? Were you
congregated in that area?
A I was. We were updating the sergeant, Officer Drauschke, and
Officer Savio on where we were at this point. We also discussed
what happened prior. And we were trying to make a game plan to
gain entry into the apartment, as well.
Q Now, as Officer Drauschke, Officer Savio, and Sergeant Silva
joined the group of officers outside of the residence, did you see
where Anthony Perrotti went?
A I did not.
MS. LYNCH: Just to go back.
[Video Playing at 00:51:25 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

0O And looking at this video, can you see an individual under
the number --
A Yes, yes. I'm sorry; that -- that is Anthony.

Q And he is approaching the group just prior to Officer
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Drauschke joining the officers?

A Yes, he is. And then he is walking away £rom us.
o) Now, can you describe as you -- After you were doing that,
was your attention attracted to anything as the -- as you officers

were congregated down in that area?
A It was solely just speaking to the sergeant, at that point in
time.
Q But as you were talking, did something happen?
A Yes. Anthony ended up approaching us. He told us -- He
hustled towards us and told us that the -- there was a door that
was open. And we asked him what door was he speaking about. And
he told us that there was a door to the apartment building that --
you could gain entry from the gas station.

At that point in time, I asked him, "What door? I asked you
previously if there was a dooxr."

And he told me that -- that *The door is open, the door is
open. Come with me, come with me.™"

And we all followed.
QO Did he answer your question as to why you hadn't pointed that
out to him [sic] earliex?
A He did not, and I did not stop to follow up to get that
answer,

MS. LYNCH: Now i1f we could continue to roll the video. And
at this peint, will both screens work at the same time -- So, this

is -- shows outgide and in-time [sic] at the same time; is that
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correct?
MS. CUNNINGHAM: Yes.

[Video Playing at 00:53:18 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1)
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Individual coming intc the office is who, with the cap?
A That is Anthony.
o] And the man in the blue is who?
A That's Joe, the store owner, the gas station owner.

[Video Playing at 00:54:00 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, Officer Gooley, did you view this videotape in its
entirety? The clips of your time at the gas station?
A Yes, I did.
0 And did Mr. Perrotti enter that room at all before this last
time?
A He did.

[Video Playing at 00:54:54 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
) Now, what is happening as -- in this sequence, if you would?
A That was when he exited the final time and he came hustling

ftowards us, telling us that there was a door open: "There's a door
open. He left the door open.” And by "he," he was talking about
Alan. He g -- He said, "Come with me."

And I was asking him, "What door? It -- You said that there

waesn't another door."
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And he said, "Well, the door is wide open. Come with me."

0 And are you in this video?

A I am. I just entered the gas station. I have a baseball cap
on.

o] And if you can indicate, who is this person at the doorway?

A I apologize; I'm having a ~-- At first, it was Officer Wilson.

Then there was me, Officer Vatcher, and I believe at the very end
it was Officer Drauschke. And then the -- all the store employees
walked back in.
Q And did you see Sergeant Silva in that area?
A I'm sorxy; Sergeant Silva, yes.

[Video Playing at 00:56:06 Runtime - Dis¢ 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

A That is --

0 And who is exiting at that time?

A Anthony, Sergeant Silva, and Officer Drauschke.
Q And the gentleman --

MS. LYNCH: If we could just reverse.
MS. CUNNINGHAM: Yeah, rewind.
[Video Playing at 00:56:29 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
MS. LYNCH: Okay.
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, did the fire department ever make entry at that time, to
the apartment?

A They did not.
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[Video Playing at 00:56:59 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q So, for the record, we're now playing Camera 2. And at
approximately 1705:52, who goes out of camera view in the bottom

lower corner?

A That would be Officer Drauschke.

Q Now, at this time where are you?

A I am inside Alan's apartment with Officer Vatcher and Officer
Wilson.

o} Now, when you entered that door in the gas station, what room

are you in?

A You enter the main gas station and then there's, like, a
waiting room. And then there's the door to the apartment, which --
you enter into the kitchen,.

Q And from your vantage point as you enter that door, can you
see the actual door into the apartment from the hallway --

A Yes.

0 -- that was closed? &aAnd that was the door that Officer

Wilson was basically at throughout the encounter; is that right?

A Yes. Officer Lee wag --

Q Excuse me.

A -- at that door.

0 So, what -- when you walked into that kitchen area, what did
you see?

A The apartment was in disarray. Therxe was broken furniture
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everywhere, all over the floor. I tried -- The door that Officer
Lee was standing at was right in front of me. I tried to open
that door. I was unable to open it. It was almost like it was
locked by a key. So I was -- I wasn't able to let Officer Lee
into the apartment at the time.

(0] So, once you entered and walked acroes that length to that
door, what happened next?

A We then continued into a living room/bedroom, which would be
to the left-hand side. We're now at the back of the apartment.
We saw an open window. And through that window I saw Officer
Savio standing outside. At that point, that's when he dispatched
over the radio that the suspect may have exited through that

window. There was a screen on the ground outside.

Q Now, at that point did you see anything in the bedroom area
other than that broken -- open window?
A There were items everywhere. But Alan was not in that room

at the time.

Q Where did you go next?

A At that time Officexr Vatcher and I were clearing the
apartment. I said, "Let's just clear it just in case the window
was just open." We then proceeded to go up the stairs. We made
it to the top of the stairs and around the corner, where there was
a bathroom. I cleared a bathroom at -- and that's as far as I
got.

Q And when you say you cleared the bathroom, what do you mean
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A I walked in, I took a look around, I opened the shower
screen, and to make sure that no one was in there.

o] Now, to just stop you for a moment: had you ever been
dispatched to that house, that apartment, that particular unit,
for a call invelving Mr. Greenough in the past?

A I have.

0 And were you aware of otherxr célls that the Reading Police
Department had received for Mr. Greenough in which he would not
leave the house?

A I have.

0 Can you describe for the Court what those circumstances that
you are aware of were?

A So, one incident I was involved with, it was in the fall of
2017. We were dispatched for a 43-~year-old man that wasn't
feeling well. He was feeling dizzy. That happened to be Alan.
We arrived on scene --

Q And do you recall what time of day it was?

A It was at night. I'm sorxry; that was early in the morning,
for that incident. I don't know exactly what time.

0 But it was early morning?

A It was early morning, yes. I was working the overnight
shift. We arrived on scene. Alan was barricaded inside his
house, like he was on this day. He wouldn't come out. I ended up

speaking with his roommate, who --
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@) Was that Mr. McDonald?
A That was Mr. McDonald.

THE COURT: Can we just go back. When you say barricaded,
what do you mean by that?

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry; he wouldn't exit the building even
though he called for help. He wouldn't open the door, he wouldn't
come to the door. He locked himself inside the apartment.

THE COURT: Well, was the apartment locked when you got there
or did he lock it, do you know? Because barricaded means one
thing.

THE WITNESS: I'm sorry. The apartment was already locked
previous to my arrival.

THE COURT: OCkay.

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q So, if you would continue with --

A Yes, I'm sorry. So, I ended up speaking with the roommate,
Mr. McDonald. He told me that Alan wasn't feeling well, that he
called for help because he wasn't feeling well, that he had been
drinking, that he has a history of drinking and drug use, and he
was -- he had extreme emotions and he was angry, and he doesn't

trust the police so he might not come out for us.

At that point I asked Mr. McDonald to assist. I said, "Could
you go in there? Could you speak with him? Could you have him
come to the door?" I said, "We're here for his help. We would

like to get him help. The fire department's on their way. Can
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you go and calm him down, have him exit?"

Mr. McDonald was successful at this. He was able to have
Alan exit the building. But once he exited, Alan would not come
near us at all. He kept quickly jolting back and forth, running
away from us, even as I was trying to calmly explain to him that
we're help to get us help, that we want him to get checked up with
EFT [phonetic] 'cause he needed medical care.

He kept yelling, swearing, running away from us, saying that
he didn't trust us, that he was abusgsed by the police before.

And I kept trying to explain to him that we wexe here for
him, that no one wanted to harm him.

Eventually, we were able to make a compromise where if I had

my officers step back -- There was a few of us on scene, due to
knowledge of history of being there and -- and his behavior of
being aggressive and -- and fighting. I agree -- I asked Alan if

he would be evaluated by the fire department if we took a step
back. So, myself and the other officers on scene took a step back
and the fire department was able to get close to Alan to ask him
questions.

And then they ended up escorting him into the back of the
ambulance, where he was then trausported to Winchester Hospital.
An officer did follow in tow, though, just for safety reasons.

Q 2nd this wag something that you were familiar with and aware
of prior to that time?

A Yes.
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Q And was there a thought at the time on the part of police
that Mr. Greenough might nevertheless still be inside the house
when you were going through to clear it?
a When -- Back to --
Q This night.
A This night, yes. I ~-- I guestioned whether or not he was
still in the apartment, even though the window was open.
Q Now, as you were in that area, did you hear a radio
transmission from Officer Drauschke that was communicated at
4:33:13 p.m., which would be on Track 387
A Yes.
MS. LYNCH: If you would play that, please.
[Audio Playing at 01:04:19 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q And did you recognize who the speaker was?

A Yes, that was Officer Drauschke.

Q And were you able to -- When you heard that, what did you
hear?

A That Officer Drauschke had him in one of the vehicles.

Q And was he more specific as to what vehicle or wherxe?

A He was not.

Q Now, do you recall where in the apartment you were when this

radio brxoadcast was made?
A Yes. At that time, that's when I was upstairs. I just had

finished clearing the bathroom and I started to make my way back
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downstairs.
Q And at that point -- At some point after that, specifically
at 4:33:25, 12 seconds after the original broadcast, did you
receive another radio broadcast from Officer Drauschke?
A We did.
MS. LYNCH: And if you would, with the Court's permission,

play that.

[Audio Playing at 01:05:23 Runtime ~ Disc 2, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q Did you recognize who the speaker on that was?
A Yes, it was Officer Drauschke.
0 And go, that was 12 seconds after the broadcast from Officer

Drauschke: "Got him in one of the vehicles”?

A Yes.

Q And that would've been -- He arrived at approximately
4:29:43 p.m. That would have been a little more than 4 minutes

after he arrived at that location; is that right?

A Yes.

Q When you heard that radio transmission, what if anything did
yvou do?

A At that time we all immediately exited the apartment, exited

the gas station, and we all ended up running back towards the main
apartment door at that time. Everyo -- All -- All the officers at
that point were near the main apartment door. So, when we exited

we quickly assumed that it was that way. And then after a moment
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I realized that -- because I was familiar with the sector and the
gas station, that all the cars were to the other side. And I
quickly ran in the oth -- other direction.

MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission I'm going to ask if
we can resume the video from this point, as Officer Drauschke is
walking in that direction, continuocusly.

[Video Playing at 01:07:11 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q What does this show at this point?
A This shows Anthony running towards where the cars were, where
Officer Drauschke had walked earlier.
Q And what else does it show?
A It shows Officer Vatcher, Officer Wilson, and myself exiting
the gas station and heading towards the main front door of the
apartment building.
Q Now, other than Anthony, had anyone else xun in that
direction up until this point?
A No.
0] and who is this, in this photo?
A That is myself. I am running towards Officer Drauschke's
location.

[Video Playing at 01:08:48 Runtime - Disc 2, Track 1]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, you indicate that you ran down the stairs and you ran

out the same door that you came in; is that correct?
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A Yes.
0 When you were inside of the house, other than hearing Officer
Drauschke's radio transmission of shots fired did you yourself

hear any shots?

A Initially that night I thought I did. When guestioned later,

I -- I questioned whether or not I did.

Q So you don't know whether what you heard was actually a
gunshot.

A Yes.

Q But when you came out, you could not tell which direction you

were headed in.

A I could not, no.

0 And what was it that led you to run in the opposite
direction?

2 Like I said, when I exited, I immediately went where everyone

else was standing. I quickly realized that everyone was standing
there and they weren't sure either. BAnd I knew that the car --
where all the caxrs were parked were on the other side. So I

quickly went in the other direction.

Q Can you describe what you saw as you ran in that direction?
A Yes. As I was running, I kept calling for Officer Drauschke.
Anthony was coming -- running towards me. He kept yelling

that his brother was shot: "He shot my brother. He's dead.™
And I told Anthony to get back, to get back.

And I surpassed -- I went past Anthony and continued towards

.
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the vehicles. All I could see were vehicles at the time. I kept
yvelling for Erik.

And eventually I -- he answered me: that the suspect, Alan,
was down.

And I found him crouched down behind one of the vehicles.

0 So, was this him going over the radio or was this him just
yelling?

A It was just velling. We were just yelling to each other.

0] Now, where did you first see Officer Drauschke and Mr.
Greenough?

A It was in the lot. There was several vehicles in front of --

in front of them. And there was a red Hummer that was next to
them. They were in this kind of triangle area where Officer
Drauschke and Alan were kneeling on the ground.

Q Now, could you tell with the vehicle itself, was the door

open or closed on the vehicle?

A On the red Hummery, the door was open.

0 And which door was open?

A It was the pass -- front passenger's door.

0 And where were Mr. Greenough and Officexr Drauschke in

relation to the open door?

A So, the open door was in front of us. And Erik and Officer
Drauschke were facing that open door.

Q ﬁrik is Officer Drauschke.

A I'm sorry; I'm soryy. Officer Drauschke and Alan were facing
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that -- that door.
Q And what was Mr. Greenough's position that you could see?
A Mr. Greenough was on his knees. He was hunched over. His

head was towards the ground. And his right arm was behind his
back and his left arm was tucked in between him, in his sweatshirt
pocket, in between his upper body and his thighs.
Q Now, -- So there was one handcuff that was already on Mr.
Greenough's --
A There was not. Officer Drauschke was holding Officer [sic]
Greenough's right hand behind his back. Officer Drauschke was
kneeling.

And at that time I approached him. I asked if there were any
weapons.

He said he wasn't sure. Officer Drauschke said that he kept
ordering him to show his hands and he refused to take his hands
out of his pockets. 2And he also stated that Officer Greenough

kept making comments of "Shoot me, shoot me."

Q When you say Officer Greenough, are you referring to Alan
Greenough?
A I'm gorry; Alan Greenough kept making comments of -- of

"Shoot me, shoot me.”
At that time I told Officer Drauschke, "Are you okay?"
He said, "Yes.®
I told him I was going to holster my weapon and handcuff

Alan. At that point I holstered my weapon and I handcuffed Alan's




v =

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2~61
right hand. And then I‘grabbed his left hand. I had a hard time
getting it out of his sweatshirt. And when I finally did, I
cuffed his left hand, as well.
Q Now, is that -- as part of your training, to handcuff a

suspect in a situation such as this?

A Yes.
o) Once that was done, what happened next?
A At that time I realized that there was a bullet hole in

Alan's back. We quickly laid him on the ground. We pat -- patted

him down first for any weapons, to make sure there was no weapons.

Q And did you find anything?

A We did not.

Q What happened next?

A We then laid him on the ground. That's when all the other

officers proceeded to come over. And we started to perform CPR.
Officer Lee first requested for a knife. As I was trying to

get mine, Officer Drauschke was able to get his faster. We were

able to cut Alan's sweatshirt open so then we -- It ended up

exposing that there were two bullet holes.

Q So, when you say you saw two bullet -- you saw a bullet wound

in the back, was the back closest to you or visible to you at that

point, as he was hunched over?

A As he was hunched over, that was the most visible to me at

that time.

Q And then when he was laid down and the shirt was cut open,
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you were able to visualize two wounds?

A Yes, I was.

Q Can you describe what happened next?

A At that time, a med kit was there. We -- I was handed szome
bandages from the wmed k -- or, not bandages. Oh my God; I'm

sorry. Some cloth from the med kit.

0 Is that a compression dregsing?
A A com -- Yeah, a compression dressing; thank you.
Officer Lee -- We checked Alan's pulse. When I first -- When

Alan was first leaned over, he was gargling and making nociges.
But then when we laid him on his back, we checked his pulse and
there was no pulse. So we immediately started CPR. The CPR was
started by Officer Lee.

I put pressure on the wounds with some dressing. I applied
dressing to the back. But Alan's back was on the ground, so while
the compressions were happening, the ground -- I -- I left that
one to be compressed with the ground and his body weight while I
held the front.

I also assisted holding -- supporting his neck while Officer
Savio got the Ambu bag to supply oxygen to Alan.

Q Now, while this was geoing on, initially it was you and
Officer Drauschke; isg that right?

a Yes.

Q And as this was going on and unfolding, what was -~ what

observations did you make about Officer Drauschke and his ability
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to perform in those circumstances?

a So, at first he was assisting. And then at some point he was
removed from the situation. I believe it was by Officer 8Silva --
I mean, Sergeant Silva. And he was taken out of the -- the area
where we were.

0 But until that time, did he assist and --

A He did, yes.

0 Was he able to do so?
A He was able to do so, yes.
o] Now, at some point were you aware that fire medics had been

dispatched to that location?

A I was, yes.

Q And at some point did the fire dispatch respond?

A They did.

Q And once fire-rescue persomnnel responded, who tock over the

medical treatment of Mr. Greenough?

A So, at the time that they were responding and they were
preparing to come towards us, Officer Lee asked for a relief. I
th -- Due to the tight quarters where we were, Officer Vatcher and

Officer Lee had to switch places. 8o, I was up near Alan's head.
I went -- leaned over and started to do compressions while Officer
Lee and Officer Vatcher were switching places. Due to the poor
angle that I was in, Officer Vatcher quickly took over doing
compressions at that time.

Throughout the entire time, Officer Savio was still providing
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air.
Q Now, during this time when you were tending to Mr. Greenough,
did you make any observations concerning any odors?
[End of Disc 2, Track 1, at 02:19:01 Runtime]

[Beginning of Disc 3, Track 1, at 00:00:00 Runtime]
BY MS. LYNCH:
A I did. At one point I noticed that Officer Greenough ([sic]
was bleeding in his mouth. I turned his head to try to let the
blood -- and it also smelled like vomit and alcohol -- come out of
-- come out of his mouth so he wouldn't choke. His eyes were also
wide open during that time.
Q Now, once the fire-medics responded to that location, did you
perform a role in terms of maintaining the evidence in that area?
A Yes. Everything moved really guickly. The fire department
came in. They boarded Mr. Greenough and they got him to the --
they got him through this tight quarters that we were in. And
they ended up uncuffing him using my cuff key so they could
provide further medical aid.

He was put onto the ambulance but I stayed where I was the
entire time. I did not move. A lot of officers were being
decontaminated. A firefighter came over to me to decontaminate
me, as well, But I stayed on scene where I was, to preserve the
crime scene.

0 And when you refer to "decontaminate, " there was actually

blood that was transferred during the course of rendering this
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aid; is that right?

A There was, yes.

0 Now, with regard to the scene itself, did you note the
location of any ballistics-related evidence in the -- near the
vehicle?

A I did. As I -- As the sergeant was preparing to put everyone
on scene to protect the scene, I noticed that in wmy area -- that

there was two casings near me. I made note to make sure that no
one was in that area.

Q Now, with regard to your presence at that location, did you
remain there for a period of time until you were given another
assignment?

A I -- I was. I remained there until the scene was
photographed by Detective Holmes [phoneticl. BAnd then I was
relieved. It was a really cold night. They allowed me to sit in
-- in a cruiser for a few moments until I was told to go somewhere
else, further.

Q And did you go to the police station that night?

A We did. I was then cleared from the scene and I was told to
report directly to the police station.

Q Now, had vou been given any instructions concerning whether
you could discuss what you had observed with anyone?

A We were. We were strictly instructed not to speak to each
other, to report to the sergeant's room away from everyone else,

and to not discuss anything that had happened.
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o) And did you abide by those rules?
A I did.
Q That evening, early morning hours, did you give a recorded
interview to the state police and a member of the Reading Police?
A I did. Prior to that, T ended up going to the hospital to be
evaluated. 2And when I returned, I did an interview, yes.
o) Now, with regard to -- Strike that. I'm just going to show
you a series of photographs.

MS. LYNCH: I'm soxry, Your Honor; if I might just have a
moment .

THE COURT: No, of course you can.

MS. LYNCH: I'11l do these in shifts, if I might.

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q I‘m showing you this item. Do you recognize what that item
is?

A Yes.

o) And what do you recognize that to be?

A This is a picture of the East Coast Gas and the apartment

building attached to'it.
MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.
[Photo of Gas Station and Apartment Marked as Exhibit No. 8]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And is this a fair and accurate representation of the way

that area appeared on the evening of February 3rd?
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A Yes.

0 That next photograph before you, do you recognize what that
depicts?

A I do.

Q And what do you recognize that to be?

A It's the side of the apartment building.

Q And does that depict the window where you saw the neighbor?
A Yeg, 1t does.

Q And which window was that?

A It was the top left window.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that thig be admitted as the next
exhibit.
[Photo of Apartment Building Marked as Exhibit No. 9]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q And so, for purposes of the record, this is the window that --
A Yes, it is.
) -- you saw?

And with regard to the next photo that I placed before you,

do you recognize what that is?

A I do.
Q And what do you recognize that to be?
A This is the back of the apartment building where I saw the

back door. But that only leads to the first apartment. It
doesn't lead to Alan's apartment.

Q And did you continue further beyond that door to see the area
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where there was windows --

A I did.

Q -- and you see the block wall?

A Yes.

0 And when you went back there, were the windows opened or
closed?

A At the time, they were closed.
MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be the next exhibit, please.
[Photo of Apartment Building Marked as Exhibit No. 10]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q And this is the porch that you're referring to?
A Yes, it is.
Q T'm just showing you this photograph. Recognizing that the

window 1s now open, do you recognize what that depicts?
A I do. It's the back of the apartment building. BAnd that is
the window that was in the bedroom/living room area --
Q And that --
A -~ that we -~-
Q That was the one that you observed open when you went inside
the apartment?
A Yes, it was.

MS., LYNCH: 1I'd ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.

[Photo of Window Marked as Exhibit No. 11]

BY MS. LYNCH:
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Z2-69
Q And directing your attention to this, is this the window that

you looked out?

A Yes, it is.

Q I'm showing you that item. Do you recognize what that is?
A I do. That is the bedroom/living room area off the kitchen.
0 And does that depict the window that was open when you went

in?
A Yes, I'm sorry.

MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.

[Photo of Window Marked as Exhibit No. 12}

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And referencing Exhibit 12, that would correspond to this
window; is that right?
A Yes.
Q Now, I believe you indicated that you entered the apartment
that evening through the door inside the gas station; is that
right?
A Yes.
Q I'm going to show you this photograph and ask you if you
recognize what this photograph depicts.
A I do. It is the kitchen. And that is the door that enters
towards the gas station.
0 Okay. So, this would be viewing that door that you had

entered; is that right?
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A

Q

Yes, it is.

And is this a fair and accurate representation of the

condition as you found it that night?

A

Yes, it is.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be marked as the next

exhibit, please.

[Photo of Door Marked as Exhibit No. 13]

BY MS. LYNCH:

0

And so, for purposes of the record, the door that you're

referring to, what door is that?

A

That is the door that you can enter the -- from the gas

station into the apartment.

0

A

were

this

A

o]

A

And these windows here and here, what do they look out onto?
They look out onto the front of the gas station, where we
standing outside. But we were further down.

And showing you this next photograph, do you recognize what
photograph depicts?

I do.

And what do you recognize that to be?

This ig the main apartment door, the door where Officer Lee

was standing out on the opposite side.

Q

So this would be the vantage point as you are walking in from

the gas station?

A

This would be the vantage point if you were walking in from

the gas station, yes.
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o Those objects on the floor, is that a fair and accurate
representation of what -- where those objects were when you made
your way into the apartment that night?
A Yes.
Q I would ask that this be admitted as the next exhibit.
[Photo of Apartment Interior Marked as Exhibit No. 14]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q I'm showing you Exhibit 14. Do you know what these items are

that I'm pointing to, specifically the -~

A It was furniture. It was a table and chair.

Q And were they in that condition?

A Yes, they were.

O And I'm just going to show you some photographs that appear

to depict those objects at a closer vantage point. Do you
recognize what these photographs depict?
A I do. It's the broken table and chair.
Q Okay. And does this photograph appear to depict the window
through which you observed Mr. Greenough with the pole?
A It does.

MS. LYNCH: 1I'd ask that this be marked as the next exhibit.

[Photo of Apartment Interior Marked as Exhibit No. 15]

BY MS. LYNCH:
0 Now, in terms of this photograph, it appears to show two
windows. Which was the window through which you and other

officers were speaking to Mr. Greenough?
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2-72

A It was the window to the left, the one with the screen that
was up.

MS. LYNCH: And I'd ask that this next photograph be marked,
as well.

[Photo of Apartment Interior Marked as Exhibit No. 16]

BY MS. LYNCH:
0 And this area here, do you recognize what -- where I'm

pointing to now?

A Yes.

Q And what is that?

A That is the staircase that leads upstairs.

Q And concerning your observations, does this ~-- I'll just show

you these photographs. Does this appear to be a fair and accurate
representation of the condition of the bedroom where you observed
that open window?
A Yeg, it does.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that these be admitted as the next
exhibits.

[Photos of Apartment Interior Marked as Exhibit Nos. 17-18]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And so, with regard to this area, you described it as a
bedroom/living room combination; is that right?
A Yes.
0 We're looking at, here, what part of the room?

A You're looking at a sofa. But right behind it is the bedroom
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area.

Q And showing you Exhibit 18, -~

A That --

Q -- do you recognize what's depicted there?

A -- would be the living room.

Q Now I'm just going to -- I'm showing you these photographs.

Do you recognize what's depicted in these photographs?

A I do.

Q And what do you recognize that to be?

A The gas station. This is the waiting room.

0 And is that the door through which you entered --
A It is.

Q ~- the premises?

A That is the door that leads into the apartment building.

MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be marked as the next exhibit.
[Photo of Waiting Room Marked as Exhibit No. 18]

BY MS. LYNCH:

0 And so, with respect to Exhibit 19, does that indicate that

there is a -- steps that you have to climb up to enter the

residence portion of the premises?

A It does.

Q And the second photograph before you, do you recognize that

to just show the location of the television and the fish tank -~

A Yes.

O -- or the turtle tank, I should say?
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A Yes. It was located in that same room.
[Photo of Waiting Room Marked as Exhibit No. 20]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, at some point as you were rendering aid to Mr.
Greenough, did you do something with respect to the door of the
Hummer that had been opened?
A Yes. Before we started rendering aid, after I had placed Mr.
Greenough in -- in handcuffs, I noticed that the dooxr was open. I
did a quick scan of the door and the inside, and then I closed the
door because I was un -- unaware if there was any weapons inside
that vehicle. So, for safety I closed the door. And then we
proceeded to render aid.
[Pauge]
MS. LYNCH: I'm sorry, Your Honor.
THE COURT: No, that's okay.
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q gow, just showing you this photograph, do you recognize what
ig depicted here?
A I do. 1It's the gas pumps in front of the gas station.
0 Okay. And can you see in this photograph the window with the
television set on?
A I do, yes.
Q And is this a failr and accurate representation of the way
this appeared that evening?

A Yes, it is=s.
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Q Now, --

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be marked.
BY MS. LYNCH:
0 and I'm just going to point out an area to you.

[Photo of Gas Station Marked as Exhibit No. 21]

BY MS. LYNCH:
0 Now, with regard to this area that I'm pointing to now, what
was the ground cover in this area?
A There was all ice. It was actually a large section that was
covered in ice and snow.
Q And in terms of the premises itself, when you ran across the
area to where the Hummer was located, did you encounter areas that
had snow cover or ice cover as well?
A I did, yes.
Q I'm just going to show you this next photo and ask you i1f you

recognize it.

A I do.

Q And what do you recognize it to be?

A This area is to -- 1f you're facing the gas station, it's to
the left. There was a -- There was gome cars that were parked and

then there's a billboard sign that's off to the side.
MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be marked as an exhibit,
please.
[Photo of Lot Marked as Exhibit No. 22]

BY MS. LYNCH:
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2-76
Q Now, as one ig looking at Exhibit 22, what is the area of

along the right side of the photograph?

A That would be where the gas station is located.

0 Okay. So that's the side wall?

A That's the side wall, vyes.

Q Okay. And then this appears to be a container or a truck of

some form?

A Yes, it is.

Q And then the -- you see this vehicle that is a silver SUV?
A Yes.

0 And was that sign there, as well?

A Yeg, 1t was.

Q Now, showing you this next photograph -- these next two --

next photograph, sorry, do you recognize what that is?
A I do.
0 And the area where the Hummer was located, is that within

this photo frame but not visible?

A Yes.

Q And does that depict that sign?

A It does.

Q And showing you these next two photographs, --

MS. LYNCH: I'm going to move for the admission of this
photograph, please.
[Photo of Lot Marked as Exhibit No. 23]

BY MS. LYNCH:
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Q And with regard to Exhibit 23, where approximately or
relatively speaking would the Hummer be in this photograph?
A The car that's pulled in, the grey car, is a -- it looks like
a Toyota. The -- The Hummer would be behind or in front of that
Toyota, off to the righthand side, further back behind the
billboard. Actually, it's directly to the gide of that. I'm
sorry; I apologize.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be marked as the next
exhibit.

[Photo of Lot Marked as Exhibit No. 24]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q And can you tell us what this is that I'm pointing to right
here?
A Yes. That is a fenced-off -~ That's a fence that runs

across. But it doesn't go all the way; it stops shortly after the
billboard.
Q And with regard to the area in guestion, I'm going to show
you this. And is this a fair and accurate representation of the
approximate position of that vehicle when you approached it?
A Yes. It'g directly at the end of that fence line.
MS. LYNCH: 1I'd ask that this be admitted.
[Photo of Vehicle Marked as Exhibat No. 25]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, is this the position that these vehicles were in

relative to each other when you approached that night?
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A Yes.
Q Now, the area approaching this vehicle, did it appear to have
any snow cover or ice cover on that area?
A There was.
0 Now, when you approached the vehicle itself, you say that the
vehicle door was open; is that correct?
A Yes, it was. It was the passenger side front door.
Q And showing you this photograph, do you recognize what this
photograph depicts?
A I do, vyes.
Q And is that a fair and accurate representation of the
location of the orange Hummer at a point after you closed the
dooxr?
A Yes.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.

[Photo of Hummer Marked as Exhibit No. 26]

BY MS. LYNCH:

o] Now, referencing Exhibit 29, can you --
A 267
0 Can you indicate how far the door -- Was the door all the way

open when you --
A The door was -- was all the way o -- was all the way open.
0 Okay. And with regard to the area where first aid was

administered, is that depicted in this?
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2-79
A Yes, it is. It is right -- It was in that full space between
the orange Hummer and the fence, where you can see the blood on
the snow.
0 And showing you this photograph, do you recognize what is
shown in this photograph?
A I do. There is a AED that was brought over. There's also a
marking for where one of the casings were. There's plastic gloves
and compacts from the medical aid bag as well as a pack of

cigarettes and more medical aid material closer to the Hummer.

0 And does it show the front passenger door closed, of the
Hummer?

A It does.

e} And does it also show the stockade fence and its relative
location?

A It doeg.

MS. LYNCH: 1I'd ask that this be admitted as the next

exhibit.
[Photo of Scene Marked as Exhibit No. 27]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q The area that I'm pointing now, what is that?
A That is where the orange Hummer is. And that is the door
that was closed.
Q And with regard to the placard, Number 1, what do you
recognize that to be?

A That was where one of the shell casings were that I marked.
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2-80
Q I'm showing you this next photograph. Do you recognize what
this photograph depicts?
A I do. At this -- It's a different angle with the fence
alongside of you. It shows the Ambu bag, medical bags, the
Hummer, as well as other medical eguipment that was used. And the
-- And the shell casing, the one that was marked Number 1.
MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be admitted as a --

{Photo of Scene Marked as Exhibit No. 28]
BY MS. LYNCH:
o] I'm showing you Exhibit 28. Does that fairly and accurately
depict the area adjacent to that fence and the Hummer as you
observed it that night?
A Yes.
Q Now, I'm going to show you this next photograph and ask you
if you recognize what is depicted in that photograph.
A I do. Thisg is -- You're looking in between two vehicles.
There's that end of that fence line. There is medical equipment
as well as the second casing that was marked by myself.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be admitted as the next

exhibit.

[Photo of Scene Marked as Exhibit No. 29]
BY MS. LYNCH:
0 I'm showing you Exhibit 29. Does this appear to be a fair
and accurate representation of the distance between those two

vehiclesg?
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A Yes.
Q And does this also depict the stockade fencing that you
observed there?
A It does.
Q I'm going to show you this photograph. Now, I'm showing you
this photograph. Do you recognize that that photograph depictsg?
A I do.
Q And is that a fair and accurate representation of the
interior of the Hummer as the front passenger door is open?
A Yes, it is.

MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.

[Photo of Hummer Marked as Exhibit No. 30]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And showing you the next photograph that's before you, do you
recognize this to depict the open door with the understanding that
the tape on the side is not there at the time that you initially
saw 1it?
A Yes. The -- The door was open. The tape was not there but
the bullet hole was in the door.
Q And was this piece of equipment that is depicted immediately
to the right of the open door --
A Yes.
Q -- where it was situated?

A Yes, it is.
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MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be admitted as the next
exhibit.
[Photo of Hummer Door Marked as Exhibit No. 31}
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And with respect to the taillight here, was that a vehicle

that was behind the fence?

A Yes, it was.

Q And I'm just going to show you another photograph. 2aAnd does
this appear to be a fair and accurate representation of that

Hummer, the driver's side, and particularly the area in front of

it?
A Yes.
Q Now, can you see in this photograph the advertisement sign as

well as the side of the building?
A Yes, you can.
MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that thig be marked as the next exhibit,
please.
[Photo of Hummer Marked as Exhibit No. 32]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q And so, does this area depict the snow covering on the side,

driver's side of the Hummer?

A Yes, it does.
0 And this mound in the foreground, was that there?
A Yes, it was.

Q And this area to the left side of the photo, what is that?
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A That is the gas station.

Q And that would be the gide -- left side of the gas station?
A Yes, it's the left side of the gas station.

Q I'm showing you this photograph. Do you recognize what is

depicted in that photograph?
A Yes. It is the driver's side of the Hummer, the mound of
snow that we just talked about, and the side of the gas station as
well as everything behind that fence line.
0 Now, directing your attention to this area in the middle of
the photograph, do you know what that is?
A That is the top of the -- Mr. Greenough's apartment building.
) Okay. And does it also indicate the condition in terms of
vehicleg and debris in that area between the Hummer and the side
of that building that night?
A It dces.

MS. LYNCH: I would offer this photograph as the next
exhibit, please.

[Phote of Scene Marked as Exhibit No. 33]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q So, I'm showing you this item. What do you recognize where

I'm pointing now to be?

A That is the top floor of Mr. Greenough's apartment building.
Q And does this appear to be the side of the gas station?
A Yeg, 1t does.

Q And does this appear to be the fence?
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A Yes, it does.
Q And does this appear to be a stack of tires?
A Yes.

Q And other vehicles and garage-type --
A Yes.
Q -- materials?

Now, you indicated that at some point Officer Drauschke
provided a knife that asgssisted in removing the clothes from Mr.
Greenough; is that correct?

A Yes. That knife was provided by Officer Lee. It wasg then
kind of thrown off to the side, away from where we were, for
safety.

MS. LYNCH: If I might just have a moment, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. LYNCH: It is rather hot in here.

THE COURT: Absolutely. So, while you're doing that, --

Ms. McLean ~- and I should’'ve said this earlier. The only
people I'm allowing to take notes are the attorneys. So, I'm
going to have you hand those into the Court Officer, just because
there's a concern that the Court has about information being
released to anyone. So, there's -- These -- The proceedings are
being recorded and there'll be a report at the end.

THE COURT OFFICER: Judge, do you just want me to take a note
and destroy them?

THE COURT: Just be destroyed.




10

11

12

i3

14

15

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

THE COURT OFFICER: Okay.
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q I'm just going to show you these next few photographs and ask
you if you recognize what is depicted in them.
A I do. It is where the AED was located, the medical bag, the
shell casing, and the knife that was used to cut open Mr.
Greenough's sweatshirt. In this picture, it's a closeup of the
shell casing, the knife that was used which was Officer
Drauschke's knife that Officer Lee used, a gauze pad, and the
handle to the AED.
Q Thank you.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that these be admitted as the next
two exhibits, the contact shot and then the closeup, in that
order.

[Photos of Scene Marked as Exhibit Nos. 34-35]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q I'm just showing you Exhibit 34. Does this appear to be the
contact shot, wide angle?
A Yes.
0 And is this the item that was provided by Officer Drauschke
to cut open the clothing --
A Yes, it is.
0 -- in order to ~-

Now, with regard to your conversations with the brother,

Anthony, did he describe for you his efforts to attempt to get his
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brother to come out?

A He did. He came over. He gaid that he was going to give Mr.
Greenough a call. At one point he was able to make contact with
him. He also tried again later but was unable to make contact
with him. 2And that's when we were standing at the window, trying
-- trying to speak to Alan at the time.

Q Now, did you have any conversation with Mr. Greenough about --

And I'm asking now for what Mr. Perrotti told you about his brother

and i1if they went into the -- if he went into the house.
A Yes. When we were speaking, Anthony told me that if we tried
to -~ if we made -- if we entered the apartment building, Alan was

going to fight us, and to be prepared because he does not like
police.

Q Now, with regard to your involvement at that location, you
described one incident when you went to the house in oxrder to

assist in getting medical attention for Mr. Greenough. Had you

ever been to that location other than that -- on that one prior
occasion?
A I have, not for -- not for that. It was -- I've been -- T

drive through that area. I also, you know, do checks of that area
several times. But the past history of that place I also knew
from other officers responding.

Q Now, given the history of what you had learned regarding the
night before and your understanding of the prior incident with Mr.

Greenough, can you describe for us the tone and tact that the
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officersg, you and Officer Wilson and Officer Lee as well as
Vatcher and Fontes ~- had in attempting to get Mr. Greenough out
of the apartment?
A Yes. Arriving on scene, we -- we know Al -- Mr. Greenough
wasn't going to be willing to just come out and speak with us. We
all went there because of the fact that we know that it -- it --
there could be a ~-- a tussle and a d -- where Mr. Greenough
wouldn't come willingly or wouldn't speak with us. Orxr if we
couldn't locate him, we would need more officers to help look for
him.
Q And what was the tone of voice that officers used in talking
to Mr. Greenough and his brother and other people on the premises?
a It was professional. We arrived on scene. We -- I -- While
speaking with Anthony, I used the same tone of voice that I was
using right now, asking him questions. While speaking with Alan
through the window, it was a little bit louder. It was more
direct and affirmative, to try to get him to come out and speak
with us. We -- The wh -- The entire time, we were trying to
remain, you know, professicnal throughout the --

MS. LYNCH: If I might just have one moment.

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. LYNCH: I have no further gquestions, Your Honor.

MR. PASCIUCCO: I just have a few guestions.

THE COURT: Sure.

CROSS EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER KAYLYN GOOLEY
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BY MR. PASCIUCCO:

Q Good afternoon, Officer Gooley.
a Good afternoon.
Q My name is Peter Pasciucco. I represent Officer Erik

Drauschke. I just have a few questions for you today.

Now, you indicated on direct examination that you've worked
for the Reading Police Department for approximately five years; is
that correct?

A It will be, vyes, in ~-- in July.

Q Okay. And Officer Drauschke has been with the Reading Police
Department for that entire time; is that correct?

A Yes, he has.

Q Okay. And you've responded to radio calls with Officerxr

Drauschke prior to this incident; --

A Yes, I have.

0 -- is that correct?
Okay. And you've worked with him in the field on, I would
assume, numerous occasions?
A Yes, I have. We were on the same shift.
Q Okay. And you've observed him interacting with other police
officers, civilians, suspects, --
A Yes, I have.
Q -- that sort of thing, in the past?
Okay. Prior to this incident, did you have any concerns with

his abilities as a police officex?
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A No, I did not.

Q Did you have any concerns with his judgment and his approach
to the job?

A I did not. I actually fully s -~ supported him. I thought
he was a great senior officer. BAnd I actually recommended him to
be a field training officer.

0 Okay. And it's your understanding that he was a field

training officex?

A Yes, he was.

Q Okay. 2And what is a field training officer?

A It is a officer that goes and trains the new officers that
come in. The -- They ride with them, they evaluate them, and they

teach them how to do the job.
Q Okay. Now, turning to this incident, you were not present at
the gas station on Friday evening; is that correct?

A The night before? No, I was not.

Q Friday the -- That would be February 2nd, 20187
A Yes.
Q Okay. When you responded on Saturday at approximately

3:40/3:00 p.m., around that time, what was your understanding of
what had happened the evening prior?

A The evening prior, we were told that there was an assault
where Alan asgsaulted his roommate Devin and that there was charges
that were going to be pressed against -- two charges for assault

and battery -- against Alan.
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0 Okay. And that's Alan Greenough?

A Yes, it is.

0 Were you told anything about a table and chairs inside the
apartment?

A At the time, I -- I was not aware of all the details. I do

know that there was broken furniture and that they were offered
medical aid but it was refused. I didn't know the extent of any
injuries, as well.

Q Okay. Were you ever alerted to or notified as to how the
furniture inside the apartment came to be broken or smashed?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And can you just tell us a little bit about how you
were alerted to that.

A Yes. Officer Vatcher informed me that the tables and chairs
were broken during the incident the night prior, during the
domestic, by Alan.

Q Okay. So, when you responded to the gas station on Saturday
afternoon, your understanding was that there was probable cause to

arrest Alan Greenough?

A Yes.

0 Okay. And that was for the assault the evening prior?
A The assault the evening prior and what had occurrxed that
evening.

Q Okay. Now, when you arrived on scene, Officer Lee was

already there?
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A Officer Lee arrived first and I arrived shortly after him.
Q OCkay. How long were you on scene before you came into

contact with who you came to know as Alan Greenough's brother,

anthony?
A We were on scene for a couple minutes. I ended up speaking
with Anthony a ~- for a little bit. That's when I was trying to

gather a key to get into the apartment. And it wasn't until a bit
later on that I found out that they were brothers.

Q Okay. And how did you learn that? Did Anthony tell you that
or someone else tell you that?

A Anthony told me that.

Q Okay. Did you hear Alan Greenough say that he was -- had a
pole or a stick in his hand?

A I did. He was standing at the window, speaking with Officer
Wilson. And that's when he was holding an item in his hand. And
he said that if we were going to come in he was going to attack us
with the -- with the pole.

Q Okay. And you heard that through the window?

A I was outside. Yes, I heard it.

Q Okay. Could you see inside? Could you see Alan Greencugh
holding an item?

A I did, ves.

0 Okay. And what did that item look like?

A It was a dark item. It was in his hand. And he was holding

it up.
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Q Okay.
A He would also put it down, but he was holding it up.
0 Okay. In your training and experience asg a police officer,

you have a suspect on scene who's noncompliant; is that correct?

A Yes.

o] And you have a suspect who's possibly armed; is that correct?
A Yes.

0 Okay. You recall speaking with state police as well as, I

believe, a Reading detective the evening of the incident?

A Yes.

0 Okay. Do you recall during that interview telling them that
you had concerns with Anthony?

A T did. The interview actually happened the early morning of
the 4th. I -- I expressed my concern that when on scene at first I
thought Anthony just worked at the gas station and then I found out
he was his brother. He was trying to assist us but then I had a
question of whether or not he was actually helping us or trying to
help his brother. Even though I still continued to try to have him
make with contact to Alan to try to diffuse the situation, I -- I
did question it.

And then later, as the evening went on, I questioned how he
was coming from the same direction that Officer Drauschke after
the shooting had taken place. And I told him that he would be
someone that I would definitely interview.

Q Okay. And you told state police detectives that?
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A Yeg, I did.

Q Okay. And you were on scene -- You arrived to the scene
approximately 3:50; is that your recollection?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And you were let into the apartment by Anthony at

approximately 4:31:54; does that sound accurate?

A I was let into the gas station apartment door?

Q Correct.

A Yes.

Q Into the residence?

A Into the residence, yes.

o] Okay. So, your recollection is that you were on scene for

about 42 minutes before you were alerted by Anthony Perrotti that
there was a second door; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And who -- And when you gained access into the
apartment, who did you go int here with?

A It was Officer Wilson, myself, and Officer Vatcher. Behind
me was Sergeant 8ilva and Officer Drauschke, but they didn't stay.
They entered and then exited.

Q Okay. And when you entered the apartment or the residence,
you entered through that door that we observed in one of the
exhibits, right?

A Yes.

0 And that was in the gas station office?
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A That was in the gas sta -- It was the office, a waiting room,

and then there was the door that you could directly see through

all three.

Q Okay. And what do you recall seeing inside?

A The apartment?

Q Specifically, yeah. Did you -- You said you saw that the

apartment was in disarray. Can you just be a little more --

A Yes.
Q -- specific?
A There was broken furniture everywhere. There was other

pieces of furniture. There was, like, a living room chair that
was next to the stairs in the kitchen area. There was trash.
There were tools that were scattered around the apartment, as
well. The living room had empty cups and -- and other items that
were 8 -- all over the ta -- the living ryoom table. There was
blankets and clothes everywhere.

Q Okay. And when you went into the residence, you looked
around to see if Mr. Greenough was inside; is that correct?

A I did, vyes.

Q Okay. And you weren't -- Were you unable to find him?
A We were unable to find him.
Q Okay. At some point -- and I know we saw it on the video --

you came back outside?
A Yes.

Q Okay. Was that before or after you heard the radio call from
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Officer Drauschke that he had a -- that he had observed Mr.
Greenough inside a vehicle out --
A That was after.
0 That was after, okay.
And when you came outside, you immediately went to the left;

is that correct?

A Yep, 8 -- Yes; I'm sorry. When I came outside, if you're --
the s -~ gas station was behind me, I immediately went to the left
at first.

Q Okay. And you observed the video that was played earlier.

And you could see that Mr. Perrotti had immediately ran to the
right; is that correct?

A Prior to my exiting the building, on the video I was able to
see that he had went to the right, while when I exited I went to
the left.

Q Okay. Do you have any understanding as to why he immediately
went to the right?

A I do not, no.

Q Okay. Do you have a belief as to why he went to the right?
A I believe he knew that his brother had exited the building.

I believe that he knew his brother was in that direction. He was
the only one that went in that direction, while everyone else was
still to the left. I believe that -- that he knew his brother was
over there.

o] Okay. Now, you had a couple of past dealings with Alan
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Greenough; 1is that correct?

A Yes.

¢} Okay. But it was your understanding that Mr. Greenough was
not fond or did not like having police within his presence?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And that was your understanding from prior incidents.

But you were also told that by Mr. Perrotti that evening; is that

correct?
A I was, ves.
Q Okay. Now, when you arrived to Mrx. Drauschke and -- Officer

Drauschke and Mr. Greenough, did you ask Officer Drauschke what
had happened?

A I didn't specifically ask him what happened. I just said --
I asked him 1f there was a weapon. I asked him if he was okay.
And T --

He proceeded to tell me, without me asking, that he had
ordered Mr. Greenough to show him his hands several times and that
he wouldn't; and that Mr. Greenough kept saying, "Shoot me, shoot
me. "

Q Okay. And where was Officer Drauschke when he made those
statements to you?

a He was holding Mr. Greenough's right hand behind his back.

He was crouched down as well as -- Mr. Greenough was at that point
on his knees, crouched down as well.

Q Okay. And have you been -- Have you received training use of
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force?
A Yes.
Q And have you received any training, whether it's general oxr

specialized or specific in officer-involved shootings?

A For use of force, vyes.
Q Okay. And I believe you testified to it on direct
examination, but -- handcuffing and individual who has been shot

by police, is that a normal protocol?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And why is that?

A It'sg for safety. We didn't know if there was any weapons.
And immediately we were placing him in handcuffs to make sure that

he wasn't able to reach for anything. &And then, directly after

handcuffing Mr. Greenough, we -- we searched him for weapons.
0 Thank you very much, officer.
A Thank you.

CROSS EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER KAYLYN GOOLEY
BY THE COURT:
o} So, officer, I just have a couple of questions.

When Assistant District Attorney Lynch asked you, you said
you could see Mr. Greenough through the window: "He was waving
something in his head. He said if we come in he would hit us with
a pole."™ And then you just testified in response to what counsel
just asked you, "He said he would attack us with a pole."™ BAnd you

gaw "a dark item" in his hand.
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Did you assume that it was a pole because that's what he told
you? Or did you see a pole? Or did you just see a dark item?
A I saw a dark item, and he said "a pole.™
Q And you also said when you first encountered him you
degcribed him as being angry and "There was no talking him down.
He was yelling and threatening us.”

What was he yelling and what was he threatening, other than
what you testified to with regard to the pole?
A I'm sorry; that he was yelling that he didn't want to come
out, that he didn't like the police, he didn't trust us, and he --
he just kept yelling that he wasn't going to exit the building and
speak with us.
Q Thank you.
A Thank you.

MS. LYNCH: Just briefly.

THE COURT: Sure.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER KAYLYN GOOLEY

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Officer Gooley, were you subsequently shown an item that
appeared to be a table leg?
A Yes, I was.
Q And in terms of the size and shape of the item that you saw
Mx. Greenough handling, how would you compare that item?
A After seeing that, I would compare it as the item that he was

holding in his hand the day of the incident when he was in the
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window waving an item around.

Q And did it have the same size and shape?
A It did, vyes.

Q Thank you.

THE COURT: Officer, you understand that you're under a
sequestration order. You're not to discuss this testimony with
anyone outside of the attorneys in this matter until further
orders are received from the Court. Do you understand?

THE WITNESS: I do understand.

THE COURT: Thank you very much. You're excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ms. Lynch, I wanted to make sure before we break
for the recess -- I did not give all the other witnesses a
sequestration order. I'd just like to have them come in and do
that, and then we can break for lunch. Okay?

[Witnesses entering]
[WITNESSES, Sworn.]

THE COURT: Okay. 8o, all witnesses who have been called to
testify into this inquest matter are under a sequestration order.
You are not to discuss your testimony with anyone outside of the
attorneys until further orders are received from this Court. Does
everybody understand that?

THE WITNESSES: Yes.

THE COURT: Yeah, thank you very much.

We're going to take the Jlunch recess, so everyone's excused
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now for lunch. We'll be back in session at two o'clock. Thank

you.
[Court in Recess at 00:59:41 Runtime - Disc 3, Track 1]
[Back on Record at 00:00:09 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]
THE COURT: All right. Ms. Lynch, you can call your next
witness.

—-MS. LYNCH: Thank you. Off;ceg Seéﬁ Wilson.
[OFFICER SEAN WILSON, Sworn.]
DIRECT EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER SEAN WILSON
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Good afternoon, sir. If you would please state your name and
spell your last name for the record.
A Good afternoon. My name is Officer Sean Wilson. The last

name is spelled W-I-L-S-0-N.

o] What 1s your occupation, sir?
A I am a police officer with the Town of Reading.
Q How long have you been a Reading police officex?

A Approximately 13 years.

0 Are you presently a member of the military?

A Yes, I am, ma'am.

o} And what branch?

A The Coast Guard Reserves.

Q And as a member of the Coast Guard Reserves, have you been
recently deployed to a mission for the next year?

A Yes, ma'am.
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Q And where is that?
A Guantanamo Bay, Cuba.
Q And prior to your service in the Coast Guard, have you been a

member of any other military branch?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 And what was that?

A I was in the Marine Corps.

Q And how long were you in the Marine Corps?

A For 10 years.

Q And in terms of your ten-year service with the Marine Corps,
you also -- did that ever overlap with your service as a Reading

police officer?
A No, ma'am.
Q So you concluded your service to the Marines and became a

Reading police officer and then subsequently joined the Coast

Guard?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q Now, gir, in terms of your experience, other than the police

responsibilities did you have any law enforcement responsibilities

in the wmilitary, as well?

A Yes, ma'am, I worked in the brig. I was a brig guard my last
enligtment in -- in the Marine Corps.

Q And how long a period of time were you in that position?

A It was approximately six to eight years, give or take.

) Now, sir, directing your attention to Saturday, February 3rd
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of 2018, were you working that day with the Reading Police?

A Yes, ma'am.
Q What were your hours that day?
A I was working overtime originally. I started my shift at

8:00 a.m. and I was supposed to get off at 4:00 p.m.

0 Now, on that particular day who was the officer in charge of
the dayshift at the Reading Police?

A That would've been Lieutenant McKenna.

Q And on that particular date what was your assignment with the

Reading Police?

A I was the patrol, Sector 3 of the Town of Reading.

o) and as such, is that a uniform or plain clothes assignment?

A It's uniform.

Q And were you on foot or in a vehicle that shift?

A I was in a marked police cruiser,

Q And in that assignment were you alone or with a partner?

A I was by myself.

0 Now, you indicate that you were in Sector 3. Is Sector 3 a
part of -- Strike that. Is 1462 Main Street, the premises located

there, business and residential, is that within your sectox?

A No, ma'am, it's not.

0 On this particular afternoon, directing your attention to the
timeframe approximately 3:46 p.m., do you recall where you were at
that approximate time?

A Yes, ma'am. We got dispatched to a domestic disturbance
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call.
0 Now, with regard to that dispatch, when you received that
dispatch to the domestic disturbance call do you recall where you

were physically situated?

A Yes. I was in the roll call, doing a report from earlier in
the day.
o] And did you see any other officers on your shift at the

station when you received that transmission?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q And who was that?
A That would've been Officer Kaylyn Gooley.
Q Now, with regard to that dispatch, direct your attention to
Track 2 of the recorded callsg for February 3rd of 2018.

MS. LYNCH: Can you please play that, with the Court's
permission.

fAvdio Playing at 00:04:08 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q Now, Officer Wilson, what is your call signal for the radio?
A 66 .
O Now, directing your attention to the time 3:47:22, Track 3, -

MS. LYNCH: If vyou would play that.

BY MS. LYNCH:

0 -- whether or not you received this while you were en route
to that call.

[Audio Playing at 00:05:05 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]
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BY MS. LYNCH:
0 Now, given your location at the Reading police station, about
how far away is it from the station to the call at 1462 Main
Street?
A I would say drive-wise it's maybe 4 to 6 minutes. Not -- Not

even that. Probably 3 minutes.

Q Now, at some point did you arrive at that location?
A Yes, I did.
Q And in the course of your experience, were you familiar with

that location?

A Yes, I was.

Q How were you familiar with that location?

A There was a alarm call that I responded to, not sure when,
but numerocus times. So --

O And prior to your receiving this radio transmission, had you

received any information at roll call when you responded to duty

on February 3rd about what had happened the night before?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And what specifically were you told?

y:\ There -- There was domestic situation there the night before
and that there was probable cause to arrest a -- a gentleman by

the name of Alan Greenough.
0 And was Mr. Greenough a name that you were familiar with
prior to that call?

A Yes, ma'am.
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Q 2nd how were you familiar with him?
A I've arrested him one time before. And I've dealt with him
numerous times on -- on motor vehicle traffic stops and just

different investigations that I was involved in.
0 And with regard to this time when you placed him under

arrest, approximately when was that in relation to February 3rd of

20187
A That was about seven years age from that date.
0 Now, other than you, were other -- did other officers respond

to that gas station that afternoon?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 And who were the other officers that initially went on that
radio -- on that original radio transmission?

A It was Officer Mike Lee, Officer Kaylyn Gooley, and then
myself.

0 Now, at some point while you were en route to that location,

did you receive a radio transmission that the reporting party was
no longer at he address?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Did you continue to call at that point?

A Yes, I did.

Q At sowe point were they asked during -~ requested during that
radio transmission -- did officers request that they be asked to
come to the location to talk to the officers?

A Yes, ma'am.
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0 Now, directing your attention to the timeframe of 3:50 p.m.
or thereabouts, do you recall whether you and other officers were

responding at that approximate time?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Now, who arrived first, second, and third, in that order?
A Officer Mike Lee was the first one one scene. And then it
was Officer Kaylyn Gooley. And then I -- I arrived third.

Q And was this all within a short pericd of time?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 Now, as you were arriving, did you receive a radio

transmission from Sergeant Pat Silva, specifically Track 10 at --

on February 3rd of 2018?
MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission if I could play that.
{Audio Playing at 00:08:36 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

o} Now, what is the Lobster Claw?

A It's a seafood restaurant at the North Reading/Reading town
line.

Q And is that on Main Street?

A Yes, it 1g, ma'am.

0 Now, at that point what did you and Officer Lee and'Officer

Gooley do once you first arrived at the premises?
A At that point we attempted to knock on the -- the door to
what we thought was the residence.

0 And the door that you're referring to, was that an interior
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or an exterior door?

A That was an exteriox door.

Q When you knocked at that door, did you receive a response?
A No, we did not.

Q Did you try the door handle to gee if it was locked or
unlocked?

A Yes, ma'am. It -- It was -- It was locked.

Q What happened next?

A I -- I recall trying to look into the -- any of the windows
and remember seeing that none of the windows were open.

Q Now, in order to do so, where did you go to look at? Which

windows? Where were they situated?

A The windows to the left and to the right of the door. And
then I walked around to the ~- to the right of building, as you're
facing it, all the way into the back, into what was -- got too

woody that I couldn't walk a complete 360 around the building.
Q And with regard to that walk around the perimeter of that

side of the building, did you observe any of the windows and their

condition?
A Yeah. All the windows were shut and either the blinds ox the
shades were -- were closed so you could not see any -- anything

into the house.
Q Now, just showing you what has previously been admitted as
Exhibit 8, do you recognize the area that is depicted in that

photograph?
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A Yes, ma'am.

Q And is the front door depicted in that photo?

A Yes, ma'am.

o] And what is the condition of the door as it's shown in the
photo?

A I believe it's open right now.

o] And so, that door was originally closed when you --

A Yes, ma'am.

Q ~- first showed up?

And in terms of these windows on the left side, were they

open or closed?

A Those were closed, ma'am.
Q And were the shades drawn initially, those blinds?
A Yeg, ma'‘am.

o) What about the windows to the right of the door, both on the
first level and the upper level?

A They were closed, as well.

Q Now, did you walk around the side of the building, to the
right of the front door?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 And those windows that are depicted -- appears to be three --
what was their condition?

A They were closed and shut, as well.

Q Now, showing you what has previously been admitted as Exhibit

10, do you recognize what is shown in Exhibit 107
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ma'am.
And what do you recognize that to be?
That would be the d -- the door in the
And is this the back of the building or?
Yeah, that's the back where it's all wooded and ~-

What was that item?

A
Now, do you see this item or object here --

o
A

Q
A
Q

-- that I'm pointing to?

Yes, ma'am.
I -- I believe that's a motorcycle or a moped
And is that the location it was in when you walked back

10
there?
Yes,

11

A
Q

Showing you what has previously been admitted as Exhibit 11,

12

ma'am.
13
did you observe the condition of these two windows when you went

14
back there?
ma'tam.

15
Yes,

16 | A

And at the time that you looked at them, were they open or

does that appear to

And were the blinds or curtains closed or shut?

17 o
18 | closed?
19 1 A They were closed.
20 1 Q
21 { A Yes, ma'am.
22 {Q And this item that I'm pointing to here,
23 | be a part of that motor bike?
24 | A Yes, ma'am.
Now, in terms of the area directly ahead,

Q

25

can you desgcribe
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what this area was, where I'm pointing?
A Yeah. It was the back of a gas station. So, there was a
bunch of, like, propane tanks or some type of tanks and -- and

various cylinders and canisters that made access kind of tough.

Q Now, did you yourself walk back there and observe its
condition -~

A Yes, ma'am.

Q -- that night?

A Yes, I did.

Q I'm showing you this photograph. Do you recognize what is

depicted in that photograph?

A Yes, ma'am.
Q And what do you recognize that to be?
A That's the back of the gas station where it was hard to

access going all the way around.
Q and is that a fair and accurate representation of the way it
appeared to you when you walked back there to see if there was any
activity within the apartment itself?
A Yes, ma'am.

MS. LYNCH: I would ask that this be marked as the next
exhibit, please.

{Photo of Back of Building Marked as Exhibit No. 36]

BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, once you made that observation, what if anything did you

do at that point? Did you remain in the back, or where did you
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go®?
A No, I went back to the front of the building.
Q When you went back to the front of the building, was -- did
you see Officer Gooley or Officer Lee?
A Yes, I did.
Q And where were they?
A They were at that front door, trying to -- sgtill continuing
to knock, announcing their presence.

Q And that --

A And --

0 -- was still the exterior door?

A Yes, ma’am.

Q Now, at some point did you announce your presence? That is

to say, in addition to knocking did anyone identify themselves or
who they were as they were knocking at the door?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And what was that?

A We announced, "Reading Police."

Q And were you told why you were knocking -- did you say why
you were knocking at the door? Did any of the officers say why

they were knocking at the doox?

A I believe we might’ve yelled the name Alan. If he was in
there -- "We just want to talk to you," if I remember correctly.
Q Now, after walking around the building at some point did

anyone working in the gas station approach you and other officers?
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Yes.

And did you know who that person was, prior to his

approaching you at the station that afternoon?

A

Q

A

Q

A

No, I did not.

Did you later learn who that was?
Yes.

And who was that?

That would've been Alan Greenough's brother. There was a

couple people that approached me.

Q

A

Q

A

Did you speak to Mr. Greenough's brother?
Yes.
And what was your conversation with him initially?

Initially, he -- he basically stated that his brother was

involved in a domestic with the neighbors, he had been drinking,

and that the domestics happen all the time and he's just being,

you know, his typical self.

Q

Did he make any reference to you about the incident the prior

night or in the past?

A

Q

I -- I don't recall, ma'am, at the time.

Now, what if anything did you tell Mr. Greenough's brother

about your reason for being at the house?

A

I basically stated that we were there for a disturbance call,

a domestic issue, and we wanted to speak to Mr. Greenough to find

out his version of the story, what happened.

Q

Now, after you spoke to Mr. Greenough's brother, did he go
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about his business or did he remain there with you at that time?

A It was back and forth. He would leave and then come back and

talk to us and then leave and then come back and talk to us.

0 Now, at some point did a fourth officer join you and the
others at that location?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And who was that?

A That was Officer Fontes, Zach Fontes.

0 Now, as part of your involvement did you learn that Officer
Fontes was originally dispatched to meet the parties at the

Lobster Claw?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And that at some point he had been requested to come back?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And were you told that the witnesses would be asgked to report

to the location?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q At that point did you know whether or not Mr. Greenough was

still in the apartment?

A I had no clue vyet.

Q Now, at some point after you were there for a period of time,
did you and your fellow officers gain access into that -- from
that exterior -- through that exterior doorway?

A Yes, ma'am.

O Do you remeuwber the circumstanceg?
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A I -- I believe it was one of the gas station clerks. Or it
could've been the roommates. I don't remember it correctly right
now. But they brought us a key to that front door and ~-- and --
and we were able to open up that front door.
Q Do you recall whether or not a neighbor came down and opened

the dooxr?

A That's right, yes, it was a neighbor.
Q So, once that door was opened, what did it open into?
A It opened up into basically a hallway where there was a -- a

door on the left, and I believe a door straight ahead.
0 Showing you this item, Officer Wilson, do you recognize what
that photograph shows?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q And what is that?
A That's the hallway entryway. And then the door on the left
is right there.
0] And is that a fair and accurate representation of the area
that evening?
A Yeg, ma'am.
MS. LYNCH: I'd ask that this be marked as the next exhibit.
[Photo of Apartment Vestibule Marked as Exhibit No. 37]
BY MS. LYNCH:
o] And referencing Exhibit 37, is this the exterior door that
you were trying to gain entry through?

A Yes, ma'am.
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is
to the left side of

And the door to the apartment that you were knocking at,

Q
this depicted in this area where I'm pointing,

the picture?
wa'am.
Now, who was knocking at that door?

3
A Yes,
Q
That would've been Officer Mike Lee.
And where were you when he wag knocking at the dooxr?
I was basically at that entryway to the first door.
if not between

A

Q
A
And what about Officer Gooley?
me and Officer Lee and -- me and m -- and Officer Lee.
But I would imagine he was in

Q
Sh -- I believe she wag in the same vicinity,
And do you recall where Officer Fonteg was at that time?

10 (A

11
12 0]
13 | A I don't remember specifically.
the area close to us or near us.
at some point did you and other officers take any steps
to see if there were any other means of exiting or entering the
That's earlier in the night when I -- earlier in
I walked around to see if
And T

14
Now,

il

15 Q
I --

16
apartment?
mafam.
there was any other doors or accessways to the building.

A

18
They were all -- Everything was locked and the
could you --

17
Yes,
the call, when I first got there.
could you determine whether

19
20

2}
as you were attempting to knock on the door,

couldn't see any.
blinds were all shut and closed.

22
Now,

0

23
once you got into the interior hallway,

24
there was anyone in that apartment?

25
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A No, you could not. No one was responding to our knocks.
Q Did you receive use of a key from -- you or other officers,
from the roommates or the gas station personnel for that door, to
possibly txy to open it?
A I -- I remember something about a key. But I'm not sure how
we obtained it. And I'm not sure how we even --
Q And did it allow you into that door?
A No, it did not.
Q At some point were you in communication with Sergeant Silva
concerning what had been transpiring up to that point?
A Yes, ma'am.
0 Were you informed at 4:01:23 by radio transmission,
specifically Transmission No. 15, that other officers were coming
-- another officer was coming?
A Yes, ma'am.

MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission, I could play this.

[Audio Playing at 00:21:13 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

0 Now, Officer 86, do you know who Officer 86 is?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And who is that?

A That'd be Officer Matt Vatcher.

Q And did Officer Matt Vatcher arrive at that location?

A Yeg, he did.

o) Now, as this was going on, at some point did you become aware




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2-117
that Mr. Greenocugh was in the apartment itself?
A Yes, ma'am.
9] And how did you first become aware that he was actually

inside the apartment?

A Through his brother. His brother let me know that he was
inside.

Q And what did his brother say to you at that time?

A I don't recall specifically what he said. But he stated he

was on his phone with his brother, talking to him on the phone.

Q And did he indicate that he was trying to get his brother to
come to the door and open it up?

A Yes, ma'am.

0 And did he I don't know that he told you [sic] that you just

wanted to talk to Mr. Greenough?

A Yes.
Q Did he tell you what Mr. Greenough said in responge to that?
A Yes. He -- He stated that he -- he didn't want to get beat

up by the police and that he mentioned sowme incident that happened
in Winchester prior, that he -~ that he did get beat up by the
police. &nd -- And I expressed that, you know, we're not here to
beat up anyone; we just want to talk to him and get his side of
the story.

0 And did you ask him to just have him come to the door or
window?

A Yeg, ma'am.
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Q Where were you when you were having this conversation with
the brother who wag on the cell phone?
A W -- We were right out in front of the -- the apartment/gas
station. We were, like, in the front area.
o] Now, when Mr. Greenough's brother was on the phone with his
brother, could you hear any part of the conversation or sounds
coming from the other end of the phone?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q What could you hear?

A I -- I heard him yelling, you know, "No, I'm not coming to
the door. They're not coming in. I'm not coming out." And then
he mentioned also that "I'm -- I'm not getting beat up." He -- He

-- And I remember that Winchester incident where he mentioned that
he got beat up by the cops in Winchester.
Q Did you know anything about an incident in Winchestexr?

A No, I did not.

Q Do you have any information about that event?

A No, I do not.

0O Now, in terms of that interior office -- strike that -- of
the building -- At some point you obviously came out to have this

conversation with Mr. Greenough's brother; is that right?

A Yeg, ma'am.

Q So, did -- was there one officer who basically throughout the
interaction was in the hallway itself?

A Yeg, ma'am.
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Q And who was that?

A That was going to be Officer Mike Lee.

Q And then you were between both places?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q Outside and inside?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q At some point after that conversation did you receive word

that Mr. Greenough was coming to the window? Or how did you first
become aware of that?

A He agreed to speak to me through -- through the screen of --
of one of the windows.

0 And at that point did you observe the condition of that

window change in any way?

A Yes, ma'am.
Q What did you observe?
A The blind or the screen went up, whatever one it was. I

don't recall at this time. And then I could see Mrx. Greenough
through an open screen.

0 Was the window itself open or closed?

A The window was, I believe, open. And it was just a screen
that we were talking through.

Q So, do you know if that window had been opened by Mr.
Greenough? Or was it always open in the time up until that point?
A No, that was opened by Mr. Greenough.

Q And in terms of the location of this window in relation to
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the front door, where ~-- which window was that?
A That would be the first window to the left as -- as ~- of the
front door.
Q And in terms of that window, when you went to that location --
Strike that. Were you able to speak to him through that window?
A Yes, ma'am.
Q That may be somewhat obscured. In terms of Exhibit 8, do you

see these windows where I'm pointing, --

A Yeg, ma'am.

O -~ one and two?

A Yep.

0 Which of those two windows was that window?

A The one to the right.

Q So, the one that is partially obscured by the porch?
A Yeg, ma'am.
Q And I'm just going to show you what has previously been

admitted as Exhibit 15. Do you recognize what room this is?

A Yes, ma'am. That was the room directly behind the window
that I was talking to Mr. Greenough in.

Q And in terms of the window that you talked to Mr. Greenough

through, is that window depicted in this photograph?

A That's the view that we're looking through.
Q Okay. So, this window with blinds partially up ---
A Yep, right there, ma'am.

Q -~ 1is that window; is --
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A Yes.
Q -- that right?

Now, at that point, where did you posgition yourself?

A I was right on the other side of that window.

Q And how tall are you, sir?

A I'm approximately 612",

Q And at 6’2" were you able to gee in that window or was it

above your head?

A No, I could see into the window.

Q Did you recognize the person inside that you were talking to?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q And who did you recognize that to be?

A Alan Greenough.

0 And can you tell us, in terms of your interaction with Mr.

Greenough at that point, what happened when he opened that window?

A He -- He recognized who I was. He -- He immediately said,
you know, "You're the guy that arrested me seven years ago." And
he -- he informed me that he beat that charge for possession of
heroin.

Q What did you observe about his demeanor or tone as he was

speaking to you?

A He was very enraged. I mean, he had bloodshot, glassy eyes.
You know, I could smell alcohol emanating from his breath. He --
He was just -- He was just enraged. Very angry person.

Q Now, at that -- Based upon your observations, did you form an
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opinion at that point as to whether or not Mr. Greenough was under
the influence of any alcohol or drugs at that time?

A Yes, ma'am. It was pretty evident to the indicators that I
observed that he was under the influence of alcohol and some form
of a narcotic.

Q Now, at that point did you say anything to Mr. Greenough in
terms of interacting with him?

A I -- I believe I mentioned, you know, that the incident
happened seven years ago and the reason why I'm here right now is
to find out, you know, what happened -- what happened today and
what caused us to show up at that residence.

Q And at some point did he respond to that?

A Yes, ma'am.

o] What did he say?

A He -- He s -- basically said -- You know, he showed me the
room and goes, "Look at it. Look at this. This place is a mess.
They destroyed this -- this place.” And he also mentioned
something to the fact that the two roommates were in his room
messing with his stuff at one point and that's what caused him to,

you know, go off and be angry.

Q Did he indicate anything about what his role was in any of
this?
A No, he did not, ma'am.

Q Did he tell you he didn't do anything wrong?

A Right. He stated he didn't do anything. He wasn't aware.
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Q Now, during this time did you see him make any physical

gestures while you were standing outside?

A Physical gestures?

Q Yes.

A I'm not sure. I'm pretty sure when I was looking at him
through the window he did have a -~ a club in his hand.

o} And what if anything did he say as he did that?

A When I spoke to him and asked him, you know, what our purpose
was there -- you know, to find out his side of the story and that

we were there to arrest because we had probable cause to arvest --
I -- I stated -- or he stated to me that if anyone comes into this
place they're going to get this club over the side of their head.

0] And do you recall what word he used? Or did he just refer to
the object?

A Sp ~- I -- Specifically said, "You're going to get this club

over your fucking head."

0 Now, with regard to your interaction with Mr. Greenough at

that time, was that the only profanity that was used?

A I -- I believe so, ma'‘am.
Q and at some point did your interaction with him end?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q And how did that end? ‘
A I -- T basically told Alan that, you know, we had PC to
arrest and that's what we were going to do: we were going to place

him into custody. And then I believe he -- he s -- that -- at
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-- and

indicate

that point, he slammed the window in front of my face and
You

into the

And did ~-- What was the condition of the blind?
radio

just stormed off.
the window was shut, but what about the blind?
gso you could see into the --

Q
The blind was still up,

Now, as this was going on, did you -- or were you in

19

5 A
6 | house or apartment.
710
8 | communication with Sergeant Silva?
9 A Yes, ma'am.
1010 And was it your understanding that Sergeant Silva was to be
11 | the supervisor for the four-to-midnight shift --
12 A Yes, ma'am.
13 10 -- that was just due to come in?
14 + A Yes.
15 {1 Q Now, at some point were you communicating with him to confirm
16 | the existence of probable cause to arrest?
17 A Yes, ma'am.
18 | Q And I'm just going to direct your attention to a radio
transmission at 4:21:52 p.m., Track No. 30. And I'm going to ask
you if you would listen to it and if you can identify who the

20
participants are.

[Audio Playing at 00:31:35 Runtime -~ Disc 4, Track 1]
Now, who were the speakers in that radio transmission?

21

22
23 | BY MS. LYNCH:
That would be me and Sergeant Silva.

24 1 Q

A
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Q And who used the word "pole" in that transmission?

A I did.

o Can you describe what this obiject looked like?

A Yeah, it was basically the wooden leg of a -~ of a chair that

was demolished.

0 And were you able to see from your vantage point how it was
being held, if at all?

A Yeah, like a -- basically like a baseball bat.

Q I'm showing you this item. Do you recognize what this item
is?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And what do you recognize this to be?

A This was the pole that he had in his hand and he threatened
to -- threatened to hit us with.

MS. LYNCH: And I will be asking that this be marked as an
exhibit. We can put it on the bag, if that's ockay.
THE COURT: Yes, that's fine.
[Table Leg Marked as Exhibit No. 38]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q Using the object which has been marked as Exhibit 38, can you

just indicate for the record how you observed it being held?

A Yeah, he was just holding it down like this and then, you
know, making aggressive motions with it as, you know, raising it
up like that and just being real threatening about it with it.

[Demonstrating. )
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Q So, can you verbally describe the movements that you've made?
A You want me to stand up and show you?

(0] Yes, if you would.

A Yeah, just -- just, you know, just using his arms, his hands.
And then, you know, I'm not -- I don't recall if he -- if he swung

it like this or like that. But just being real aggressive and

letting us --

Q And was it --

A -- know that --

Q Was it at a constant height or did -~--

A No, he --

Q ~- he pull up?

A ~- was moving it up like this, down like this.

[Demonstrating.] You know, he had it all over the place.

Q So, you've demonstrated an up-and-down movement --
A Yes, ma'am.

Q -- along youxr side?

A Yes, ma'tam,

THE COURT: 2And officer, you described it as a pole on the
day of the incident. And then you just said a wooden leg. Did
you know when you saw 1it?

THE WITNESS: I did not know it was a wooden leg --

THE COURT: Leg. When you -- after the fact -~

THE WITNESS: -- until after the fact when we made entry.

BY MS. LYNCH:
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Q Now, as a result of that radio transmission that you made, I
believe you used the words "It's a horror show," something along
those linesg?
A Yeg, ma'am.
0 I want to direct your attention to -- I'd direct youxr
attention to Track 32.
{Audio Playing at 00:35:11 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

MS. LYNCH: And for the record, that radio transmission was
at 4:22:58.
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Who was "80%?
A That would be Sergeant Silva.
Q And "66" was you?
A Was myself.
0 Now, with regard to the events that happened next, directing
your attention to the time approximately 4:29:21 p.wm., did you
have an opportunity at that approximate time to see other officers

arriving at that location?

A Yes, ma'am.
0 aAnd who did you see arrive, in what order?
A I believe it was Sergeant Silva and then I believe Officer

Dave Savio and then Officer Erik Drauschke arrived, as well.
Q And this was in the timeframe of 4:29 p.m. that they arrived?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q Now, at some point had firefighters gone to that location at
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the request of the police department?

A Yeg, ma'am.
0 The -- Did the fire department ever make entry into that
apartment?

A No. We asked them to and they declined to do so.

Q And so, originally were they called when you were uncertain
as to whether anyone was inside the house?

A Yeg, ma’'am.

o] And then when it became clear that there were people in the

house, they would not make that entry for you?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And so, was it around this time that the fire department
left?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q What happened with Serxgeant Silva, Officer Savio, and Officer

Drauschke arrived at that location?

A I briefed them on the situation as far as what was going on.
I stated that, you know, Alan was not willing to come out and talk
to us. I stated that I did talk to him through the screen door
[sic] and that his, you know, demeanor was very irrational. He
was under the influence of an unknown type of narcotic and
alcohol. And he was just not rational whatsoever.

Q Now, at that time can you tell us, did something happen that
attracted your attention, you and other officexrs?

A Yes, ma'am.
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Q What was that?
A Alan Greenough's brother came over and talked to us. And he
stated that he was just in the house and he did not see his
brother,.
Q What happened next?
A And then we asked him, you know, "How did he get in the
house?" And hen he informed us that there was a -- a side door
inside the -- the clerk's office of the gas station that was
another entrance into the building.
Q And was this the first that you personally had learned about
another door --
A Yes, ma'am.
Q -- into that apartment?

As a result of receiving that information from Mr.

Greenough's brother, what if anything did you do?

A Then we -- we went ahead and we gathered up a team and -- to
go into the house to -- to look for Mr. Greenough.
0 Now, can I ask you, in your conversation with Mr. Greenough's

brother, did he ever tell you that he had seen his brother come
out of that room prior to that time?

A No, he did not.

Q Now, once this door was brought to the officersg' attention,
what happened next?

A We made entry and attempted to search for Mr. Greenough

inside the house.
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Q And how did you make entry into the house?
A We -- We stacked ourselves up, just standard room-clearing
procedures. You know, we went --
0 Okay, but what door did you enter?
A Oh, we went -- entered the doorway that was basically in the
lobby of the gas station.
Q And showing you what has previously been admitted as Exhibit

No. 19, do you recognize what is depicted in this photograph?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And what do you recognize it to be?

A That's the door that we made entry into the apartment with.
Q And as to the two doors that are shown in Exhibit 19 -- one

to the left, a brown color; and one to the right, a white color --
which is the door that you entered? I'll bring the photo closer
to you if you need to see it.

A I'm pretty sure it was that door. ([Indicating.]

Q Okay. So, when you say "that door,"™ is it -- are you

referring to the white door?

A Yags, ma‘'am.
Q Okay. Now, who made entry into the actual apartment itself?
A I believe there was four of us. It was myself, Sergeant

Silva, Officer Gooley, and I believe it was Officer Fontes, if I
remember correctly.
Q Was -- Officer Gooley was one of those officers?

A Yes, ma'am.
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Q And when you entered the apartment, what room did you enter?

A We entered that room directly that I was speaking to Alan

Greenough through the window in. That was kind of like the big
open room area.

0 And what did you observe about the condition of the room when
you entered it?

A It was totally destroyed. Evexry -- All the furniture was
broken and busted and on the floor. There wag pieces of furniture
everywhere.

Q What 1f anything happened next?

A At that point we announced, you know, our presence. We
announced, "Police." And we announced, "Alan, come on out. Show
us your hands. If you're in here, come on out." BAnd then we just

continued walking deeper into the room.
Q Can you describe what next happened and what you observed?
A And then we went to one of the back bedrooms and I
immediately saw that one of the windows was opened.
Q Now, were you able to hear radio transmissions from other
officers, specifically Officer Savio, at around the time that you
folks were making entry into the apartment?
A Y -- Y -- I believe go, ma'am, vyes.
0 And directing your attention to the Radio Transmission 35 at
4:30:58 on February 3rd.

MS. LYNCH: If you would play that, please.

[Audio Playing at 00:41:38 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]
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BY MS. LYNCH:

A

And did you actually look out that window at some point?
Yes, I did, ma'am.

And could you see Officer Savio --

Yes, ma'am.

-- outside?

What happened next?

At -- At that point, I asked Officer Savio if he saw any

footprints in the snow, because when I first got to the scene I

know for a fact that that window was shut. And I -- Basically,

this guy just jumped out the window on us. So --

Q

A

So what if anything happened next?

At -- At that point, Officer Drauschke gets over the radio

and we hear him say that he's over by the -- I believe it was

either Humvees or -- or by the cars.

Q

Now, directing your attention to radio transmission at

4:33:13 p.m., Track 38.

MS. LYNCH: Would you please play that.

[Audio Playing at 00:42:36 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q

A

aAnd did you recognize the voice on that transmission?
Yes, ma'tam.

And who was that?

That was Officer Erik Drauschke.

Now, were you in the apartment at the time that you received
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A Yes, ma'am.
310 Did you continue clearing the house at that point?
4 | A At that point, we knew he wasn't in the house, so we -- we
5 | basically turned around and we stopped our seaxrch.
6 | Q Now, I'll direct your attention to the time 4:33:25. Did you
7 | receive thig transmission, Track 397
8 [Audio Playing at 00:43:14 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]
9 BY MS. LYNCH:
10 Q

11

12

Now,

A
B 4 {Q
5 | A
6 | Q
17 + A
18
19
20

the front to see what was going on.
Q

21 | A

22 1 Q

23 A Yes,
24 | Q
25

Yes,

anything that sounded like gunshots?
13

ma'am,

premigses, prior to hearing that radio transmission did you hear

Two gunshots.

I went to the left.

Did you see where other officers went at that time?
ma'am.

you know or could you tell which direction they came from?

When you heard the radio transmission of "shots fired,® did

From your vantage point inside the residence portion of the

we did.

How many did you hear?

As a result of that, what did you and othexr officers do?

We immediately exited the room that we were in and ran out to

when you ran out the door,

as you were running out of
the gas station part of the premises, which direction did you go?

We all pretty much went to the left.
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A No, ma'‘am.

Q And so, when you went out, you went to the left?

A Yes, ma'am.
Q Can you describe what happened next?
A Yeah. We -- We -- When I went outside, all of a sudden I

looked to my right and then I see Alan's brother in hysterics,
crying or yelling, "They didn't have to shoot my brother. They
didn't have to shoot my brother.”

Q What did you do next?

A At that point I ran over to the right and I -- I saw Officer
Drauschke attempting to handcuff Alan Greenough. And as I got
closer, I realized that his chest was just full of blood.

Q Now, at the point when you arrived, had Officer Gooley
already gotten to that location when you got there?

A Yes, ma'am.

0O And what if anything happened as you approached where Officer
Drauschke, Mr. Greenough, and Officer Gooley were?

A They were attempting to resuscitate Mr. Greenough by doing
chest compressions.

Q Did you observe whether they had Mr. Greenough handcuffed at

that time?
A Yes, he was handcuffed.
o] And in order to give him emergency medical aid, did you see

what position he was in at that time?

A Yeah. He was basically on his back.
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Now, when he was lying on his back, can you describe what

Q
they were doing at that time?
A Yeah. They were pushing on his chest.
Q Now, do you remember previously giving a statement to the
police on the night of this incident at the police station?
6 A Yes, ma'am.
7 1 Q And do you remember that when you approached -- that he and
8 | Officer -- Officer Drauschke and Officer Gooley were attempting to
9 | handcuff Mr. Greenough with one arm behind his back?
10 A Yes, ma'am.
11 1 Q Did you see that?
12 A Yes, ma'am.
13 {0 What was Mr. Greenough's position at that point, when they
14 | were trying to handcuff --
15 | A At that pat [sic], before they started CPR, he was basically
Actually, not on his knees. I think he was on his
and he was kind

on his knees.
feet sticking out like this.

16
17 | butt with his, 1like,
18 | of, like, slumped over a little bit.
19 | Q And they were at that point trying to handcuff him?
20 | A Yeah, they put his hands behind his back and -- at -- at that
21 | point trying to handcuff him.
22 | Q And then once that was accomplished, what happened next?
23 | A At that point, that's when they put him down and started CPR
24 | Q So, when you say put him down, he was flat, in a prone
25 | position?
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i 1 A Yes, ma'am.
ii? 2 {0 And he was face up?
3 A Yes, ma'am.
4 | Q And what were the measures that were taken at that point?
5 | A Conduct -- We -- We -- We got the paramedics back. We called

6 | over the radio to have the paramedics come back immediately. And

7 | then we started -- or Officer Gooley and -- and I don't recall who
8 | the other person was, but -- started CPR.
9 1 Q By this point had you been joined at that location by other

10 } officers that were on the call?

I {A Yes, ma’am.

12 Q And did that include Officer Vatcher, Officer Lee, and

13 | Sergeant Silva?

4 A Yes, ma‘'am.

15 10 Now, did you at any point talk to Officer Drauschke and ask
16 { him what happened?

17 A Yes, I did.

18 | Q And what if anything did he do or say in response to that

19 | gquestion?

20 | A Yeah, I asked Erik why he -- why he shot. And -- And Erik
21 { told me. He goes, "Sean, he was -- came running at me with his
22 | hands in his pocket," basically at -~ attempting to conceal

23 | something. And he told him to stop and he kept on running. So,
24 } at that point he -~ he shot his weapon when he would not stop

25 { chase ~-- coming towards him.
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Q Now, at that point were you given an assignment?
A Yeg, ma'‘am.
Q And what was that?
A It was to identify all the witnesses that were on scene and
then, you know, get their names and the pertinent information.

Q And as a result of that, where did you go to do that?

A The -- Basically the Clerk's Office of the gas statiomn.

Q And who did you speak to at that location?

A I -- I spoke to the -- the three clerks and Mr. Greenough's
brother.

Q And during that time, did you interview them concerning their

observations or did you just get their information?

A At that point I -- I just was trying to get their names and
date of births and addresses, cell phone numbers.

Q Now, while you were at that location getting names and
numbers, did Mr. Chaghouri, the owner of the gas station, provide
you with any information that you did not know before concerning

Mr. Greenough coming out of the apartment?

A Yeg, ma'am.
0 What did he tell you at that time?
A At that point, he told me that Mr. Greenough came out of the

door that we made entrance and basically threatened him. You
know, "Don't let the cops in here," or something to the effect of
"Don't let kn -- Don't let them know I'm in here." And he

basically made aggressive -- bas -- b -- basically a -- aggressive
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movements with the club in his hand, toward -- directed towards
the -- the clerk there.
Q So, when you say the club in his hands, what did Mr.

Chaghouri tell you was the object that Mr. Greenough had when he
came into the office?

A I believe it was that wooden chair [sic]l leg.

0 And did he physically demonstrate to you what he -- what Mr.
Greenough did with that in his presence?

A Yes, ma'am.

Q And what did he physically demonstrate for you?

A Demonstrated, like, pointing it at him and swinging it --
swinging it towards him in his direction.

o) Now I'm going to direct your attention to the video.

MS. LYNCH: If we could fast-forward to the area that would
be -- I'1ll get the time in a moment. This would be starting Video
C2, timestamp 1708:40, real-time 4:35:50.

{[Video Playing at 00:50:44 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

MS. LYNCH: That's outside; I'm sorry. No, we can -- If you

could fast-forward to 1710:03, which is 4:37:13 in the video.
[Video Playing at 00:51:18 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

) And this individual coming in is who?

A That's the clerk and Mr. Greenough's brother. Or that's the

owner, I believe, and then Mr. Greenough's brother. aAnd that's

me.
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[Video Playing at 00:52:00 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

1
BY MS. LYNCH:
And was it while you were in the office here that you spoke

as it shows on

Q
to the owner and he --

4
A Ye --
-- demonstrated this to you?

ma’am.
"Ts that

6 | Q
Yeg,

A
Q

And that individual that you're speaking to,
I just want to make

Counter 11-7, who isg that?
That's Alan Greenough's brother.
Can we pause for a minute?

Ms. Lynch, you just said,

10 A
THE COURT:
sure I'm clear on something.

when he demonstrated this
While they were --

-~ to you?"
though?

11
in the office.
The movement that Mr. Greenough made when he came

12
13
MS. LYNCH:
THE COURT:
MS. LYNCH: - -
Demonstrated what,

THE COURT:
MS. LYNCH:

15
16

17

18
19 in the office.
THE COURT: Okay.

20

21 BY MS. LYNCH:

22 1 Q Is that fair to say?

23 A Yes, ma'am.
24 1 Q You understood?

THE COURT: Okay. That -- But maybe I'm -- I thought there

25
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was the owner,
Chaghouri?

MS. LYNCH:

THE WITNESS:

THE COURT:

THE WITNESS:

THE COURT:

THE WITNESS:

and then I thought you said -- Is

Chaghouri.
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that Mr.

That's the owner right there, the guy with the

Is his --
-- blue sweatshirt.

-- name Mr. Chaghouri? I'm --

Because you said, I thought, Mr.

the one who demonstrated that.

THE COURT:

THE WITNESS:

MS. LYNCH:

THE COURT:

MS. LYNCH:

THE COURT:

MS. LYNCH:

THE COURT:

Yes, ma'am.
And that's --
Hasn't happened yet.
That's the name of the owner?
Yes.
Okay.
This is. Sorry.

211 right.

Chaghouri was

{Vvideo Playing at 00:53:51 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q Now, as you see him pointing and gesturing at that time, what

is he talking about?

A He -- He's telling me that Alan came out from that door that

we made entry in, came out and threatened him, that if in --

That's him explaining to me what was going on right now and --
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Q Okay. Thank you. I'm going to stop there.
Now, did you also speak to and get contact information for

the employees of the gas station, specifically a Mr. Randall and a

Mr. Ortiz, ~-

A Yes, ma'am.

o] -- in addition to Mr. Chaghouri and Alan's brother, Anthony
Perrotti?

A Yes, ma'am.

o Now, at some point while you werxe in that office, you had

conversation with Anthony; is that right?

A Yeg, ma'am.

0 And what was that conversation?

A It was not very cooperative. He -- He wouldn't give me any
information as far as his name oxr anything. I -- He -- He refused

to basically speak to me or answer any of my questions.

o] Did he make any reference to the person who shot his brother?
A Yes, ma'am.

Q And do you recall what he said about that person?

A I -- I believe he gaid, you know, the -- I think he said,

"The fat bastard that came last with the mean mug on his face is
the one that shot my brother."

Q In terms of your role, how long did you stay at the gas
station that evening?

A I believe I was there -- I don't remember s -- specifically

exact time when I left. But I was there when I was told to go to
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the sta -- or the -- the station and -- and be -- and interviewed
by the state police.

Q And were you interviewed by the state police and did you know
that were you being recorded when you were interviewed?
A Yes, ma'am.
0 Now, have you subsequently had an opportunity to review that
transcript of your testimony?
A Yeg, ma'am.
Q With regard to your involvement in this investigation, did
you ever tell Anthony Perrotti, "If we go in there, he's going to
end up with a broken nose or a broken jaw"?
A No, ma'am.
Q In terms of anyone getting injured, what if anything did you
say to Mr. Perrotti or Mr. Greenough about that?
A I -- I just remember during the incident where he mentioned
the Winchester Police beating him up. I remember saying, you
know, "We're not here to beat anyone up. We're -- We just want to
get your version of events of what happened." That's all I
remember, according -- regarding that.
0 Did you ever express concerns that someone could get injured
in arresting an uncooperative person?
A I -~ I don't believe so, matam, I don't recall.

MS. LYNCH: If I might just have one moment, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Sure.

MS. LYNCH: Thank you, sir.
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CROSS EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER SEAN WILSON
BY THE COURT:
Q Officer, when you were speaking to Mr. Greenough, Officer

Gooley was on scene at the time?

A She was on scene, yeg, ma'am.

0 On scene?

A But she wasn't, like, next to me.

0 Where was she?

A Somewhere behind me. Or she couldive been, like, over in the

doorway/passageway area, 'cause they were still just standing --
I'm -- I'm not sure specifically where she was at. But when I was
talking to Alan Greenough through the window, it was just me and
him talking.
MR. PASCIUCCO: Thank you.
CROSS EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER SEAN WILSON

BY MR. PASCIUCCO:

0 Good afterncon, sir.
A Good afternoon, sir.
0 My name is Peter Pasciucco. I represent Officer Exrik

Drauschke. I just have a few questions for you today.

A Sure.

Q You indicated on direct examination that you worked as a
Reading police officer for 13 years; is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. And during your 13 years with Reading, Officer
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Drauschke has been a police officer for approximately 12 of those
yvears; 1s that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Okay. And you've had a chance to work with him on occasion,

work the sawme sghift --

A Yeg, sir.

Q -- as him? And you've responded to calls with him?

A Yes, sir.

Q And you've seen him interact with conversations as well as

other police officers as well as suspects; --
A Yes, sir.
Q -- 1s that correct?

And you've never had concerns about his abilities as a police

officer?

A No.

0 Okay. You've never had concerns about his judgment on the
job?

A No.

Q Okay. Officer Wilson, you didn't respond to the call on

Friday, February 2nd, 2018; is that coxrrect?

A No, I was not.

Q Okay. When you arrived to the gas station on February 3rd,
2018, did you have any information as to what had transpired the
night before?

A We -- We just went over it briefly in roll call through the
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log incident. It was basically a domestic where Alan Greenough

roughed up the boyfriend or the girlfriend -- or it might've even
been both; I can't remember at this time -- of those two
individual partieg. And -- And from that incident last night, we

-- we had PC to arrest Mr. Greenough.

Q Okay. So, when you arrived on scene, you knew that you were
looking for Alan Greenough?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And you had had prior interactions with Mr. Greenough
over the vyears?

A Yeg, I have.

Q Okay. And you indicated that you had arrested him about

seven years prior to this incident?

A Yes.
Q Do you remember the details of that arrest?
A Yeah. There was a -- a hand-to-hand exchange at three-fif --

352 Main Street that I obgerved him make. And then he got into
his vehicle. I believe it was a truck, at the time. 2And I made a
motor vehicle stop. He made some furtive movement. I had him
exit the vehicle. I found hercin in his pocket. And then I
arrested him for possession of Class A, heroin.

Q Okay. And you indicated that in addition -- That was the
only time you arrested him, but you had other interaction with --
A Right. A --

) -- him over the yearg?
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A Another time during that same period -- actually it might've
been afterwards, I believe; I'm not sure it was afterward or
before, but -- I pulled him over on, I believe it was, Ash Street.
He had a taillight or a brake -- a license plate light out. 2and I
pulled him over for that. And he had a Stephanie Conway in the
car with him, who was known to us as well. And I gave him a money
fine for defective equipment.
Q Okay. And who's Stephanie Conway?
A She was just another person that was in the vehicle during

that motor vehicle stop.

Q Okay. But you indicated that she's known to you?

A Yes. She was the one that sold Alan Greenough the heroin --
Q Okay.

A ~-- during that prior arrest.

Q Okay. Had you had any involvement with Anthony Perrottil

prior to thig?
A No, I have not.
0 Okay.
THE COURT: So, I'm sorry; so, the interactions, were those
two things?
THE WITNESS: Ye -- Yes, ma‘am.
THE COURT: Two different -- Okay.
BY MR. PASCIUCCO:
) And you said that you had not -- had no interaction oxr

involvement with Anthony Perrotti prior to this?
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A No, ma'am -- or no, sir. My bad.
Q When you arrived to the scene, what's the first thing you
did? Did you go directly to the door or did you make the loop
around the apartment?
A The first thing, I believe we went to the door. We got no
answexr at the door. And then I walked around, you know, the front
and then the 1 -- the right side and then the back gide, until I
couldn't really traverse anymore because it was too thickly wooded
and all the stuff was in the way. And I observed that none of
those windows were open and I couldn't see inside the building at
all.
Q Okay. Approximately how long were you on scene before the

neighbor came down and opened the door, if you recall?

A I would say best guesstimate was twenty minutes to a half an
hour.
0 Okay. During that time-period, were you ever notified by

Anthony Perrotti that there was a second door ingide the clerk's

office?
A Neo, I was not.
Q Okay. When you were conversing with Mr. Greenough through

the window, you indicated that he was angry and that his tone --
Would you describe it as belligerent?

A Yes, very belligerent.

Q Okay. How about confrontational?

A Very confrontational.
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Q Okay. And you did witness him with what you at the time
believed was a club in his hands?
A Yes.
0 Okay. And you observed the video of you inside the office of

the gas station speaking with the owner, Mr. Chaghouri?

A Yes.

0 That's up on the screen here?

A Yep.

0 And is that from after shots were fired?

A Yeg, it is.

o} Okay. And the movements or the demonstrations that Mr.

Chaghouri was making with reference to the pole or the club, was

that similar to what you observed Mr. Greenough doing through the

window?
A Yes, it was.
Q Okay. And approximately how close did you get to Mr.

Greenough? I know that there was a screen between you, but --

A Three feet?

Q Three feet? And --

A Or there -- There was -- Basically, the window sill was
separating us -- us. I was, like, bending over, looking in to s -~
trying to make observations of what was in there and, you know,
seeing the level of destruction of the property that was inside the
house. So, I -- two/three feet, max.

o) And you've been a police officer for 13 years; you've




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2-149
interacted with individuals who are under the influence of
alcohol; ig that correct?

A Yeah, yes.

o] As well as individuals that are under the influence of
narcotics; is that correct?

A Yes.

0 Okay. Based on your dealings with Mr. Greenough, three feet
away, through the screen window, did you have an opinion as to
whether he was intoxicated by both alcohol and drugs?

A Yes, most definitely.

0 Okay. So, at this point, when you're dealing with him
through the window, you would agree that he was hostile, he was

angry, and he was armed; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And that’s when you radioed or made the radio
transmission about Mr. Greenough having a -- "He's got a pole"; is
that --

A Yes.

Q -~ correct?

Okay. And I think you labeled it as a "horror show"?
A Yes.
Q Okay. Eventually you made entry into the apartment, at the
residence; ig that correct?
A Yes, we did.

Q Okay. And once you made entry into the residence, you
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immediately observed the tables and the chairs that were smashed
on the ground?

A Yes.
Q Okay. Did you have any understanding or a -- did you have

any knowledge as to how tables and chairs came to be destroyed or

A I--I«--1I -~

0 -- smashed like that?

A I learned that after the fact.

Q Okay. And what did you learn after the fact?

A Bagically, that's from the night-before's incident on the

second. Anthony destroyed the place 'cause he was on a bender.

Q Anthony or --
A Or -~
Q -~ Al?

A A -- My bad. Alan destroyed the place. My bad.
Q Okay.

THE COURT: Who did you learn that from?

THE WITNESS: The roommates.

THE COURT: And your opinion that he was under the influence
of both alcohol and drugs was based on what?

THE WITNESS: I could smell the alc -- odor of alcohol from
his breath. His eyelids were droopy and his pupils were really
constricted. And basically his eyes were, like, real glassy, all

indicators of opiate use, through training and experience.
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THE COURT: And what training do you have in that?

THE WITNESS: Approximately about 60 hours of narcotic
investigations.

THE COURT: Go ahead; T'm sorry.
BY MR. PASCIUCCO:
(0] Officer Wilson, I know you had demonstrated what Mr.
Greenough was doing with the pole or the club earlier. Did you
notice anything else about his movements, whether or not he was
jittery or moving back and forth?
A He was just all over the place. But his movements were --
were -- were slow and lethargic like he just -- You know, he
definitely was not rational when I was speaking to him and, you
know, not just c¢ -- not thinking with a -- with a clear head.
Q And after shots were fired, you responded to the area by the

Hummer; is that correct?

A Yes.
Q What route did you take to get there?
A Bagically walked right in front of the gas station to -- The

Hummer was on the far left of the gas station. So, basically a
straight road.

Q And did it take you any time to find out where -- or learn
where Officer Drauschke and Mr. Greenough and Officer Gooley were
situated? Or could you immediately see them?

A Once I got close enough to them. They were probably maybe

25-30 yards away. Once I got close enough to them -- and there
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was vehicles in the way, o I couldn't see them right away -~ then
I realized, you know, what had happened.

0 What do you remember being in the area in addition to the
Hummer and the individuals? What -~ You said there were vehicles.
Do you remewmber anything else?

a Yeah, it was basically like the used car lot of a gas
station. All of the cars that were either being waiting to
repalred [sic] or being repaired, they were kind of like all lined
up. And where Erik was was in between these vehicles.

Q Okay. So, in order to get from sort of the pump area of the
gas station to where Officer Drauschke, Mr. Greenough, and Officer
Gooley were located, did you have to maneuver around any cars?

A I believe so, ves.

Q Okay. And when you arrived to that location, you asked
Officer Drauschke what had happened; is that correct?

A Yeg, I did.

Q Okay. And he indicated to you that Mr. Greenough's hands
were in his pockets?

A Yeah. He mentioned that his -- he was hiding his hands.

Erik stated that he was coming at him. And Erik told him to "Show
me your hands." BAnd when he didn‘t show Erik his hands, that's
when he shot him.

QO Okay. Now, after the -~ after you were at that particular
area or that scene, you went back and that's when you spoke with

other individuals on scene, trying to get names and whatnot?
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A Yes.
Q And you indicated that Anthony Perrotti was not cooperative
in that respect?
A Not at all.
Q Did you ask him for his name?
A Yes, I did, numerous times.
7 | O Would he give you his name?
8 | A No, he would not.
9 10 Okay .
10 MR. PASCIUCCO: Just one moment.
11 THE COURT: Mm-hmm.
12 MR. PASCIUCCO: Thank you, officer.
13 [Witness steps down]
14 THE COURT: Officer Michael Lee, please
15 [OFFICER MICHAEL LEE, Swormn.]
16 DIRECT EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER MICHAEL LEE
17 | BY MS. LYNCH:
18 | Q Good afternoon, sir. If you would, would you state your name
19 | and spell your last name for the record.
20 | A Officer Michael Lee. Last name 1is spelled L-~E-E.
21 1 Q What is your occupation, sir?
22 } A I am a police officer.
23 | O And where are you a police officer?
24 | A Town of Reading.
How long have you been a Reading police officer?

25 | Q




A About 20 years.
Sir, directing your attention to Saturd

Q
A I was.

0
A

What was your assignment that day?

I was working patrol.

Q
A

Q
A

Q

I was.

I was.

10
11
A I was by myself.

Q

12

13
Reading?
Yes. We call it

i4
and whether orx

A
Q

15
It 1is not.

16
in texrms

A
Q

So,

your regularly
Correct,

17
18
19
20 | A
0 What is

A
Q

Five-

And
Th

21
22

23
24 | A
Q

25

2018, were you on duty with the Reading Police?
And as such, are you in uniformed assignment?
Were you assigned to a marked police vehicle?

Were you alone or with a partner?
Were you assigned to a particular area of the Town of

2-154

February 3rd of

ay,

It's the south part of town.

Sector 2.

not 1462 Main Street is part of that sector?
this was not within

of your duties that day,
apportioned area of patrol; is that right?

it was not in my s -- usual sector.
your radio call number?
fifty-eight.

eight,

is that your badge number?
Now, directing your attention to 3:46:23 p.m. or thereabouts,

at is.
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did you receive a radioc transmission?

A I did.

Q And as a result of that, were you dispatched to a particular
location?

A I was dispatched to the gas station, 1462.

Q And that's 1462 Main Street?

A Yes.

0 And what was the nature of the call that you received?

A We had a report that there -- a domestic had happened in the

past. And we were trying to go up there and make contact with the
suspect.
Q And were you identified -- were -- was the suspect identified
to you by name in the radio transmissions you received prior to
arrival at that location?
A I don't recall.
Q Directing your attention to radio transmission Track 3,
February 3rd at 3:47:22 p.m.

MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission, if I might have that
played.

THE COURT: Yeah.

{Audio Playing at 01:11:24 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:
o) And in addition to the dispatcher, whose voice is recorded in
that transmission?

A I believe it sounded like Officer Gooley, 88.
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0 Did that sound like a woman to you?
A It did.
0 Now, as a result of receiving this radio transmission, were

you on patrol at that time or do you recall what location you were
in?
A I was down by Main Street and Washington Street, which is

probably about 3 to 5 miles away from the area.

Q And did you directly respond to that location?
A I did.
0 Did you later learn or did you while you were en route learn

by radio transmission that Officer Gooley and Officer Wilson were
both leaving the station and were en route, ag well?

A Yes.

Q Now, while you were en route, did you receive information
concerning the whereabouts of the reporting party?

A I don't recall. All T know: that he was at 1462 Main Street.

MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission, if I may play Track

THE COURT: Yes.
[Audio Playing at 01:12:55 Runtime - Disc 4, Track 1]
MS. LYNCH: And that would be 3:48:19.
BY MS. LYNCH:
A My -- I misunderstood what you asked; sorry.
Q Excuse me?

A I misunderstood what you asked me.
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Q
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Yesg, I

Track 1]

Okay.
So, yeah, I -- The reporting party was not on scene.

Yes.
Yes, you can finish the call.

I remember that.
{Audio Playing at 01:13:25 Runtime - Disc 4,

MS. LYNCH:
Now, who is the person that is requesting that they be

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q
brought back to the scene?
That was Officer Wilson.

A
Now, in terms of your response to that location, were you the

10

A
Q

11
12 I was.
13
you and other officers arrive at around the same time?

14
A Yes,

Q
A

15
16

17
Officer Fontes was behind me.

Q
first on the scene?
And directing your attention to approximately 3:50 p.m., did

roughly.
Who was the first to pull into the station?
I believe I was the first one to pull into the station.
And Officer Gooley showed up

And

i8
shortly thereafter.

19
Was it Fontes or Wilson that showed up first?

I thought it was Fontes.

20 Q
21 A
22 1 Q Okay .
23 { A Fontenes -- Fontes.
- 24 1 Q What did you do when you got there?
A I went to -- On the side of the house,

25

there's a door
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went to try to enter that door on the side, to go to the apartment
and try to talk to the suspect that was in there.

Q And in terms of that exterior door, did it take a while for

you to gain entry into the building itself?

A It did. We thought it was locked.
Q At some point were you given admittance to the hallway?
A Yes, we were.

QO And how did that happen?
A There was a gentleman upstairs that came downstairs and

opened the door for us.

Q And wags he from Mr. Greenough's apartment or the other unit?
A I'm not sure. I just kno& he came down the stairs.

Q Was he able to provide access to you, to the interior
apartment?

A Not to the apartment but to the hallway to the door to the
apartment.

0 And did he go somewhere after he let you in?

A I believe so. I think he went back upstairs, but I didn't
notice.

O So, what did you do at that point?

A I started knocking on the door to try to get the suspect's --
Alan's attention, try to talk to him.

Q What did -- What were you saying when you were knocking on
the doox?

A "We got to talk to you. We got a call. Can you talk to us?
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We got to figure out what's going on." Just trying to get his
attention to try to figure out what was going on at that
particular time.
Q Now, at some point while you were there, did the roommate and
his girlfriend show up at that scene?
A Yes, they did.
Q And did you at any time try to enter that apartment with the
use of keys provided by people?
A Yeg, we did.
Q Did either of those keys or any of those occasions work?
A No, they did not.
0 So what did you do at that point?
A I just continued to knock on the door to try to get his
attention and have him open the door for us.
0 How were you knocking, in terms of -- and your tone of voice?
What were you saying?
A "Alan." Pounded on the door with my fist, like that.
[Indicating.] "Alan, Alan, talk to us."

And he's just hollering back at us through the door.
Q Did he originally speak to you or was --

THE COURT: Ms. Lynch, hang on one second.

MS. LYNCH: ©Oh, I'm sorry.

[Pause]
THE COURT: All right. So, Ms. Lynch, the witness that was

habe'd in we're not going to get to today.
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MS. LYNCH: Yes.

THE COURT: So I'm going to -- All right.

MS. LYNCH: Thank you, Youxr Honoxr.
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q Now, at some point did you become aware of the presence of a
relative of Mr. Greenough's at the location?
A Yes. His brother was out there talking with us.
Q And at some point did the brother make efforts to try to
reach his brother by the phone?
A Yes, he did.
o Was it after those initial efforts to reach his brother by
phone that you clear hear Mr. Greenough inside the apartment?
A It was before and after. It was -~ It was throughout the
whole time. We were talking to him and then the brother said,
"I'1l get him not he phone." BAnd his brother talked to him. I
assume he talked to him. I kind of heard a little bit on the

phone. Sounded like him. With the kind of, like, angry/hostile

voice, it sounded like him., I -- I can't confirm or not.

0 So you could hear it through the phone?

A Yes, I could hear some of it.

0 Was it on speaker?

A I don't think so. It was just really loud.

Q Could you hear the speaking coming from inside the apartment,
as well?

A I don't recall. I -- I don't recall.
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0 Did you go anywhere other than the interior of that hall,
throughout the encounter up to that point?
A Up to that point? No, just the front hall and that front
porch. Did not go anywhere else after that.
[End of Disc 4, Track 1, at 01:18:00 Runtime]
[Beginning of Disc 5, Track 1, at 00:00:00 a.m.]
BY MS. LYNCH:
Q At some point, did you become aware that Mr. Greenough was

ingide the apartment?

A Y -- Y -- Which one? The brother or -- or --
Q Mr. Greenough.
A Alan?

Q Not the brother.

A Ckay.

Q Mr. Greenough.

A I knew he was in the apartment 'cause I heard his voice.

Q And what could you hear him saying?

A He was swearing at us, saying, "Get the fuck off my property.

You're not allowed here. Go away. Go fuck yourself. Let me talk
to Lieutenant Brown." That's who he wanted to talk to. Just kind
of being aggressive and hostile and -~ towards us while we were
trying to talk him --

Q Did you hear anything going on inside the apartment itgelf?

A I heard some scuffing, like -- might've been hitting some

furniture, moving -- moving around. Yeah.
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Q Now, at some point did you become aware that Mr. Greenough

had gone to the window to speak to Officer Wilson?

A Yes.
Q And can you tell us what you observed about that?
A I observed Officer Wilson. I believe Sergeant Silva was

there. But there was somebody other than Officer Wilson there
talking to he screen. I saw the brother. I'm sorry; not the
brother. I saw Alan kind of shadowy, not really clear. And they

were talking back and forth through the screen.

Q And this would've been from your vantage point on the porch?
A Yes.

Q Were you able to hear anything coming from -- through the
gcreen?

A Not that I recall.

Q How long did that go on for?
A Not sure. Five/ten minutes. Maybe fifteen.

Q And what did you do at that point?

A While he was talking to him at the screen?
Q Yes.
A I was still watching, trying to get his attention at the

door, letting him try to talk it out there. And then when it
seemed like it wasn't working, I went back to the door and tried
to knock on the door and have him come talk to us at the door.

0O Now, as this was unfolding, was it more than the three

original officers that were on scene? Were you joined by other
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officers?

A Yes.

Q Were you joined by an Officer Zachary Fontes?

A Yes.

0 What about an Officer Matt Vatcher?

A Yes.

Q Did you have any conversation with Officer Vatcher concerning

what had taken place the night before?

A I don't recall, no.

Q Did you talk to either of the roommates at that location?

A I did not.

Q In terms of the response, in addition to Officer Fontes and
Officer Vatcher -- Can I ask you, were they on the dayshift,

Fontes and Vatcher, to your knowledge?

A No, they're not. They were coming in on the next shift,

which is at four.

Q So they were due at work at four o'clock?

A Yes.

0 And by now it was after four; is that right?

A I believe so, vyes.

Q At some point do you recall hearing a radio transmission

concerning a pole?
A No, I don't recall that.
Q Let me ask you if --

MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission, if we could play the
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radio transmission at Call No. 30. Yes, please.
[Audio Playing at 00:03:23 Runtime - Disc 5, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

Q Now, did you recognize the voices of the people on that radio
transmission?
A Officer Wilson was one of them. And I think the other one is

Deputy Clark ([phonetic], but I'm not sure about that second voice.
And when you mention the pole, I didn't know you're referring to
the pole that he said he was going to hit us with while he was
inside the apartment.

Q Did you become aware of that?

A Yes, I did.

o} How did you become aware of that?

A He said he was going to hit us with a pole.

0 And did you hear that or did you --

A Yes. Nope, --
Q -- hear that from other officexs?
A Nope, I heard that in the room when he was hollering and

being aggressive and hostile, speaking through the door when I was
trying to talk to him.

o] So, you could tell when you were talking to him -- You were
at the door?

A Yes.

Q And where was he in relation to the door?

A Hard to tell. But I could hear him. I -- I don't know how




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

2-165

thick the walls are.
0 Angd did you hear anything other than him yelling?
A Yeah, I heard him scuffing [sic]l around, moving around like
he was moving some stuff around.
Q Now, as a result of that radio transmission, do you -- did
you learn that other officers were being dispatched to that
location to assist? Well, directing your attention to the radio
transmission --

MS. LYNCH: If I might just have one moment.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm, yeah.

MS. LYNCH: Track No. 33, play this. And this is at 4:24:57.
Thank you.

[Audio Playing at 00:05:50 Runtime - Disc 5, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

A Okay.

10

Who was the person, "4-3,'" broadcasting?

A That's Lieutenant McKenna.

o] And was he the dayshift commander?

A Yes.

@ Now, in terms of the broadcast begin to "6-6," did you

understand that to be Officer Wilson?

A Yes.
Q When he indicated that 780" is en route, do you know who 80
is?

A That's Sergeant Silva.
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Q And 51 and 747
A Fifty-one is Officer Savio. And seven-four, I don't recall
who seven-four is.
o} But at that point, at 4:24:57, you were advised that the

sergeant and two other officers were en route; --

A Yes.

Q -- ig that correct?

A Yes.

Q At some point did those officers arrive at that location?

A Yes, they did.

Q And directing your attention to the timeframe approximately
4:29 p.m., did those officers arrive at around the same time at
that location?

A I believe they did, ves.

Q What happened when they arrived?

A I think that's when they all kind of -- kind of huddled
towards that porch. And I was still in the hallway. I don't know
what they were doing around out there. But I kind of remember

vaguely seeing some more heads outside, more than there was prior.

Q 8o you remained inside --

A Yes.

Q -- at -~ throughout this period.

A Yes.

Q What happened next, if you recall?

A I don't. I don't recall what happened once they arrived on
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scene.
Q Okay. At some point do you recall a radio transmissgion

concerning an open window?

A No.

Q You don't recall that?

A I don't recall them saying there was an open window.

Q Okay. At some point do you recall officers indicating that

they were going inside?
A I don't recall that, either.
Q At some point after that, did you become aware that officers

were inside the apartment itself?

A Yes.

0 How did you first become aware of that?

A I heard the brother's voice in there. And I heard -- I'm not
sure whose -- other voices. But I knew there was somebody on the

-- the Reading force. More voices and a lot more scuff --
scuffling around than prior.
Q Now, at some point did you receive or hear a radio
transmission at 4:33:13 p.m., Track No. 38, from Officer
Drauschke?

MS. LYNCH: With the Court's permission --
A Possi -- Yeah, po --

[Audio Playing at 00:08:37 Runtime - Disc 5, Track 1]

BY MS. LYNCH:

e} And do -- did you receive that radio transmission as you were
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inside?
A I don't remember. I don't remember hearing that.
Q Now, as you were in the hallway, did you hear anything that

attracted your attention?

A I heard some gunshots and people were starting to holler for
Erik.

o] Do you remember how many shots you heard?

A T don't,

Q Did you actually hear the shots? Or did you hear a radio

transmission of "ghots fired"?
A I've heard bo -- I heard both.
0 And what did you do upon hearing the call, "Shots fired"?
A I left the hallway, went outside, starting looking around to
see where it was, starting hollering for Officer Drauschke, see
where he was 'cause we weren't sure where the shots were fired,
and then I noticed people start running -- if you're looking out
the building -- to the left.

I went to my cruiser to get my medical bag. And then I
followed behind them.
o) And at some point did you go somewhere with your medical bag?
A I did. To the left of the building, there as an orange
Humvee there. There's a wooden fence that ended there. And it
was like there was a Humvee, then there's a wooden fencepost.
0 And in terms of the area where the Humvee and the fence was

located, did you see any people in that area®?
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A Yes, I saw Officer Drausgchke, Alan, Officer Gooley, Officer

Vatcher, and Officer Savio.

Q And at the point when you arrived there, what were they
doing?
A I'm not sure. I 8 -- think I -- I saw Al -- I saw Alan bent

over with his handcuffs behind his back, on hig kneeg with his
head into the snow, facing down. I saw Erik sitting there
gsomewhere to, like, his rear. I saw Officer Gooley towards his
head somewhere. That's all I remember seeing right there at that
time.

Q And were -- was anyone administering aid to Mr. Greenough at
that time?

A At that particular time, no.

Q What happened at -- when you brought the medical bag back?
A So, once I got the medical bag, we flipped him over onto his
back. I asked for a knife to cut the shirt off and tried to open
-- open up my medical bag, grab what stuff I had, tried to apply
first aid, and then I started going to CPR. And I think Officer
Gooley had the Ambu bag, which is to help breathe him. And we

worked on him.

Q And how long did you work on him before you were relieved?
A A minute or two.

Q And who were you relieved by?

A I was relieved by Officer Vatcher.

Q At some point after you were relieved by Officer Vatcher --
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it was probably 3

Can you describe the quarters, how much room you had to maneuver

between the Humvee and the post,

So,
And I think Of

1
in that area?
Yep.

ﬁt
i h
N

3 A

4
up most of that.
on his head.

fence,

6
Officer Savio was behind my right.
Drauschke was back there also.

him.
came in from the right.

-~ the Humvee and the fence.
After I swapped out with Officer Vatcher,

10
Q

A

11
12

13 minutes.
know what the exact time was.

15 1 Q

16
17 A No.
18 Q
19 A
head down towards the snow,

20

Q

21
prior to that night, yourself?

22
A No.
MS. LYNCH:

Sure.

23
THE COURT:

24

25

Officer Gooley was on the other side of the

to 4 feet, maybe, once we had Alan's back -- on the back, he took
I was right near the pole, trying to work on
ficer

Officer vVatcher -~ Officer Vatcher

So there wasn't a lot of room between the

And how long before fire personnel arrived to spot you?

They were like -- They were right there.
And during this period of time, up until the time you went

over there, did you physically see Mr. Greenough at all?

I don't

I think maybe three

I

And that was the first time you saw him that --
First time I saw him was when he was on his knees with his
with his handcuffs behind his back.

And had you ever had any interactions with Mr. Greenough

If I might --
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MS. LYNCH: Thank you.
THE COURT: Mr. Pasciucco?
CROSS EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER MICHAEL LEE

BY MR. PASCIUCCO:
0 Good afternoon, sir. My name's Peter Pasciucco. I represent
Officer Erik Drauschke. I just have a few guestions for you
today.

You've worked for the Reading Police Department for
approximately 20 years, --
A Yeg.
Q ~-- that's correct?

Okay. And Officer Drauschke has been with Reading for
approximately 12 of those years?
A Probably.
Q Okay. And you've worked with him in various gituations and
scenariog over the years?
A Not really. We -- I don't remember us working on shift

together ever.

Q Okay.

A Maybe once or twice. Maybe in overtime. But not -- not like
a permanent shift. I -- I don't -- No.

Q So, did you work a different shift than Officer Drauschke?

A Yes.

Q Okay. You did not respond to the scene on Friday night; is

that correct?
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A I did not.
o] Okay. When you arrived to the scene on Saturday, that being
February 3rd of 2018, did you have any information as to what had
happened the evening before?
A I had just heard that there was a -- a warrant out for his
arrest for a previous domestic.
Q Okay. And you weren't familiar with the name “Alan
Greenough" or --
A I was not.
Q Okay. Now, when you arrived to the scene, eventually you
made it inside a hallway that led to the door to the apartment; is
that correct?
A Correct.
Q Okay. At any time were you aware of another door on the

property that one could gain entry into the residence?

A No. We even asked, and they said there wasn't one.
Q Okay. Were you -- Was anyone else with you at the dooxr
that's the -- Once you entered the hallway, it's the door on the

left, correct?

A Yeah. Yeah. Yes, Of -- Yesg, Officer Fontes was w -- Officer
Fontes was with me.

Q Okay. Did Mr. Greenough immediately respond to your knocking
on the door, your request for him to come out?

A He started yelling and screaming at us, agitated and hostile

and aggressive.
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0 Okay. And that was -- Was that fairly immediate or --
A Yeah, I don't recall how guick it was. But it wasn't like a
really long time. It was -- It was fairly immediate, I guess

you'd say. Bubt not like immediate-immediate.

Q Okay. And the door was closed --
A Yes.
Q -- the entire time?

But you could hear his voice, and you didn't have difficulty

making out what the individual on the other side of the --

A No.

Q -- door was saying; is that correct?

A Correct.

Q Okay. And at some point, Mr. Greenough or the individual who

you believed was Mr. Greenough yelled that he had a pole and that

he would strike you with the pole --

A Yes.
Q -- 1f you came to the dooxr?
A Yes. If we came through the door, vyes.

Q Okay. And was he banging on the door? Was he doing anything

else?
A I don't know. I -- I don't recall. I believe he was but I'm
not sure. Mo -- Mostly I heard him just yelling and screaming

while I was trying to knock on the door to get his attention to

come talk to us.

0 Okay. Did you have any discussion with Anthony Perrotti
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while you were on scene?

A I don't know who he is.
Q Ckay. With Mr. Greenough's brother?
A Yes.

0 Okay. And you didn't know his name --

A No.

Q -- that evening and --

A No.

Q -~ you still don't know hisg name.

A I still don't know hig name.

Q Okay. But you did -- you do recall having a discussion with

an individual who you --

A Yes.
Q -- know to be Mr. Greenough's brother; is that correct?
A Yes.

Q Okay. And you recall speaking with the state police either
the evening of the incident or the following day; is that correct?
A Yes, that evening we went upstairs and got debriefed. And I
think a few days -- No, that wasn't state police. But, yes, it
was at least th -- that night.

Q Okay. And do you recall telling the state police detectives
that during your conversation with Mr. Greenough's brother he
indicated to you that Alan was drunk?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And do you -- Today, do you have a recollection that
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that's what Mr. Greenough's brother told you?
A Yeah, I know he was drunk, yes. I don't know if it was -- He
did mention that. He said he was -- he did have a -- some
substance abuse issues other than just alcohol.
Q Okay. At what point were you made aware of another mode of
entry into the residence?
A I don't think I ever was until I was actually going to where
we ended up. I think maybe a few days later they said there was a
door in the gas station.
0 Okay. So, while on scene, your -- most of the time you were

on scene was in that hallway --

A Yes.
Q -- by that door?
A Yes.

Q And you had described at least how you heard Mr. Greenough

through the door?

A Yes.
0 He was hostile and aggravated; is that correct?
A Correct.

0 Okay. Thank you, sir.
CROSS EXAMINATION OF WITNESS, OFFICER MICHAEL LEE
BY THE COURT:
Q Officer, you said when Mr. Greenough was communicating with

you, at one point he said, "Let me talk to Lieutenant Brown."

A Yes.
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o) Is --

A Yes, Your Honor.

Q -- Lieutenant Brown with the Reading Police Department?

A Yes, ma'am, he is.

Q Did he say why he wanted to talk to Lieutenant Brown?

a No, ma'am. After the fact, I guess he had some interactions

with Lieutenant Brown and they had a good working rapport.

0 And did anybody make any attempt to reach out to Lieutenant
Brown?
A I have no idea.

Q Thank you.
THE COURT: Okay. Thank you very much.
[Witness steps down]

THE COURT: We are going to need to stop there for today. We
can go a little bit longer tomorrow and start without having the
need for a view. Any preliminary issues before tomorrow that we
need to address before tomorrow? No? Okay. All right. So,
again, the plan would be to start right at nine o'clock, go longer
tomorrow 1f need be.

Again, everyone is reminded they are not to discuss anything
that happens during the course of this matter with anyone. Thank
you very much.

THE CLERK: Qkay. This matter is in recess until tomorrow.
Thank you.

[Adjourned at 00:18:59 Runtime - Disc 5, Track 1}
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brother's 1] 167/14 173/17 173/18
brothers [1] 91/8 camera [8) 21/4 23/7 23/8

brought {6] 34/24 79/6 23/923/1023/15 50/3 50/4

brown [7] 130/13 161/20  canisters [1] 110/4

175/24 176/3 176/5 176/7  cap [2] 48/5 49/3

176/9 cape {1] 25/13

building [53] 3/36 3/37 4/17 captioned [1]20/6

30/3 30/15 30/16 30/20 30/24¢car [5] 58/17 77/3 7713 146/6
31/16 35/135/3 35/5 35/14  152/6

35/19 36/11 36/16 39/21 43/3care {1] 54/7

47/12 53/5 54/3 57/15 66/19 ecars [7) 57/2 57/10 58/18
67/6 67/13 67/22 68/9 68/15 75/20 132/15 152/7 152/12
73/14 82/14 83/11 83/14 case {11]5/1 7/25 10/18
83/22 86/11 95/13 95/20 17/16 17/19 18/25 19/7 20/19
98/11 107/14 107/16 107/18 37/8 41/14 51/20

108/18 109/4 110/22 111/2  casing [4] 80/6 80/18 85/6
11173 111/24 115/20 118/20 85/8

129/9 147/10 158/4 168/17 casings [3] 65/8 79/7 79/25

168/21 catherine [2] 6/3 6/3

bullet [5] 61/8 61/19 61/20 cause [S] 22/6 31/12 54/7

61/20 81/20 90/18 104/21 123/10 124/16

bulman [2] 12/13 12/19 143/10 150/12 161/16 168/15

bunch [1} 110/3 caused [3] 18/24 122/11

burke [1] 15/14 122/19

business {2] 102/20 113/1  cell [4] 18/9 40/11 118/2

busted [1] 131/8 137/14

butt {1} 135/17 cellebrite [5) 3/34 8/17 8/17
22/19 22125

C center (1] 20/20

certain [2] 17/21 18/2
call [39] 16/21 16/23 24/18  certified [1] 10/19

147/5 152/13 155/25 157/17 34/37 35/23 43/13 43/25 44/126/14 27/10 27/19 32/8 33/6 certify [3] 177/4 177/8
158/18 162/5 163/20 166/14 44/10 44/16 45/11 55/23 56/337/22 40/11 41/6 43/18 4417 177/12

17321

believed [2} 148/2 173/14
belligerent {2] 147/22
147/23

belline {3]37/12 37/14 38/6

56/4 56/12 165/20
broadcasting [2] 26/17

broke [1]138/4

52/6 86/3 94/25 100/5 103/1 chaghonri [9] 137/16 138/4
103/3 103/5 103/18 103/24  140/2 140/3 140/8 140/9
104/3 104/13 104/16 104/24 141/6 148/5 148/12

105/20 112/22 115/19 136/10chair [5] 71/10 71/16 94/11
144719 144/25 154/15 154/21125/4 138/6




chairs [4] 90/3 90/14 150/1 closer [5]39/22 71/1479/9 condition {13] 41/3 70/3 149/13 149/19 149/23 151/15

150/5 130/14 134/12 T1/1172/14 83/12 107/19  152/15 154/20 166/7 171/11
chance [1] 144/4 closest [2] 39/3 61/21 108/4 108/22 109/14 110/6  171/25 172/12 172/13 172/19
change {4] 14/5 32/17 42/15 closeup [2] 85/7 85/13 119/12 124/3 131/5 173/11 173/12 174/14 174/17
119/13 cloth [1] 62/6 conduct [1] 136/5 175/18 175/19

channel [4] 21/20 21/25 clothes [4] 26/6 84/8 94/16  confirm [2] 124/15 160/18 correctly [3] 111/23 114/2
21/2523/7 102/12 confrontational [2] 147/24 130/23

channels [2] 21/7 21/20 clothing [1] 85/21 147/25 correfation {1]23/17
charge [4] 34/10 34/17 102/6¢chub [8] 123/6 123/12 123/15 congregated [2] 46/10 47/5 correspond [1]69/13

121/18 138/1 138/3 148/2 148/12  connection [1] 7/25 counsel [4] 9/19 10/24 97/23
charges [2] 89/23 8924  151/7 conron [3] 19/8 19/13 19/19 177/13

charging [1] 38/21 clue {17 113/20 consent [1]21/3 counter {1} 139/9

chase [1] 136/25 coast [9] 9/6 19/9 21/2 28/20 counsist {1]21/4 counts {1] 38/21

check [1}42/20 66/18 100/22 100/23 101/3  consisting {2] 8/8 20/5 couple {8] 37/25 41/21 41/24
checked [4] 13/4 54/6 62/9 101/15 constant [1] 126/10 42121 91/595/2597/19 112/9
62/11 cold [11 65/15 constricted [1] 150/24 course [6] 10/1 24/13 64/25
checks [1] 86/20 college [1] 25/18 cont [1] 4/4 66/11 104/9 176/21

chest [3] 134/12 134/19 colleges [1]25/17 contact {10} 37/541/25 court's [19] 5/7 10/9 27/1
135/3 eolor [2] 130/13 130/13 85/13 85/18 86/3 86/4 31/3 27/13 28/2 31/22 34/4 34/13
chief [2] 6/15 6/17 combination [1] 72/22 92/19 141/2 155/10 43717 45/18 56/6 57/4 103/14
choke [1] 64/10 comes [1} 123/11 container [1] 76/6 106/13 116/16 155/18 156/17
chronological [1] 19/25 commander [1} 165/18 continue [S] 47/23 53/15 163/25 167/21

cigarettes {1} 79/9 comments [2] 60/17 60/20  67/25 105/20 133/3 courtroom [6] 1/42 6/25
circumstances [4] 39/1 commonwealth (8] 1/5 1/28 continued [8] 2/1 4/1 39/17 15/19 15/25 16/15 24/8
52/12 63/1 113/25 1/315/6 7124 8/9 8/13 9/23  51/8 58/25 92/18 131/14 cover [5175/8 75/13 75/13
civilians [3] 32/14 32/16 10/17 10/25 159/13 78/3 78/3

88/21 commonwealth's [2] 7/24  continuing {11 111/7 covered (1]75/10

clark (1] 164/7 5/23 continuous [3] 21/24 21/25 covering {1] 82/20

class [1] 145/21 communicate [3] 39/6 39/24 23/13 epr [7] 61/15 62/12 62/12
claw [4] 32/13 32/16 106/16 41/22 continuously [1] 57/6 135/15 135/23 136/8 169/18
113/11 communicated {1] 55/9 control {2] 13/17 46/1 crume [5]3/33 19/9 22/10
clear [8] 12/6 51/20 55/3  communicating [3]38/24  conversation {15] 30/25 22/16 64/23

128/9 139/12 151/13 160/12 124/15 175/23 31/15 42/11 43/14 B6/7 cross [7]3/4 87/25 97/17
162/8 communication [3] 40/3 112/12 118/1 118/6 118/21  143/1 143/15 171/3 17521
cleared [3] 51/23 51/25 116/9 124/8 119/7 129/18 141/10 141/12 crouched [3] 59/5 96/23
65/19 communications {1] 20/20 163/7 174/22 96/24

clearing {4] 51/19 55/25 community [1]25/17 conversations [2] 85/24 cruiser [5] 12/17 26/9 65/16
130/2 133/3 compacts [1] 79/8 144/9 102/15 168/18

clerk [21] 5/2 5/16 5/18 7/14 compare [2] 98/23 98/24  conversing [1] 147/20 crying {17 134/7

8/16 9/3 14/8 14/11 14/13  compared [1]23/22 conversion [4] 8/22 18/15  cuba [2] /7 10172

14/21 15/2 15/4 15/13 15/17 complete [1] 107/16 18/19 18/22 cuff {11 64/17

16/5 16/9 16/18 21/13 21/15 completely {17 35/20 converted [3] 3/28 19/5 20/2 cuffed [1] 61/3

129/8 137/7 138/2 138/23  compliance {11 177/9 conway [2] 146/5 146/8 cunnagham [9] 3/6 5/8 5/12
147/17 176/23 compressed [1]62/17 cooperative 2] 141/13 153/216/23 16/25 17/1 17/5 48/2
elerk’s [4] 7/14 129/8 137/7 compression [2] 62/7 62/8 coordinate [1] 12/1 49/19

147/17 compressions [4] 62/16 coordinated [3] 18/12 18/18 cups [1] 94/14

clerks [2] 114/1 137/9 63/21 63/24 134/19 19/24 currently [1] 17/8

climb [1] 73/19 compromise {11 54/12 cops {21 118/14 137/23 cnrtains [1} 109/20

clip [1]23/13 conceal (1] 136/22 copy [318/622/6 22/18  custody [1] 123/25

clips [3]23/1123/19 48/12 concern [2] 84/20 92/14  corner [3] &/15 S0/5 51/22  cut [S] 61/18 61/25 85/6
close [7] 37/19 40/23 54/18 concerning [14] 18/11 37/22 corps [4] 101/7 101/8 101/1085/21 169716

115/14 148/16 151/24 151/2538/18 41/2 64/3 65/21 72/12 101/22 cyber [1] 19/9
closed {22} 24/11 50/18 116/10 137/11 137/17 156/15correct [44] 16/9 23/25 cylinders [1] 110/4
59/16 68/6 68/7 T4/9 74/11  163/7 163/22 167/3 45/11 4811 57/2578/6 84/9

78/1279/10 79/22 107/21  concerns {61 88/24 89/2 88/8 88/11 88/16 89/1592/4 D

108/7 108/11 108/12 108/17 92/12 142/20 144/13 144/16 92/6 93/8 93/14 94/18 95/6

108/23 109/18 109/19 109/20concluded [2] 24/15 101/14 95/12 96/1 96/8 143/23 144/2dark [4] 91/24 97/25 98/2
115/22 119/19 173/5 144/12 144/20 149/2 149/5  98/3




date [4] 16/5 102/9 105/8
137/14

dated [1] 8/15

dave [1] 127/22
dawley's [2] 6/15 6/17
day [16] 1/22 26/1 26/12

describe [16] 37/21 39/1
47/3 52/12 58/20 62/3 85/25
86/25 109/25 125/3 126/1
131/15 134/4 135/1 147/22
170/1

described [5] 72/21 86/15

44/22 45/1 52/18 52/24 98/2598/5 126/19 175/15

102/1 102/3 102/6 103/6
126/20 154/5 154/18 174/17
days [2] 174/19 175/3
dayshift [3] 102/7 163/13
165/18

dead {1] 58/23

deadbolt {17 36/10
dealing [1] 149/11
dealings [3] 41/10 95/25
14977

dealt [1] 105/2
debriefed [1] 174/18
debris [1] 83/13

designated [1] 21/20
destroy [1] 84/24
destroyed [6] 84/25 122/17
131/7 150/5 150/12 150/16
destruction [1] 148/23
details [2] 90/5 145/15
detective [2] 65/14 92/9
detectives [2] 92/25 174/21
determination [1]41/4
determine [3] 37/3 42/25
115/24

determined {1] 8/12

devin {9] 18/9 30/9 33/14

33/12 34/7 34/14 34/20 36/1

50/10 50/13 50/15 50/16

43/21 44/4 44/13 44/18 45/2050/18 50/22 51/1 51/3 51/7

46/20 48/3 48/9 48/17 49/12
49/20 50/1 55/13 56/8 5717
57122 6414 64/5 100/3 100/4

53/6 53/7 53/24 56/23 56/24
57/14 57/25 59/15 $9/17
59/18 59/19 59/21 §9/22

103/16 103/25 106/14 116/1759/23 60/1 67/23 67/25 69/17

124/22 127/7 131/25 132/19
133/8 138/17 138/20 139/1
140/19 155/21 156/20 157/5
161/5 161/6 164/2 165/13
167/23 176/25

discovery [5] 7/25 8/5 8/24
18/20 23/2

69/22 69/24 70/7 70/9 70/10
70/11 70/20 70/20 73/11
73/14 74/5 74/8 74/9 74/10
74/11 78/6 78/7 78/13 78/21
78/21 78/23 79/10 79/21 81/9
81/16 81/19 81/20 81/22 82/3
93/7 93/14 93/22 94/2 106/23

discuss [5] 65/22 65/25 99/6 106/25 107/1 107/2 107/3

99/20 176/20
discussed [2] 24/14 46/12

107/5 107/13 108/2 108/4
108/7 108/15 108/19 109/3

discussion {2} 173/25 174/11111/7 111/11 111/15 111/20

disk [1]21/6
dispatch [4] 63/13 103/2
103/3 103/12

111/21 114/3 114/4 114/6
114/8 114/10 114/10 114/15
114/23 115/1 115/5 115/7

declined [1] 128/5 35/13 36/7 36/8 36/8 37/25
decontaminate [2] 64/21  38/2 89/23

6424 devin's {1]138/2
decontaminated [1] 64/21  difference {2] 8/13 42/21
deeper {1} 131/14 different (57 10/20 80/3
defective [1] 146/7 105/4 146/22 171/22

defense [1] 10/19 differential {1] 20/3
definitely [4] 10/7 92/24 difficulty [1] 173/8
149/10 151/12 diffuse [1] 92/19

delineated [1] 23/7 dagital [1]22/18

demeanor [2] 121/20 128/20 dining [1] 35/9

demolished [1] 125/5 direct [1913/4 7/17 11/24
demonstrate [2] 138/7 17/1 24/23 28/12 33/9 87/17
138/10 88/6 97/6 100/9 103/12
demonstrated [7] 126/15  124/18 127/5 127/5 133/6
138/11 139/6 139/13 139/17 138/13 143/22 153/16
140/10 151/6 directed {1] 138/1
demonstrating [2] 125/25  directing [27) 17/15 25/23
126/14

department [18] 1/6 20/20  69/1 83/9 101/25 102/22
25/725/9 25/11 44/9 49/23  103/20 106/1 127/15 131122
52/9 53/25 54/16 54/18 64/14132/16 154/2 154/25 155/16
88/7 88/11 128/1 128/3 157/13 165/7 166/11

128/12 171/8 176/3 direction [13] 57/3 57/6
department's [1] 53/25 §7/17 58/10 58/14 58/19
depict [10] 67/7 69/6 71/14  58/20 92/22 95/21 95/22
7118 7T1/1776/19 80/11 81/2133/20 133/25 138/12
81/16 82/20 directive [1] 177/10
depicted [16]33/11 73/4  directly [10] 65/20 77/6
7317 74718 78/25 80/15 81/2177/20 94/2 97/13 109/25
83/5 85/4 107/24 10872 120/18 131/2 147/3 156/8
108/21 110/11 115/2 120/21 disarray {2] 50/25 94/7

26/2027/10 29/12 32/2 32/21135/2 148/13 151/7 166/18
demonstrations [1] 148/11 34/16 35/22 43/8 44/15 45/14169/4 173/19

dispatched {15] 27/1927/21 115/8 115/23 116/3 116/7
27/22 32/13 32/1533/) SY11117/11 117/23 118/11 120/1
52/5 52/15 63/11 102/25 120/3 128/19 129/7 129/11
113/10 155/3 155/5 165/6 ~ 129/22 130/4 130/11 130/14
dispatcher {1] 155/23 130/16 130/17 130/18 133/19
disruptions [1] 14/4 137/22 140/23 147/3 147/5
distance {1] 80/24 147/6 147/13 147/17 157/25
districet {8] 1/6 1/13 1/29 158/1 158/3 158/10 158/15
1/30 5/6 17/7 17/10 97/20  158/21 158/24 159/13 159/14
disturbance {3} 102/25 159/17 159/19 162/21 162/22
103/3 112/22 162/23 162/23 164/19 164/22
divided [1]30/3 164/24 172/11 172/14 172/17
dizzy [1] 52/16 172/18 172/23 173/5 173/11
docket [1] 1/15 173/17 173/18 173/19 173/23
document {3] 10/6 20/5 20/6 175/9 175/13 175/16
documentation [2] 7/7 8/5 doors [7]30/531/1 31/4 31/7
doing [1316/2538/747/3  31/14 115/20 130/12

63/23 84/16 103/5 134/18  doorway {5] 40/3 49/5
113/23 130/5 143/10
dorchester [17 1/38
domestic [10] 29/25 90/16  down [33]23/9 24/5 25/13
102/25 103/3 104/20 112/14 35/16 35/17 39/12 40/15 4213
112/23 145/1 155/9 172/6  47/5 54/1 577/24 59/4 59/5
domestices [1] 112/15 61/10 61/25 70/15 92/2 96/23
done [4]) 9/22 18/22 21/3 96/24 98/5 114/5 125122
61/7 126/13 126/15 135/23 135/24
door [203] 3/40 4/13 30/4  147/13 153/13 156/6 158/12
30/4 30/6 30/11 30/11 30/12 169/7 170/20 176/13

30/17 30/18 30/19 30/22 31/1download [3} 8/17 8/17 21/3
31/531/531/831/1031/12 downloaded [2] 8/11 19/8
31/13 32/9 34/25 35/17 35/18dewnloading [1] 21/6

35/18 36/4 36/5 36/10 36/12 downloads [S] 18/7 18/11
36/13 36/15 36/16 36/17 18/24 20/2 22/19

130/8 dise {7113/30 3/313/32 3/33 36/17 36/20 37/3 37/6 37/8  downstairs [2] 56/1 158/9

depicts [8) 28/15 67/3 68/14 S/1 13/24 13/25 15/10 15/12

69/21 70/17 78/9 80/2 81/6  20/17 20/25 21/17 22/4 22/1147/10 47/11 47/12 47/14

deployed [2] 9/7 100/24 22/16 27/2.27715 271/16 28/5

deputy [1] 164/7

37/13 38/8 42/24 42/24 44/9 drauschke [71] 1/34 5/20
5/22 5122 5/25 45/7 45/15

47/15 47716 47/16 48/21 46/2 46/3 46/4 46/7 46/11

28/16 28/21 31/25 32/5 32/2348/21 48/22 48/24 48/25 49/146/15 47/1 49/8 45/16 50/6




55/9 55/16 55/19 56/4 56/11 eastern [2] 18/14 18/18
56/13 57/5 57/11 57/20 58/3 effect [2] 18/15 137/23
58/21 59/9 59/14 59/20 59/23effort {1] 23/21

59/24 59/25 60/9 60/10 60/14efforts [4] 37/2 85/25 160/8
60/22 61/17 62/22 62/25 84/7160/11

85/9 85/20 88/5 88/10 88/14 eft (1] 54/7

92/22 93/19 95/1 96/10 96/11eight [6] 26/3 44/24 44/25
96/11 96/20 127/22 128/16  101/24 154/22 154/22
132/13 132/24 134/11 134/17either [9] 10/5 58/17 107/20
135/8 136/15 143/20 144/1
151/22 152/11 152/15 167/20167/9 174/16

168/14 169/1 170/8 171/6  electromic [1] 177/6

17112 171722 else [14] 9/15 40/1 57/12
drauschke's {3] 57/20 58/3  57/16 58/16 65/17 65/24
85/9 91/10 95/22 151/8 152/5
draw [1] 27/25 161/4 172/17 173120

drawn [1] 108/13 emanatmg [1] 121/23
dressing [4] 62/7 62/8 62/14 emergency [2] 20/19 134/23

62/15 emotional [1] 37/24
drinking [3] 53/19 53/19  emotions [1] 53/20
112/14 employed {2] 17/9 177/13
drive {4] 8/5 12/14 86/20  employees [2] 49/8 141/3
104/5 empty [1] 94/14

driver's [3] 82/10 82/21 83/6en {73 103/23 105/16 156/10
driving [1] 46/4 156/12 156/14 165/23 166/5
droopy [1] 150/23 encounter [4]41/23 50/19
drug [2]41/5 53/19 75112 161/2

drugs [3] 122/2 149/9 encountered [1] 98/4

150/21 end {11]41/23 49/7 64/4
drunk {2] 174723 175/2 77/20 80/17 84/22 118/7
due [7] 29/24 38/5 54/13 123/20 123/22 142/11 161/5

63/19 63/22 124/13 163/17
duplicated [1] 22/6
duration [1] 23/23 56/22 61/18 64/17 66/5 91/5
during [25] 10/1 24/12 30/8 168/22 175/8
40/6 41/12 41/16 64/2 64/11 enforcement {2] 25/12
64/25 90/15 90/15 92/11 101/19
105/22 105/22 123/1 137/11 engaged [1]41/19
142/15 143/25 146/1 146/9  eunhstment {1} 101/22
146/14 147/16 170/15 174/22encugh [2] 151/24 151/25
176/21
duties [2] 19/23 154/18
duty [4]25/24 26/4 104/16  50/1570/11 73/19 130/4
154/3 131/1 158/1 159/7
entered [18] 42/10 42/23
E 49/3 50/10 51/6 69/16 69/25
73/11 86/11 93/20 93/21
each [10] 23/6 23/7 23/9 93/22 130/5 130/14 131/1
23/1023/13 35/2 37/21 59/8 131/2 131/6 172/18
65/23 77/25 entering [2] 99/16 115/16
earlier [9] 5/15 47/20 57/11 enters [1] 69/22
84/17 95/10 103/5115/18  entertain [1] 10/10
115/18 151/7 entire {6] 37/17 63/25 64/20
early [6] 32/8 52/19 52/21  87/18 88/11 173/7
52/22 66/3 92/13 entirety [1] 48/12

ended [14]35/13 35/16

ease [1123/13 entitled {1] 177/5
east [4] 19/9 21/2 28/20
66/18 137722

entry [23] 30/4 30/4 35/12
36/14 36/21 46/14 47/13
49/23 114/24 126/24 128/3
128/10 129/24 130/1 130/11

excuse [2] 50/21 156/24
excused [2] 99/10 99/25
exhibits [6] 1/3 3/26 4/4
72/18 85/13 93/23

130/20 131/20 140/24 149/22existence {1] 124/16

149/25 158/4 172/15 175/6
entryway [2] 114/15 115/8
equipment [6] 7/16 12/5
80/5 80/17 81/21 146/7

59/22 59/24 88/4 127/22

exit [7] 12/25 38/4 53/5 54/1
54/3 98/11 145/20

exited [12]37/18 48/20
51/12 54/3 56/21 56/21 56/24

132/15 152/7 159/10 163/10 erik [19] 1/34 5/22 5/25 59/2 58/15 93/20 95/14 95/20

133/17

132/24 136/20 136/20 143/19exiting [4] 49/15 57/13 95/13

152/9 152/20 152/20 152/21
168/6 169/7 171/6
escorting {1] 54/20
essentially [1] 7/19

essex [1]20/19

evaluate [1] 85/12
evaluated [2] 54/16 66/6
even [8] 53/5 54/5 55/7
92/18 104/6 116/6 145/2
172/16

evening [21] 38/19 38/20

115/16

expected [1] 8/24
experience [6] 25/12 25/15
92/3 101/18 104/9 150/25
expert {1] 10/18

explain [3] 31/3 54/5 54/10
explained [3] 29/17 35/9
38/20

explaining [2] 29/24 140/25
exposing [1] 61/19
express [1] 142/20

66/3 66/25 69/17 74/24 89/15expressed [2] 92/14 117/20

89/21 89/22 950/21 90/22

extent [2] 11/13 90/7

90/23 92/9 92/21 96/7 114/18exterior [7] 107/1 107/2

141/23 172/4 174/7 174/17
174/18

event [1] 118/17

events [2] 127/15 142/18
eventually [4] 54/12 59/3
149/22 172/10

39/22 47/9 52/24 53/16 54/20ever {14] 41/6 49/23 52/4

86/17 90/9 101/11 128/3

111/11 113/23 113/23 114/23
158/3

external {1] 21/22
extractions [2] 3/28 19/5
extreme {1] 53/20
extremely [4] 37/24 39/8
40/21 42/8

eyelids [1] 150/23

129/19 142/10 142/20 147/16eyes [3] 64/10 121/22 150/24

1706/21 171/18 175/7
every [1]1131/7
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97/17 97/19 98/17 98/19 99/536/17 42/1 43/9 46/4 52/3

100/7 100/8 100/9 100/13

52/14 53/9 54/11 55/19 56/13orleans [1] 25/13

100/16 100/17 101/12 101/1559/5 60/7 62/17 64/7 65/9

102/6 103/11 103/18 105/14 68/19 72/1 76/1 79/779/25 oth [1] 57/3

105/14 106/6 106/7 106/21
106/21 111/4 111/4 113/4
113/8 113/9 114/11 115/6

80/6 86/3 86/15 86/17 87/20
93/22 95/22 105/2 106/6
106/6 114/1 116/1 118/23

159/20 pack [1] 79/8

pad [1] 85/9

pages [2] 1/2 20/5
paralegal [6] 5/7 17/7 17/9
other [83] 7/21 9/15 11/5  17/12 17/16 19/23

14/15 15/18 17/24 18/8 25/12paramedics [2] 136/5 136/6

27/2129/10 29/13 31/1 31/1 parked {3] 33/15 58/18

ortiz 11 141/4

115/9 115/11 115/11 115/12 119/11 119/16 120/10 120/1331/4 31/7 31/14 35/19 38/7  75/20

116/14 116/19 116/19 116/22120/14 122/19 130/12 130/1338/18 51/15 52/8 54/17 57/2 part [19] 8/4 17/18 17/21
116/23 118/23 119/2 126/19 130/24 131/16 131/17 135/9 57/3 57/16 58/2 58/18 58/19 15/7 19/23 23/2 35/9 38/11
127/21 127/22 128/15 128/15140/10 141/21 142/23 146/1259/8 61/14 65/24 71/24 77/2538/13 55/1 61/4 72/24 102/19
130722 130/22 130/24 131/19153/10 157/17 159/21 161/1080/5 84/4 86/17 86/22 87/12 109/23 113/9 118/6 133/20

132/4 132/8 132/13 132/24

164/6 164/6 165/9 166/2

134/10 134/13 134/16 134/17172/15 172/16 175124

135/8 135/8 135/8 136/7
136/12 136/12 136/15 143/1
143/3 143/3 143/15 143/19

only [10] 27/18 30/23 31/5
35/20 42/21 67/23 84/17
95/22 123/18 145/23

88/20 94/10 94/14 98/7 99/13154/15 154/16

101/4 101/18 103/7 105/9  partially [2] 120/14 120723
105/9 105/9 105/12 106/2  participants [1] 124/21
111/25 115/15 115/16 115/20particular [9] 52/5 102/6
116/2 116/13 118/7 121/4  102/9 102/22 152/23 154/13

143/23 143/25 144/1 144/14 open [65] 24/12 30/19 35/17 127/17 128/24 131/18 133/16155/3 159/3 169/13
144/19 148/25 151/6 151/22 36/9 40/23 40/24 42/14 42/16133/22 136/8 136/9 144/10 particularly [1] 82/10
151/22 152/11 152/11 152/1544/9 47/11 47/16 47/17 48/21145/23 152/25 157/14 158/11




parties 5] 13/11 16/19
113/10 145/4 177/13
partuner {3] 26/12 102/16
154/11

party [5] 28/8 29/17 105/17
156/15 15712 persons [1] 14/2

pasciucco {257 1/35 1/36 pertinent (1] 137/5

3/11 3/18 3/22 5/24 5/24 6/14peter [5] 1/35 5/24 88/4
8/110/16 11/3 15/9 87/23  143/19171/5

88/1 88/4 143/14 143/16 phone [23] 3/28 18/3 18/8
143719 146/23 151/5 153/10 18/9 18/11 19/5 20/1 46/11
15312 1712 Y71/4 Y71/5  41/24 41/25 42/2 42/5 117/9
pass [1] 59/19 117/9 118/2 118/5 118/7
passageway [1}143/10 137/14 160/9 160/12 160/15
passenger [4]46/5 59/19  160/17 160/19

78/779/10 81/9 phones [3] 8/23 18/7 22/20
passenger's 1] 59/19 photo [60] 3/35 3/36 3/37

157/7 165/16

personally [1] 129/10
personnel [3] 63/15 116/3
170/11

past [9] 40/14 41/5 S2/6

141716 141/18 142/21 146/9 placed [3] 67/18 74/7 105/5 160/8 161/2 161/3 161/8

places [3] 63/20 63/22 119/3 162/1 162/10 162/17 163/21

placing [1] 97/12

plain {2 26/6 102/12
plan [5] 12/2 13/2 32/17
46/13 176/18

planning {1] 6/25

plastic [1]79/7

plate [1] 146/4

play [21]131/23 32/3 32/22

166/4 166/9 167/2 167/7
167/10 167/18 168/20 169/3
169/25 173/13 175/5 175124
pomted {1]47/19

pointing {131 71/9 72/8 75/7
77/12 79/20 83/21 109/8
109/22110/1 115/2 120/8
138/11 140721

34/5 34/12 34/19 35/25 43/18 pole [25] 39/17 43/7 43/15
44/3 44/12 55/12 56/7 103/1471/18 91/13 91/17 97/23
103721 106/13 116/16 131/2497/24 98/1 98/2 98/3 98/8
132/18 156/17 163/25 165/11125/1 125/13 126/19 148/12

played [5) 27/3 28/3 28/4
95/10 155/19

149/16 15177 163/22 164/8
164/9 164/14 170/6 173/14

playing [49] 27/5 27/16 28/5 173/15

$8/25 86/21 88/23 95/25
112/18 155/10
pat [4] 31/18 61/9 106/11

3/38 3/39 3/40 3/41 3/42 3/4328/16 28/21 31/25 32/5 32/23 pelice [74] 7/17 11/24 18/2
3/45 3/46 3/47 3/48 3/49 4/6 33/12 34/7 34/14 34/20 36/1 19/9 20/1 20/20 22/8 23/24
417 4/8 4/9 4/10 4/11 412 43/21 44/4 44/13 44/18 45/2025/7 25/9 25/11 25/20 25/24
4/13 4/14 4/15 4/17 4/18 46/20 48/3 48/9 48/17 49/12 26/10 26/14 26/25 27/2 27/8

135/15 57/19 66/22 67/13 67/18 68/949/20 50/1 50/3 55/13 56/8

patrol [6] 25/8 26/8 102/11
154/6 154/19 156/4
patrolman [1] 25/7

patted [1]61/9

pause [3] 74/13 139/11

68/24 69/11 70/7 71/6 71/21
7215 73/16 74/2 75/5 75/15
7524 76/17 76124 77/10

159/23 108/2 108/5 110/22 114/21
pe [2] 123/23 145/5 130/14
pd [1]5/22 photograph [41] 67/2 68/13

people [11] 12/7 38/24 84/18 69/20 69/21 70/16 70/17
87/12 112/9 128/9 159/8
164/4 168/5 168/16 168/25
per {1]9/24

perfect {1] 5/17

perform [3]61/15 63/1 81/6 81/15 82/8 82/13 83/4
64/13 83/5 83/10 83/16 107/25
perhaps {1] 7/17

perimeter [1] 107/17
period [12] 21/8 25/19 37/2 photographed [1] 65/14
41/19 65/11 101/23 106/8  photographs [8) 66/8 71/13
113721 146/1 147/16 166/22 T1/15 72/13 73/6 73/7 76/21
170/15 8573

permanent {11 171/21 photos [4] 3/44 4/16 72/19
permission {217 5/7 12/12  85/15

27/127/13 28/231/22 34/4  physical 3] 41/3 123/1

34/6 34/13 43/17 44/9 45/18 123/3

56/6 57/4 103/15 106/13 physically [5]26/24 103/4
116/16 155/18 156/17 163/25138/7 138/10 170/16

16721 picture [3] 66/18 85/7 115/3
perrotti [15] 6/3 46/17 48/14 pictures {1} 15/6

86/8 93/13 95/11 96/7 141/7 preee [1] 81/21

142/10 142/14 146/15 146/25pieces [2] 94/11 131/8
147/17 15372 173125 placard [1] 79/23

perry [1]22/8

person [13] 40/5 46/7 49/5
112/2 121710 121/24 136/8

130/8

151/10 163/8

57/7 57/22 103/16 103/25
106/14 116/17 124/22 1277/7
131725 132/19 133/8 138/17

77/22 78/17 79/18 80/8 80/21138/20 139/1 140/19 155/21
81/13 82/3 82/18 82/25 83/18156/20 157/5 164/2 165/13

167123

po[1] 167/22

pocket [3] 60/6 136/22
145/20

T1/17 71123 72/3 73/22 T4/17pockets [2] 60/16 152/18
74/20 76/2 76/13 76/14 76/23point {132] 7/10 10/5 11/6
7712 78/8 78/9 79/4 79/5 80/111/8 12/20 32/12 32/17 32/25174/16 174/19 174/21 176/3
80/2 80/14 80/15 81/5 81/6  33/8 34/2235/1 35/11 36/20 poor [1] 63/22

36/23 37/11 38/23 39/20
40/15 42/1 43/4 44/6 45/13

37/22 42/8 52/8 53/21 54/9
55/1 65/18 65/20 66/4 66/4
86/13 88/7 88/10 88/20 88/25
92/3 92/8 92/25 96/4 97/8
98/10 100/16 100/17 101/12
101/15 101/18 102/1 102/7
102/10 102/15 104/2 111/18
117/18 117/20 128/1 131/12
135/5 13515 142/2 142/3
142/16 143/23 144/1 144/10
144/13 148/25 153/22 153/23
153/25 154/3 154/9 171/8

porch [5] 68/11 120/14
161/4 162/10 166/17

110/10 110/11 114/12 120/2146/8 46/12 47/6 47/14 47/24 portion [2] 73/20 133/10

50/15 51/11 51/14 53/22 56/2posed (1] 10/21

56/2 56/24 577/5 57/9 57/17

position [8) 60/2 77/19 77/24

60/25 61/22 63/2 63/10 63/13101/23 121/3 134/24 135/13

64/7 70/22 70/24 71/14 74/4
7514 78/12 84/7 86/3 94/22
96/23 104/7 105/16 105/20

135/25
possession {2] 121/18 145/21
possi [11 167/22

105/22 106/21 106/23 110/25 possibly [2] 92/6 116/4

111/13 111/24 113/4 113/13
113/18 113/21 115/15 116/9
116/10 116/25 118/20 119/7
119/12 115/23 121/3 121/15
122/1 122/6 122/12 122/19
123/20 124/1 124/15 125/6
127/25 131/11 132/2 132/8
132/13 133/3 133/4 133/10

post {1} 170/3

potentially [1] 12/13
pounded 1] 159/17
prelminary {113 7/21 7/23
9/13 9/14 9/15 11/5 16/8
16/10 16/22 24/10 176/16
premises {9] 34/23 73/13
73/20 75/11 87/12 102/19

134/10 134/13 135/13 135/19106/22 133/11 133/20

158/20 159/4 159/12 160/5

place [13} 31/15 37/16 86/21 135/21 135/23 136/4 136/9 preparation [1] 19/24
92/23 122/16 122/17 123/12 136/15 136/24 137/1 137/13 prepared [6] 11/10 11/24
123/24 126/14 150/12 150/16137/21 141/9 149/11 158/6  20/17 21/6 42/7 86/12

preparing [2] 63/18 65/6




)
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presence {10} 31/17 38/14  providing [1] 63/25
38/22 65/10 96/4 111/8 public 4] 13/7 13/9 24/12
111/13 131/11 138/8 160/5  24/15

present [2] 43/13 89/14 pull {3] 126/12 157/16

presented [1] 10/25 15717
presently [1] 100/19 pulled {3] 77/3 146/3 146/5
presents {17 10/18 pulling [1745/23

preserve [1] 64/22
pressed [1] 89/24 pump {1} 152/10
pressure [1] 62/14 pumps [1174/19

pretty [5]43/3 122/3 123/5 punch {1] 37/25

130/16 133/23 pupils [1] 150/23
previous [3] 33/5 53/12 purpose [1] 123/8

172/6 purpeses [3] 20/17 67/15
previously {9] 8/18 41/9 70/9

47/15 107/23 108/24 109/13 pursuant [1] 10/8
120/16 130/7 135/4 pushing [1] 135/3
printed [1] 18/24 put {9] 10/18 62/14 64/19
prior [39] 14/8 25/11 37/23  65/6 92/2 125/16 135/20
38/19 38/20 41/6 41/14 46/13135/23 135/24

46/25 54/24 66/5 86/17 86/24

88/14 88/24 89/21 89/22 Q

90/15 90/21 90/22 95/13 96/6

10173 104/15 104/24 112/2  quarters [3] 63/19 64/16
112/17 117/19 129/20 133/11170/1

145/9 145/13 146/14 146/16 quaverly [4] 1/47 177/3
146/25 155/13 166/19 167/17177/8 177/12

pulise [3] 62/9 62/11 62/12

ran [9] 57/3 57/24 57/24
58/20 75/11 95/11 133/17
133/19 134/10

randall [1] 14173

rapport {1] 176/7

rather {2] 12/1 84/15
rational [2] 128/22 151/12
rawson [1] 6/3

110/10 110/13 114/11 120/17
121/10 121712 125/9 125/12
130/8 130/10 132/21 164/4
recogmized {1] 121/16
recognizing [1] 68/13
recallection [3] 93/3 93/12
174725

recommended [1] 89/5

reach [4] 97/13 160/9 160/11record [16] 5/4 13/25 15/12

176/8
reading [44] 5/22 7/17 8/20

15/22 17/4 25/4 27/1 50/3
67/15 70/9 100/4 100/12

11/23 12/1 12/17 12/17 12/18125/21 127/8 153/19 177/5

18/6 20/20 22/7 25/7 25/8
25/1125/24 26/14 27/2 52/8
66/4 88/7 88/10 92/9 100/16
100/17 101/11 101/15 102/1
102/7 102/10 102/11 104/2

recorded [10] 17/22 18/2
18/1723/23 43/18 66/3 84/22
103/13 142/4 155/23
recording [4] 5/2 7/16 12/4
17716

106/17 106/17 111/18 143/23 recordings [1] 15/6

143/25 153/24 153/25 154/3
154/14 167/16 171/8 171/12
176/3

ready [1] 16/20

real [14] 8/23 19/14 19/16
19/20 20/3 20/9 28/12 33/9
37/4 45/19 125/24 126/6
138/16 150/24

realized {5] 57/1 58/16 61/8

170/22
probable [4] 90/18 104/21
123/10 124/16

questioned [4] 55/6 58/5
58/6 92/21
questions [11] 9/20 10/5

134712 152/2
rear [1] 169/8
reason {3] 24/12 112/21

probably {71 13/1 42/9 104/654/19 87/15 87/22 87/23 88/5122/9

151724 156/7 170/3 171/14
problems [1] 37/20
procedures [1] 130/3
proceeded [4] 51/21 61/15
74/12 96/16

proceeding [1] 7/12
proceedings [1] 84/21
process [1] 11/2
profanity [1] 123/18

professional [3] 25/15 87/13 26/2126/23 27/7 27/11 28/7 104/16 132/25 155/8 155/13

87/19

promised [1] 6/19

prone {1] 135/24

proof [2} 10/4 10/8
propane [1] 110/3
proper [1] 7/15

property [3] 148/23 161/18
172/15

protect {1} 65/7

protocol [1] 97/8

provide {8} 9/2 9/19 10/17
23/12 38/17 64/18 137/16
158/13

provided [13] 18/12 18/18

18/20 20/19 21/2 23/223/10 radioed [1] 149/15
23/23 33/25 84/8 84/10 85/20rasing [1] 125/23

159/8

97/19 141/15 143/20 171/6  reasoms [1] 54/22
quick [2] 74/9 173/2 receive [15] 26/21 27/11
quickly [8] 54/4 56/25 57/3 31/18 44/16 56/4 105/17
58/16 58/19 61/9 63/23 64/14106/10 107/3 116/2 119/7
133/7 155/1 156/14 167/18
R 167/25
received {15] 6/21 15/13
radio {707 3/30 18/2 19/25 26/23 52/9 96/25 97/3 99/8
20/18 20/25 23/18 26/14 99/21 103/2 103/8 103/23

29/931/18 32/233/6 33/8  receiving [4] 45/13 104/15
33/21 34/9 34/17 35/22 36/3 129/14 156/3

43/8 43/13 45/13 51/12 55/8 recently (1] 100/24

55/23 56/4 56/19 58/3 59/6  recess [8] 12/2 12/23 13/24
88/13 94/25 103/18 104/15  15/10 99/13 99/25 100/3
105/13 105/13 105/17 105/23176/23

106/10 116/12 124/7 124/18 recitation [1]20/9

124/24 127/1 127/8 131/18  recognize [56] 20/6 22/18

records [1] 23/23

recross {1]3/4

red [2] 59/12 59/17
redfield [1] 1/37

redirect [2] 3/4 98/17

refer [2] 64/24 123/13
reference {4] 41/13 112/17
141716 148/12

referencing [3] 69/13 78/19
114/23

referred {1] 18/12
referring [6] 60/18 68/11
70/10 106/25 130/18 164/8
refused [3] 60/15 90/7
141/14

regard [27] 6/20 19/12 19/20
27/25 31/17 33/21 38/22 65/3
65/10 66/7 67/18 72/21 75/7
T 77117 78124 79/23 85/24
86/14 98/8 103/2 103/12
105/5 107/17 123/17 127/15
142/9

regarding {3] 30/25 86/23
142/19

reguiar [1] 13/6

regularly [1] 154/19
related [5] 18/4 20/19 41/3
65/4 177/13

relation [5] 16/18 59/21
105/6 119/25 164/24
relative [3] 77/25 79/13

131/22 132/13 132/16 133/1128/14 28/14 28/19 32/4 33/11166/6

133/24 136/6 149/15 154/21 45/25 55/15 56/10 66/14

relatively [1]77/2

155/1 155/13 155/16 156/3  66/17 67/2 67/5 67/19 67/21 released [1] 84/21
156/11 163/21 164/1 164/4  68/14 69/4 69/21 70/16 70/19relief {1} 63/18

165/5 165/7 167/2 167/18
167/25 168/9

71/15 7217 73/4 73/7 7319
73122 74/17 75/16 715/18
76/14 18/8 1914 79/24 80/1

85/4 107/24 108/25 109/2

relieved [5] 65/15 169/21
169/23 169/24 169/25
remain (4] 65/11 87/19

80/15 81/6 81/16 83/4 83/20 110/25 113/1




.').

remained [5] 42/17 42/22  result {12] 27/7 27/18 34/1  100/4 103/16 103/25 106/14 scuffling [1] 167/17

42/23 65/13 166/20 35/11 43/25 127/1 129/14  116/17 124/22 127/7 131/25 seafood [1] 106/17
remaining [1] 8/16 133/16 137/6 155/3 156/3  132/19 133/8 138/17 138/20 sealed [1] 5/2

remind [2] 24/8 24/11 165/5 139/1 140/19 155/21 156/20 sean {9] 3/15 9/6 100/7 100/8
reminded [1] 176/20 resume {1] 57/5 157/5 161/5 164/2 165/13  100/9 100/13 136/21 143/1
remote [1] 15/3 resuscitate [1] 134/18 167/23 176/25 143/15

removed [1] 63/3 returned [1] 66/6 search [2] 129/24 133/5
removing [1] 84/8 reveals [1]28/24 S searched [1] 97/14

render [1]74/12 reverse [1] 49/18 seat [1146/5

rendering [3] 64/25 74/4  review [8] 7/7 13/21 14/1  safety [4] 54/22 74/11 84/12 second [11] 8/5 29/4 35/15
7417 18/2 18/7 18/14 19/7 142/6  97/11 73122 80/18 93/14 106/5
repaired [2] 152/8 152/8  reviewmng {1] 23/15 salem [2]25/18 25/21 147/17 150/12 159/21 164/7
report [81 24/16 28/8 65/20 rewind [1] 49/19 same [16] 16/6 33/543/2  seconds [8] 8/11 8/12 8/13
65/24 84/22 103/5 113/15  ride [1] 89/12 4724 47/25 5725 7411 87/1419/15 19/22 20/3 56/3 56/12
155/9 righthand [2] 30/23 77/5  88/19 92/22 99/2 115/10 section 1] 75/9

reported [1] 26/4 road [1] 151/20 144/5 146/1 157/14 166/12  sector [8] 57/1 102/11
reporting [7] 28/8 38/12 role [5] 10/2 10/9 64/13 saturday [6] 25/23 89/19 102/18 102/18 102/20 154/15
38/13 43/14 105/17 156/15  122/21 141/22 90/17 101/25 154/2 1722 154/16 154/20

157/2 roll [4] 47/23 103/5 104/16 savio [18] 45/5 45/1546/2  see {67} 30/10 30/15 32/9
reports [2] 3/34 22/25 144/25 46/3 46/5 46/12 46/15 51/11 32/20 39/14 39/21 40/5 40/6
represent [3] 88/4 143/19  room [49] 3/45 3/46 5/4 12/862/20 63/25 127/22 128/15  40/20 46/16 46/22 49/10
171/5 24/924/1430/2131/331/3 131/19 132/4 132/8 166/2  50/16 50/24 51/14 59/1 59/9
representation [12] 66/24  32/9 35/2 35/4 35/7 35/9 169/2 170/7 60/2 67/25 68/3 74/20 76/9

70/2 71/2 72/14 74/23 77/18 35/10 48/14 50/10 50/13 51/8saw [27] 51/10 51/10 58/20 79/2 82/13 91/20 91/20 94/2
78/11 80/24 81/8 82/9 110/1651/16 65/24 68/16 69/5 72/2261/20 61/20 67/7 67/17 67/2294/18 95/11 95/14 97/21 98/2

114/17 72/24 73/5 73/10 73/16 74/1 81/18 94/6 94/22 97/25 98/3 98/2 103/7 107/5 107/21
request [6] 7/24 23/12 33/17 74/2 94/1 94/11 94/14 94/15 98/22 126/21 131/17 132/8 109/6 110/17 111/4 115/16
105/23 128/1 172/23 120/17 120/18 122/16 122/18134/10 162/7 162/8 169/1 115/19115/21 119/17 120/8
reguested [6] 21/8 28/8 129/20 130/2 131/1 131/2  169/5 169/5 169/7 169/8 12177 121/9 123/1 124/5
32/18 61/16 105/22 113/13  131/4 131/5 131/14 133/17  170/18 170/19 12516 127/17 127/20 129/3
requesting [2] 5/14 157/7  164/18 170/1 170/9 scan [1] 74/9 130/15 132/4 133/18 133/22
required [1] 18/16 roommate [4] 52/25 53/16  scattered [1] 94/13 134/6 134/23 135/11 140/21
res [1]33/18 89/23 159/4 scenarios [1] 171/16 147/10 151/23 152/1 168/14
rescue [1] 63/15 roommates {5] 114/2 116/3 scene [66] 3/33 4/9 4/10 4/11 168/14 168/25 170/16
reserves [2] 100/22 100/23  122/18 150/19 163/10 4/15 4/16 22/7 22/1022/16  seeing [6] 94/4 98/24 107/10
resided (1] 32/10 rothenberg {4] 1/47 177/3  28/8 28/25 29/5 29/7 29/15 148/23 166/19 169/9
residence [13] 46/16 73/20 177/8 177/12 30/10 32/18 33/4 52/17 52/23seemed [1] 162/22

93/10 93/11 93/21 94/17 roughed [1] 145/2 54/13 54/17 64/22 64/23 65/3seen [4] 9/23 37/19 129/19
106/24 122/11 133/10 149/23roughly {1] 157/15 65/7 65/7 65/13 65/19 79/18 144/9

149/25 172/15 175/6 route [9] 13/1 103/23 105/16 80/8 80/21 83/18 85/15 87/4 segments [2] 23/9 23/11
residential [1] 102/20 151/17 156/10 156/12 156/1487/13 90/24 91/2 91/5 92/4  self [1] 112/16

respect [5] 7/23 73/18 74/S  165/23 166/5 92/14 93/2 93/2 93/12 106/6 senior {1] 89/5

82/5153/3 rules [2] 6/21 66/1 132/9 137/4 143/4 143/5 sense [1]7/20

respond {8} 38/15 63/13 ruling [1] 14/5 143/6 145/6 147/2 147/12  sent [3] 5/14 6/22 8/9

105/9 122/12 144/19 156/8 run [2] 57/16 58/13 152/24 152/25 157/2 157/8  separate [5] 21/4 21/25
171724 172122 running {11] 54/4 54/8 157/11 159/5 162/25 167/1  27/23 27/24 35/21
responded [11] 28/20 33/17 56/22 57/10 57/20 5821 171/24 172/2 172/10 174/1  separated [2] 35/5 38/5
63/15 64/12 88/13 89/19 58/22 133/19 136/21 136/23 175/10 175/11 separating [1] 148/21
90/17 104/13 104/16 144/7  168/16 screaming [4]39/9 40/19  sequence [1] 48/19

151/14 runs [1] 77/14 172/24 173/22 sequestration [3] 99/6 99/14
responding [4] 63/17 86/22 runtime [59] 5/1 13/24 sereen [17] 40/25 41/1 51/13 99/19

106/3 116/1 13/25 15/10 15/12 27/5 27/1652/3 72/1 115/10 119/16 sergeant [32] 31/18 32/15

response (6] 97/23 107/3  28/528/1628/21 31/25 32/5 119/18 119/20 128/19 148/7 33/3 33/19 44/8 44/21 44/22
117/16 136/18 157/10 163/1232/23 33/12 34/7 34/14 34/20148/17 149/8 162/7 162/9  44/23 45/15 45/22 46/11

responsibilities [3] 17/18  36/1 43/21 44/4 44/13 44/18 162/13 162/18 46/15 47/6 49/10 49/11 49/16
101/19 101/19 45/20 46/20 48/3 48/9 48/17 sereens [1}47/24 63/4 65/6 65/24 93/19 106/11
restaurant [1] 106/17 49/12 49/20 50/1 55/13 56/8 scuff [1] 167/16 116/9 124/8 124/10 124/25

5717 57/22 6414 64/5 100/3  scuffing [2] 161/24 165/3




127/12 127721 128/15 130/21

136/13 162/5 165/25 166/5  80/10 80/23 81/5 81/15 83/4 79/3 82/20 83/7 132/9 169/7

sergeant's [1] 65/24
series [2] 7/25 66/8
serve [1]25/19

76/13 76121 78/8 79/4 80/1

83/20 85/17 107/23 108/24

snow [9] 75/10 75/13 78/3

170/20

109/13 110/10 114/11 125/9 sobriety [1141/3

130/7

sofa [1] 72/25

service [6] 19/10 21/2 101/3 shown [5] 79/5 98/19 108/4 sold [1] 146/12

101/10 101/11 101/14

108/25 130/12

solely [1] 47/6

services [3] 3/33 22/10 22/16shows [6] 47/25 57/10 57/13 somewhat [1] 120/7

session [1] 100/1

set [3] 7/13 34/24 74/21
seven [8] 17/11 25/21 105/8
121/17 122/9 145/13 166/2
166/3

several [3] 59/11 86/21
96/17

shades [2] 107/21 108/13
shadowy [1] 162/8

shape (2] 98/22 99/2
shared [1] 24/13

shell [4] 79/25 80/6 85/6
85/8

shift [24] 26/2 26/3 26/3
38/1138/12 38/13 44/22
44/25 45/3 45/5 45/7 45/8
45/9 52/23 88/19 102/4
102/14 103/7 124/11 144/5
163/15 17117 171/21 171/22
shifts [1] 66/12

shipped {1] 9/8

shirt [2] 61/25 169/16
shoot [8] 60/17 60/17 60/21
60/21 96/18 96/18 134/7
134/8

shooting [1] 92/23
shootings [1] 97/4

shore {2} 25/17 25/21

short [1] 106/8

shortly [3] 77/15 91/1
157/19

shot [10] 58/23 58/23 85/13
85/18 97/7 136/20 136/24
141/16 141/21 152/22
shots {107 58/3 58/4 133/24
148/9 151/14 168/7 168/9
168/10 168/12 168/15

show [29] 30/10 32/18 57/9
57/12 60/15 66/7 69/20 71/13
71723 72/12 73/23 75/15
77/17 79/10 79/13 80/14 81/5
82/8 85/3 96/17 120/16
122/11 126/2 127/2 131712
149/20 152/20 152/21 159/5
showed [4] 108/9 122/15
1§7/18 157/20

shower {1] 52/2

showing {31]20/5 21/21
21/22 45/18 66/14 68/13 69/4
70/16 71/8 73/2 73/6 74/17

80/4 114/12 139/8
shut [6] 107/20 108/23

somewhere [6] 65/16 143/9
158/17 168/20 165/8 169/9

109/20 115/22 124/4 132/10 sort [4] 9/23 43/5 88/23

sie {135 19/22 30/21 31/20

152/10

47/20 47/25 60/9 64/7 117/13sound [3] 93/6 156/1 177/6

128/20 135/15 138/6 152/8
165/3

side [47] 30/23 33/15 35/14
36/19 37/7 51/9 57/2 58/18
67/6 70/21 75/21 76/2 76/4
76/5 7715 7716 7817 81/17
82/10 82/14 82/20 82/21
82/25 83/2 83/2 83/3 83/6
83/7 83/13 83/23 84/11
107/18 108/10 108/18 11572
117/21 12174 123/9 123/12
126/17 129/7 14777114717
157/25 158/1 170/5 17319
sign [7] 14/8 14/14 15/20
75/21 76/11 76/19 82/13
signal [1] 103/18

sill {17 148/20

silva [26] 31/18 44/8 44/21
44/22 44/23 45/15 45/22

63/4 93/19 106/11 116/9
124/8 124/10 124/25 127/12

sounded {4] 133/12 155/25
160/17 160/18

sounds [1] 118/6

sources [1] 20/10

south [1] 154/15

sp [11 123/15

space [1] 79/1

speak [23] 7/14 12/16 25/2
37/1139/12 39/23 40/12
53/23 65123 86/6 87/5 87/8
87/17 98/12 112/10 112/23
119/10 120/5 137/8 141/2
141/15 159/20 162/2
speaker [S] 38/2 44/6 55/15
56/10 160/21

speakers [1] 124/24
speaking [24] 8/11 35/13

stand [2] 10/20 126/2
standard [3] 18/14 18/19
13072

standards [4]} 10/9 13/2]
14/1 14/2

standing [17] 38/8 38/9 39/2
39/5 41/21 42/2 42/24 5112
51/11 58/16 58/16 70/15
70/21 86/591/14 123/2
143/10

start [5] 11/17 11/17 168/16
176/15 176/18

started [18] 7/22 35/1 37/25
38/1 55/25 61/15 62/12 62/13
63/21 74/7 102/4 135/15
135/23 136/7 136/8 158/21
169/18 172124

starting [4] 138/15 168/5
168/13 168/14

state [16] 11/25 17/3 19/9
22/8 25/3 25/18 66/4 92/8
92/25 100/11 142/2 142/3
153/18 174/16 174/19 174/21
stated [12]60/16 112/13
112/22 117/8 117/17 122125
123/11 123/11 128/18 128/19
129/3 15220

statement [1] 135/4
statements [1] 96/21

states [1] 9/6

44/8 4716 47/11 52/25 53/16 station [83] 3/35 3/47 19/10
71/25 77/2 86/10 87/14 8§7/1521/22 21/22 23/16 26/25 27/8
46/15 49/10 49/11 49/16 63/391/5 91/14 92/8 121/21 131/228/20 25/16 30/2 30/2 31/10

139/8 143/3 148/5 151/12
160/23 164/19 174/16

127/21 128/15 130/22 136/13 specialized [1} 97/4

162/5 165/25

silver [1] 76/9

similar [1] 148/13

sit [3] 14/15 24/9 65/15
sitting [1] 169/7
situated [5] 26/24 81/24
103/4 107/12 151/23

specific [3] 55/20 94/9 97/4
specifically [17] 21/21 33/2
38/15 56/2 71/9 94/6 96/13

32/7 32/10 33/15 33/16 38/10
47/13 48/8 48/12.49/3 50/10
50/12 56/22 57/2 57/14 65/18
65120 66/22 69/17 69/23
70/12 70/14 70/23 70/25
73/10 74/19 7515 75/19 76/3

104/19 106/11 115/13 116/1383/1 83/2 83/3 83/7 83/23

117/8 123/15 131719 141/3
141/24 143/11
spell [4] 17/4 25/3 100/12

situation [S] 61/5 63/3 92/19 153/19

104/20 128/17
situations [1] 171/15
six [1] 101724

size [2] 98/22 99/2
slammed [1] 124/1
sleeve [1]21/12

slow [1] 151/11
slumped [1] 135/18
smashed [3] 90/10 150/1
150/8

smell [2] 121/23 150/22
smelled [1] 64/9

spelled [2] 100/14 153/20
spoke [6]37/14 112/25
123/8 137/9 139/3 152/24
sports [1]45/23

spot [1] 170/11

sta [2] 94/1 142/1

stacey (1] 1/23

stack [1] 84/2

stacked {1] 130/2

staff {171 11/8

stages [1] 32/8

staircase {1} 72/11

stairs [5]51/21 51/22 57/24
94/12 158/12

89/15 90/17 92/15 93/7 93/25
95/8 103/8 104/2 104/3
105/10 110/2 110/14 111725
112/3 114/1 116/3 118/4
129/8 130/6 133/20 135/5
137/7 137/16 141/3 141/23
142/1 144/22 148/5 151/18
151/19 152/7 152/11 155/5
156/12 157116 157/17 175/9
stay [4] 13/18 37/18 93/19
141/22

stayed [3] 37/17 64/19 64/22
step [3] 54/13 54/16 54/17
stepbrother {2] 16/1 16/11
stephanie [2] 146/5 146/8
stepped [2] 35/1 42/1

steps [5]24/5 73/19 115/15
153/13 176/13




stick [3]43/543/14 91/13
sticking {17 135/17

still {22] 30/9 36/9 37/1
37/13 38/8 40/3 42/14 42116
55/2 55/7 63/25 92/18 95/23
1131/7 111/11 113/19 124/5
143/10 162/20 166/17 174/9
174/16

stockade [2] 79/13 §1/2
stone [2] 6/11 6/12

stop (8] 47/21 52/4 136/23
136/24 141/1 145/19 146/10
176/14

stopped 1} 133/5

stops [2] 77/15 105/3

store [3]29/22 48/8 49/8
stormed (1] 124/2

sweatshirt [5] 60/5 61/2
61/18 85/7 140/7

sweeney [3] 16/1 16/3 16/11
swinging [2] 138/11 138/12
switch [1]63/20

switching [1] 63/22

testimony [5] 7/11 11/14
99/6 99/20 142/7

texts [1] 20/1

that'd {1] 116/22
themselves [2] 5/4 111/14
thereabouts [2] 106/2

sworn [5] 16/25 24/20 99/17 154/25

100/8 153/15
swung [1] 126/5
synchronization [1] 23/18

T

ta [1]94/15

table [7] 4/19 71/10 71/16
90/3 94/15 98/20 125/18
tables (3] 90/14 150/1 150/5

story [4137/7 112/24 117/22 tact [1] 86/25

123/9

straight {2] [14/10 151/20
street {157 1/37 2/7 12/25
18/4 22/7 102/19 104/4
106/19 145/17 146/3 154/16
155/6 156/6 156/6 156/16
strictly [1] 65/23

strike [5] 66/7 102/19
118/19 120/5 173/15

stuff [4] 122/19 147/9 165/4
169/17

subsequently [5] 18/22
19/19 98/19 101/15 142/6
substance [1] 175/4
substituted [2] 8/15 8/23
subtract [1] 18/17
successful {1] 54/2
sudden [1] 134/5

suite [1] 1/37

summons {1 15/13
supervisor [1] 124/11
supplemental {1} 8/1
supply {1} 62/20
supported [1} 89/4
supporting [1] 62/19
supposed [1} 102/5
surpassed [1] 58/25
surveillance [9] 3/31 3/32
8/10 19/8 19/13 20/2 21/17
2214 2313

tacties [1] 10/19

tailhght [2] 82/5 146/4
taking [1]37/16

talk [33]37/6 37/8 39/11
39/17 39/18 39/18 39/18
40/11 42/3 105/24 111/23
113/3 113/3 117/14 117/21
128/18 128/19 136/15 158/2

thereof [1] 177/6

thick [1] 165/1

thickly [1] 147/8

thighs [1] 60/6

thing [6] 5/3 14/15 53/10
88/23 147/2 147/5

third [4] 46/6 46/7 106/5
106/7

threatened {4] 125/13
125/14 137/22 140/24
threatening [3] 98/6 98/7
125/24

threats {21 39/15 40/21

58/22 58/25 60/4 63/18 69/23
136/25 138/1 138/12 161/21
166/17 169/8 170/20

town [6] 100/16 102/11
106/17 153/24 154/13 154/15
toyota [2] 77/4 77/5

track [86] 5/1 13/24 13/25
15/10 15/1227/2 2715 27111
27116 27/25 28/5 28/16 28/21
31/1931/2532/3 32/5 32/21
32/23 33/12 34/1 34/7 34/12
34/14 34/16 34/20 35/22 36/1
43/20 43/21 44/1 44/4 44/10
44/13 44715 44/18 45/20
46/20 4873 48/9 48/17 49/12
49/20 50/1 55/10 55/13 56/8
57/7 57/22 64/4 64/5 100/3
100/4 103/13 103/16 103/20
103/25 106/11 106/14 116/17
124/19 124/22 12716 127/7

three [14] 10/20 25/14 28/11 131/25 132/17 132/19 133/7

30/14 94/3 108/21 137/9

133/8 138/17 138/20 139/1

145/16 148/18 148/19 148/24140/19 155/16 155/21 156/17

149/7 162/24 170/12
threw 1] 38/1
throughout [7] 50/19 63/25

158/22 158/25 158/25 159/1887/19 118/23 160/13 16172
161/19 161/20 161/22 162/21166/22
162/23 163/10 164/20 173/24thrown [1] 84/11

17524 176/5

tight [2] 63/19 64/16

talked [5] 83/7 120/20 129/2 timeline [7] 3/29 8/8 8/14

160/15 160/16

talking [22] 36/12 36/14
37/5 38/6 40/8 47/8 48/22
87/11 98/5 117/9 119/21

8/14 19/24 20/9 20/15
times [8] 18/25 19/25 38/1
86/21 96/17 104/14 105/3
153/6

120/19 121/10 140/22 143/12timestamp [3] 28/13 45/19

143/13 160/7 160/14 162/7
16279 162/18 164/21

tall [1] 121/5

tank {2]73/23 73/25
tanks [2] 110/3 110/3
tape [2] 81/17 81/19
teach [1] 89/13

team [1] 129/16
television {2] 73/23 74/21
ten {3] 13/3 101/10 162/16
tending [1] 64/2

terms [32] 10/9 12/7 12/8

138/16

timestamped [1] 33/10
tires [1] 84/2

tobin [1] 1/36

today {121 9/11 11/6 11/11
11/19 37/24 88/5 122/10
143/20 159/25 171/7 174/25
176/14

together [2] 27/23 171/18

156/20 157/5 161/5 161/6
164/2 165/11 165/13 167/19
167/23 176/25

traffic [1] 105/3

training [9] 61/4 89/6 89/8
89/10 92/3 96/25 97/3 150/25
15111

trains [1] 89/11

transeribe [2] 17/21 17/24
transcriber {2] 1/48 177/3
transeript [2] 142/7 177/10
transcriptionist {1} 17/24
transcripts [1] 1/47
transferred [1] 64/25
transmission [55] 26/21
26/2127/127/12 28/7 29/9
31/18 32/2 32/4 33/6 33/8
34/9 35/22 36/3 43/8 43/14
44/15 45/13 55/9 56/19 58/3
103/8 104/15 105/13 105/17
105/23 106/11 116/12 116/13
124/19 124/24 125/1 12711

tomorrow [5] 176/15 176/16 127/8 131/22 132/16 132/21

176/17 176/19 176/23
tone [6] 86/25 87/11 87/14

suspect [9] 29/17 51/12 59/3 12/8 21/19 21/24 38/14 64/13121/20 147/21 159/15
61/592/4 92/6 155/11 155/1271/23 75/11 83/12 98/22

158/2 158/21

suspect's [1] 158/21
suspects [2] 88/21 144/10
suv [1] 76/9

swapped [1] 170/12
swearing [3]40/20 54/8
161/18

tools {1] 94/13

101/10 101/18 108/10 109/25top [5] 36/10 51/22 67/10

118/19 119/25 120/4 120/7
120/20 121/14 122/7 141/22
142/13 154/18 157/10 158/3

83/11 83/22
totally [1] 131/7
tough [1] 110/4

159/15 163/12 165/20 168/24tow 1] 54/22

testified [3] 97/6 97/23 98/8
testify [3] 9/8 10/20 99/19

toward {1] 138/1
towards [18]47/10 48/21
56/22 57110 57/14 57/20

133/7 133/11 133/24 149/16
155/1 155/16 155/24 156/3
156/11 163/21 164/1 164/5
165/5 165/8 167/2 167/19
167/25 168/10
transmissions {10] 3/30 18/2
19/2520/18 20/25 23/18
26/24 33/21 131/18 155/13
transmaitted [1] 28/1
transpired [2] 12/11 144/23
transpiring [1] 116/10
transported {1] 54/21




trash [1] 94/12

travelling [1] 27/10
traverse [1] 147/8
treatment {1] 63/16
tremont [1]2/7

trial [4] 1/7 7/14 13/6 177/9
triangle [1] 59/13

tried [13] 30/19 36/9 36/15
37/25 41/24 42/6 51/1 5172
86/4 86/10 162/22 169/16
169/17

trooper {8] 8/11 8/22 11/25

19/8 19/13 19/13 19/19 22/7

truck [2] 76/6 145/18
true [1] 177/4

truly [1] 10/11

trust [3] 53/21 54/9 98/10
try [18]31/3 39/12 40/11

64/8 87/17 92/18 92/19 107/5unit [9] 9/7 17/8 17/13 19/9

116/4 158/1 158/2 158/21
158/22 159/2 159/7 159/13
160/8 162/21

trymg [43) 8/19 14/18 31/6
35/21 36/20 37/5 37/5 37/8

39/6 39/11 39/11 39/12 39/17umversity [2] 25/16 25/18
39/23 40/3 41/21 46/13 54/5 unknown [1] 128/21
54/10 61/16 86/5 86/6 87/18 unless {1] 13/18

91/6 92/16 92/17 107/9 111/7unlocked {1} 107/6
114/24 117/10 135/14 135/1%until [18] 9/8 24/15 36/25

unaware [1] 74/10
uncertain [1] 128/6
uncooperative [1] 142/21
uncuffing [1] 64/17

use [11] 10/18 10/19 26/18
34/25 41/5 53/19 96/25 97/5
116/2 150/25 159/8

used [12] 18/25 80/5 85/6

31/2033/9 33/10 33/12 45/18
45/20 46/20 46/22 47/23 48/3
48/9 48/17 49/2 49/12 49/20
50/1 57/5 5717 57/22 94/22

under [10] 46/22 99/5 99/19 85/8 85/9 87/11 87/14 123/1395/10 95/13 138/13 138/15

105/5 122/1 122/4 128/21  123/18 125/1 127/2 152/6
149/1 149/4 150/20 using {5120/3 64/17 87/15
understand [7) 9/18 10/11  125/20 126/4

99/5 99/8 99/9 99/22 165/21 usual {1] 154/20
understanding {11] 12/11  ute [3] 8/18 18/12 18/20
81/16 86/24 89/7 89/20 90/18utility [1] 45/23

95/16 96/3 96/6 124/10 150/4
understands [1]24/16
understood [1] 139/24
unfolding (2] 62/24 162/24 vaguely (1] 166/19
uniform [4] 26/6 26/7 van [3] 46/1 46/1 46/4
102/12 102/13 vantage [8] 39/20 50/15
uniformed [1] 154/7 70/22 7024 71/14 125/6
133/10 162/10

various [3] 20/9 110/4
171/15

Vv

26/1026/12 27/18 52/5
158/11

united [1] 9/6

units [1} 27/21

universal [2] 18/12 18/18

38/17 40/2 43/1 43/2 49/7

63/23 87/2 90/14 93/18
116/22 116/23 136/12 163/5
163/7 163/13 163/14 169/2
169/24 169/25 170/8 170/8
170/12

135/21 137/13 148/22 152/2539/25 57/17 63/6 65/11 65/13vehicle [28] 4/7 26/8 29/4
155/10 159/1 161/22 162/20 65/16 91/7 99/7 99/21 119/2333/22 37/17 45/23 45/25

164/20 170/6 173/23
tucked {17 60/5

turn [1] 29/1

turned [2] 64/8 133/5
turning [1] 89/14
turtle [1] 73/25
tussle [17 87/7

tv [1] 14/25

twenty [1] 147/14
twice {11 171/20

two [37] 15/18 17/14 18/7

138/17 138/19 138/20 139/1
140/19 148/4

videotape [1] 48/11

view [14]7/8 7/18 11/7
11/18 11/22 12/6 12/9 13/5
14/3 14/4 48/11 50/4 120/22
176/16

viewing [4] 15/11 15/19
23/13 69/24

views [1] 13/16

visible {3] 61/21 61/23 76/17
visualize [1} 62/1

voice [11]25/2 87/11 87/14
132/21 155/23 159/15 160/18
161/16 164/7 167/14 173/8
voices [3] 164/4 167/15

vatcher [30] 33/2 33/3 38/15 167/16

volume {1 1/1

50/8 51/19 57/13 63/19 63/22vomit {1] 64/9

w

waiting [10] 3/45 3/46 30/9
32/9 50/13 73/10 73/16 74/2
94/1 15277

walk {4] 107/16 107/17

126/24 147/7 170/15 175/7  55/20 59/15 59/16 65/5 74/11108/18 110/5

176/23 76/9 77/19 77/22 78/2 78/5
up [72] 7/13 10/1 18/24 23/4 78/6 82/5 95/2 102/14 105/3
25/2 30/1032/18 34/9 35/13 145/18 145/19 145/20 146/9
35/16 38/4 39/22 39/25 43/25146/10 154/9

44/10 47/9 47/21 51/21 52/24vehicles [17] 7/19 27/23
53/16 54/6 54/20 56/22 57/1727/24 55/19 56/13 59/1 59/1

walked [14] 30/16 35/14
42/20 49/9 50123 51/6 52/2
57/11 107/14 109/10 110/17
115/19 147/6 151/18
walking [6] 47/2 57/6 70/22
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